
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk 

To:  All Members of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Enquiries to: Peter Thompson 
e-mail:              peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  
Telephone: 01706 924715
Date: Wednesday, 27th July 2016

Dear Councillor,

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

You are requested to attend a meeting of the Health Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to be held on Thursday, 4th August 2016, 
starting at 6.15pm, in the Training and Conference Suite, 1st Floor, Council 
Offices, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/17:

Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor Cecile Biant
Councillor Surinder Biant
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Shaun O'Neill
Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Susan Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Mohammed Zaman

Public Document Pack

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/
mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Thursday, 4th August 2016 at 6.15 pm

Training and Conference Suite, 1st Floor, Council Offices, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale.

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 3

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Minutes 4 - 9

To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held 29th 
June 2016.

3.  Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 
Work Programme 2016/17 

10 - 15

4.  NHS England pre consultation on the proposed new clinical 
model for Learning Disabilities in the North West 

16 - 73

5.  Market Oversight Report 74 - 90

6.  School Admissions and Allocation of Places 2016 91 - 136

7.  Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2015/16 137 - 142

8.  Healthwatch Rochdale Annual Report 2015/16 143 - 170

9.  GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool 171 - 180

To note the minutes of the meeting of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny 
Pool meeting held 10th June 2016.





P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 2



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 3



HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 29th June 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Rowbotham (in the Chair); Councillors Sultan Ali, Cecile 
Biant, Surinder Biant, Gartside, Hartley, O’Neill, Robinson, Smith, Sullivan, and 
Zaman.

OFFICERS: S. Blezard, D. David (Assistant Directors – Adult Social Care 
Directorate), P. Wharton (Children’s Directorate), R. Bardsley, W. Meston (Public 
Health and Wellbeing Directorate), M. Hardman and P. Thompson (Resources 
Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Dr K. Mushtaq (Local Dental Practitioner), 
K. Chandaria, L. Patel and A. Simpson (NHS England).
   
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
1 There were no declarations of interests.

MINUTES
2 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 2nd March 2016 be approved as a 
correct record.

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 
WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
3 The Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) submitted a report 
which proposed a Work Programme for the Committee in 2016/17. Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 required Overview and Scrutiny Committees to set a work 
programme and to report it to the Council and the Work Programme was being 
submitted to the Council’s next meeting on 26th July 2016.

In considering the Work Programme Members suggested issues that could be 
considered as possible topics for a study group or for informal one-off meetings of 
the Committee’s membership.

DECIDED – That (1) the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2016/17 be approved for submission to the 
Council on 26th July 2016;

(2) any proposed changes to the Committee’s Work Programme be 
delegated to the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance and Workforce) of 
Resources in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of this Committee;

(3) an informal session of the Committee’s membership be held in the 
autumn of 2016 to consider issues relating to the safeguarding of children and 
adults.

ORAL HEALTH IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY - REPORT AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SCRUTINY STUDY GROUP
4 The Committee considered a report of the Oral Health Scrutiny Study Group 
which presented the final report of that Study Group prior to its submission to the 
Cabinet.

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



In 2015 the Committee established a Scrutiny Study Group to attempt to gain an 
understanding of the prevalence and severity of dental decay amongst the Borough’s 
residents, especially amongst five year old children and to examine recommended 
actions for inclusion in the local Oral Health Improvement Strategy 2016 – 2020, to 
rectify the current situation. The Study was therefore closely linked to the 
development of the Borough’s Oral Health Improvement Strategy and was concerned 
with improving health outcomes for service users in the Rochdale Borough which 
should improve healthy life and wellbeing outcomes. As a consequence, this directly 
linked into the ‘People’, ‘Place’ and ‘Prosperity’ corporate priorities of the Council.

The Study was concerned with working collaboratively with a range of officers and 
health professionals to raise awareness and understanding of evidence based Oral 
Health Improvement recommendations by Greater Manchester Public Health 
England and Public Health England. The Study Group Members were asked to focus 
on good practice, evidence based provision and filling gaps in service and delivery, 
improving the Oral Health of the residents across the Borough of Rochdale.  

In considering the report the Committee commented on the success of the Study 
Group and Members who were part of the Study felt that they learned a great deal 
about oral hygiene and its wider importance as a consequence. The Committee 
considered extending the Study by a period of up to six months for the purpose of 
reviewing the implementation of various recommendations detailed below.

DECIDED – That (1) a cross party group of Members, reflecting the Council’s 
current political balance, be established to meet on a quarterly basis to discuss 
relevant issues appertaining to oral health in the Borough, the membership to 
be drawn from the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee;

(2) the Council be recommended to approve and adopt the Oral Health 
Strategy, commissioned by Public Health England and entitled “Local 
Authorities improving oral health: commissioning better oral health for 
children and young people”;

(3) ongoing work by the Oral Health Promotion Officer, in liaison with 
Councillor Zaheer, with regard to the suitability and appropriateness of oral 
health initiatives that local Mosques are undertaking, particularly those 
Mosques that are located in the Milkstone and Deeplish and Central Wards of 
the Borough be encouraged to continue; 

(4) elected Members be encouraged to attend future meetings of the 
Greater Manchester Oral Health Improvement Collaborative Commissioners 
meeting, following Councillor Sullivan’s example in this regard;

(5) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to continue to 
encourage relevant staff to undertake available training in oral health care;

(6) the Council’s Director of Public Health and the Portfolio Holder for 
Public Health and Wellbeing, be requested to continue to lobby to have specific 
reference to the promotion of oral health being included in the Borough’s 
Locality Plan;

(7) the results and outcomes of the national survey into the oral health 
of five year old children, to be commissioned by Public Health England, be 
reported to the appropriate bodies of the Council at the earliest available 
opportunity;

(8) the Oral Health Promotions Officer, in consultation with the 
representatives of the Big Life Group, continue to liaise with local General 
Dental Practices to explain the various tooth brushing programmes that are 
available for pupils, with a view to introducing the ‘Buddy Practice Scheme’ 
and that the Oral Health Promotions Officer also be requested to continue to 

Page 5



liaise with representatives of the Big Life Group to examine ways of increasing 
the number of schools in the Borough that are engaged in Tooth Brushing 
Programmes over the course of the next 12 – 18 months and that staff in the 
Council’s Public Health Directorate be requested to undertake ‘mapping’ 
exercises to identify the locations of dental practices in the Borough that are 
engaged in the various tooth brushing programmes;

(9) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to confirm the 
provision of suitable training and guidance for those with guardianship 
responsibilities for ‘looked after children’, foster carers and prospective 
adoptive parents in terms of oral hygiene and food hygiene, and in this regard 
the Council’s Public Health Service be requested to review the current policies 
of the Council;

(10) the Public Health Directorate continue to examine the Borough’s 
obesity figures (as an indicator of likely sugar intake and potential dental 
caries) for Primary schools falling within the existing secondary school hot 
food takeaway ‘exclusion zones’;

(11) the Public Health Directorate be requested to work with the 
Council’s Licencing Service to ‘map out’ routes of mobile food vendors (in 
particular ice cream vans), with a view to considering restrictions of trade 
within a given perimeter of primary schools;

(12) the Council be recommended to approve the lobbying of large retail 
outlets in the Borough (e.g. supermarkets) to refrain from stocking sweets, 
chocolate and other confectionary items from store areas adjacent to check-
outs;  

(13) the Public Health Service be recommended to continue to work with 
colleagues within Oldham Council’s Public Health Service to deliver oral health 
improvement packs on Post-natal wards at Oldham Hospital via midwives in 
the Maternity Unit, bearing in mind that Oldham and North Manchester General 
Hospital, now provide maternity facilities for this  Borough’s women;

(14) the Study Group, whilst fully acknowledging the long term benefits 
of water fluoridation would be wide ranging and long lasting, feels that the 
short term financial outlay is too prohibitive in the current economic climate;

(15) The Committee agrees to extend the Study by a period of up to six 
months for the purpose of reviewing the implementation of various 
recommendations detailed above.   

REVIEW OF THE CARE ACT 2014
5 The Committee received a presentation from the Director of Adult Care and 
which outlined the key functions and effects of the Care Act that came into force on 
1st April 2015. The Act had been separated into three parts: care and support; care 
standards; and health. Part 1 of the Act consolidated and modernised the framework 
of care and support law by providing new duties for local authorities and new rights 
for service users and carers.

The purpose of the Care Act was to provide care and support that is clearer and 
fairer, promotes people’s wellbeing, enabled people to prevent and delay the need 
for care and support, and carers to maintain their caring role and which puts people 
in control of their lives so they can pursue opportunities to realise their potential.

The Act invested new responsibilities in local authorities towards all local people in 
their boundaries, via the arrangement of services or taking other steps to prevent, 
reduce or delay peoples’ needs for care and support, also through the provision of 
information and advice, including independent financial advice, including the 
establishment of an information and advice service which has four dedicated staff 

Page 6



and the promotion of diversity and quality in the market of care providers so that 
there are services/supports for people to choose from.

DECIDED – That the presentation on the Care Act 2014 be noted and 
welcomed.

ADULT CARE COMMISSIONING - MARKET OVERSIGHT REPORT
6 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Adult Care regarding 
the Market Oversight Plan which provided quality assurance information for services 
commissioned by the Adult Care service for 2015/16.

The Committee were advised that the Adult Care Directorate commissions external 
provider services to deliver a range of Care services to adults with eligible social care 
needs. The Adult Care Commissioning team assures the quality of these services 
and the Care Quality Commission also regulates some of the services. 

In considering the report a Member requested clarification on the Ashbourne Nursing 
Home in Rochdale which was found to require improvements in terms of most of the 
areas in which it was being reviewed. The Director of Adult Care Services undertook 
to write to Members of the Committee regarding the five categories under which care 
establishments were being assessed.

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

4TH QUARTER SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS
7 The Directors of Children’s Services and Adult Services presented a report 
that provided Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social Care 
complaints received during the fourth quarter 2015/2016.

Social care complaints are subject to a statutory reporting framework which are 
scrutinised by the Care Quality Commission. The Customer Feedback Team extracts 
and reports on the information recorded for social care services during the quarter 
period, this included the number of complaints received at each stage of the process, 
the number investigated and responded to within timescale and the number of which 
were upheld. 

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2015-16 Q4 PERFORMANCE REPORT AND 
DIRECTORATE PLANS FOR 2016-17
8 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
regarding the position at the end of Quarter 4 (31st March 2016) of the activities 
contained in the Adult Care Services Directorate Plan 2015/16, the Children’s 
Services Directorate Plan 2015/16 and the Public Health and Wellbeing Plan 
2015/16, and to present Directorate Plans for 2016/17 to Members of the Committee.

In terms of Adult Care activities a Member sought clarification on the provision of 
intermediate tier care services at Rochdale Infirmary which had become operational 
in September 2015 and which was impacting on hospital admissions and improving 
the quality of service provision. It was suggested that the Members of the Committee 
request an opportunity to visit this facility at Rochdale Infirmary in the near future to 
view this service in action and discuss relevant issues with hospital staff.

In terms of Children’s Services the Committee requested that a future meeting 
receive a report which explains procedures around Common Assessment Framework 

Page 7



(CAF), given that it was reported that there has been significant increases in the 
numbers of CAF’s being carried out, including 937 in 2015/16 representing an 
increase of 125 on the previous year. A Member referred to the work of the 
SUNRISE team and requested that their Annual Report be presented to a future 
meeting of the Committee in this Municipal Year. The Committee also requested that 
a report be presented to a future meeting regarding educational attainment and 
achievement in the Borough.

The Committee in considering activities in the Public Health and Wellbeing 
Directorate noted that there was a new provider of sexual health services operating 
in the Borough and the Chair advised that she had separately requested an informal 
meeting of the Committee’s membership to look this matter in further detail.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted;
(2) the clerk to the Committee be requested to make the necessary 

arrangements for Members of the Committee to visit the intermediate tier care 
services at Rochdale infirmary;

(3) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to submit a report to 
a future meeting of the Committee which explains procedures around Common 
Assessment Framework (CAF’s);

(4) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to submit a report to 
a future meeting of the Committee regarding educational attainment and 
achievement in the Borough;

(5) the Director of Children’s Services be requested to submit a report to 
a future meeting of the Committee presenting the SUNRISE Team’s Annual 
Report;

(6) the Committee notes that an informal session of its membership will 
be held to discuss the provision of sexual health services with service 
providers.

PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH LEARNING DISABILITIES
9 The Committee received a presentation from representatives of NHS England 
who addressed the Committee in relation to their consultation exercise that was due 
to commence imminently: ‘Transforming Care a proposed redesign of Learning 
disability Services in the North West’. The presentation described the background to 
the Transforming Care Agenda and detailed the engagement process that had been 
undertaken with specific reference to the options for the models of service that were 
being proposed. The proposals were for ‘medium’ and ‘low secure’ beds in the North 
West region.

The model for the low secure unit was designed to meet specific population groups in 
the region and would consider: services for women, persons with autistic spectrum 
disorders and learning disabilities, enduring needs, the rationalisation of some 
mainstream services and the maintenance of some existing services.

The Committee considered the presentation in great detail and found the proposals 
to be very interesting but, in light of the relatively short period at which they had 
received the information appertaining to the presentation, it was felt that this matter 
should be deferred to the next meeting of the Committee and supported by a report 
to be circulated with the agenda papers.

DECIDED – that the presentation by representatives of NHS England be noted 
but that further consideration thereof be deferred to the next meeting of the 
Committee and supported by a written report outlining in detail the proposals 
contained in their consultation exercise. 

Page 8



GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
10 DECIDED – That the minutes of the GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool 
meetings held on 11th March and 8th April 2016, be noted.

Page 9



Subject: Work Programme 2016/17 Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny  Committee 

Date: Thursday, 4th August 2016
 

Report of: Assistant Director (Legal, Governance 
and Workforce)

Author Email:    
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk    

Author: Peter Thompson 

Tel: 01706 924715

1 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the draft of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2016/17 as a basis for development.

2 Recommendations

2.1       That the Committee note the attached Work Programme 2016/17

2.2       The Work Programme be further developed and submitted to meetings of the 
Committee throughout 2016/17. 

Reason for recommendation

Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7 requires Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
to set a work programme and to report it to the Council.

3 Background

3.1 The principal role of the Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
would bring together already developing linkages around the Health and Wellbeing 
Board such as integrated commissioning; joint interests such as safeguarding; the 
joint/partnership working with the Heywood, Middleton, Rochdale NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group, and the existence of a common regulator (in the Care Quality 
Commission) across relevant Council services and those of other parties who might be 
expected to have an involvement in the Committee.

3.2 Areas of focus for the Committee include the development, delivery and scrutiny of 
partners or key contractors relevant to the remit of the Committee.

3.3 The appended work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration 
of the statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made; budget and policy consultation; review of service delivery; and 
specific issues requested either by this Committee or its predecessors, with scheduling 
reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these functions.  The 
Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can request further 
business to come forward.  

Page 10

Agenda Item 3

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


 
3.4 Officers will continue to work with the Committee members in developing the work 

programme, up to and beyond the required submission to the full Council on 26th July 
2016. 

Alternatives considered

None

4 Financial Implications

4.1 None

5  Legal Implications

5.1 The development of an Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is a requirement of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s 
Constitution.

6 Personnel Implications

6.1 None

7. Risk Assessment Implications 

7.1 There are no specific risk issues for members to consider arising from this report

8. Equalities Impacts

8.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

8.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no significant equality/community issues arising from this report.

There are no background papers to this report
 

Page 11



APPENDIX

HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2016/2017 

1. The Work Programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2016/2017 has 
been compiled mindful of the key scrutiny functions that are set out in the Local 
Government Act 2000 and subsequent legislation and as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain 
an oversight of the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally 
through the following means:-
 

 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

2. The Committee’s Work Programme has been prepared on the basis of known 
items at this time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined 
and this is reflected in the Work Programme.  

3. The following table highlights issues where there is either an agreement or an 
anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will be 
brought forward as indicated above.

29th June 2016

Work Programme 2016/17 To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2016/2017

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2016/2017)
 Children’s Services
 Adult Care Services
 Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Social Care Complaints – 4th Quarter 
2015/2016

Performance management and 
monitoring

Adult Care Market Oversight Report Performance management and 
monitoring

Oral Health update Final report of the Scrutiny Study 
Group

Local Provider of Services for people with 
Learning Disabilities

HMR – CCG consultation report

Review of the Care Act 2014
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Page 12



4th August 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2015/2016

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
NHS England pre-consultation on the 
proposed new clinical model for Learning 
Disabilities in the North West

Consultation on provider services

Adult Care - Market Oversight update report Performance management and 
monitoring

HealthWatch Rochdale – Annual Report
School Admissions and Allocation of Places 
2016

Scrutiny of proposals

Schools Final Outturns and Reportable 
Surplus 2015/16
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

14th September 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
PAHT - Update
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children 
Board – Annual Report 2015/2016 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults 
Board – Annual Report 2015/2016

Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Update (1st Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes For information
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

16th November 2016

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 
Update

Health Scrutiny

Performance Monitoring:
 Inspired Spaces

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Update (2nd Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance monitoring and 
management

Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Page 13



15th December 2016 

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
HMR CCG – update Health Scrutiny
Joint Scrutiny Committees – minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

21st February 2017 

Work Programme 2016/17 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
 Pennine Care Foundation NHS Trust – 

update  (Community Mental Health 
Services)

Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children 
Board – Six Month Update
Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Adults 
Board – Six Month Update
Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

30th March 2017 

Work Programme 2016/2017 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
PAHT - Update Scrutiny of provider
Directorate Plan Update (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017)
Children’s Services
Adult Care Services
Public Health Service

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring (3rd Quarter 
2016/2017):
Social Care Complaints

Performance management and 
monitoring

Market Oversight Report Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring:
Inspired Spaces

Performance management and 
monitoring

Joint Scrutiny Committees - minutes
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes

Other business to be scheduled

School Admissions and 
Allocation of Places

A briefing to be provided by the Head of Schools 
Service around the procedures to be followed in respect 
of school admissions and the allocation of both primary 
and secondary school places.  

Provision of sexual health 
services 

An informal ‘round table’ session involving Members 
and Council Officers with the providers and 
commissioners of services.

Page 14



Locality Plan The Committee will be consulted on significant policy 
proposals at the appropriate time.

Page 15



1

ROCHDALE HEALTH SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Date: 4TH August 2016

Subject: NHS England pre consultation on the proposed new clinical 
model for Learning Disabilities in the North West

Report of: Presentation describing the case for change

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

This report provides the Rochdale Health Schools and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the consultation process which aims to 
ensure the proposed clinical model for the future is agreed, understood and 
supported.

The short presentation aims to follow up on our previous attendance with the 
committee and seek the views of committee members to ensure:

1. The background to the Transforming Care agenda and detail of the 
engagement process that has been undertaken is shared with specific 
reference to the options for the model of service being proposed.

2. To seek advice and support on the formal consultation process.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Rochdale Health Schools and Care Overview Scrutiny Committee are asked 
to advise upon and support the consultation process on the future proposed 
provision of low and medium secure services in the North West of England.

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Lesley Patel
Director of Nursing Specialised Commissioning (North)
NHS England
lesley.patel@nhs.net

Andrew Simpson
Transformation Manager Specialised Commissioning
NHS England
andrew.simpson20@nhs.net

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

mailto:lesley.patel@nhs.net
mailto:andrew.simpson20@nhs.net


2

Summary

In order to move forward with the National direction of travel described in 
Building the Right Support, there is a key focus on less inpatient provision 
and more care within a community setting.  Therefore organisations providing 
inpatient care for this group of people are under review; this is because they 
no longer deliver the future model of care except in a minority of 
circumstances.  The document also aims to improve the lives of people with a 
Learning Disability and or autism.

Mersey Care Specialist Learning Disability Division - formally known as 
Calderstones Partnership FT is the only remaining standalone Learning 
Disability Hospital in England, with 223 beds. Calderstones Partnership FT 
prior to acquisition had been looking to find other partners to work with in 
order for them to be viable as a provider of Learning Disability Services in the 
future. Following a scoping exercise the Calderstones Board agreed that the 
partner that could bring most benefit to its service users in the long term was 
Mersey Care.  In March 2015 both Boards agreed that Mersey Care, following 
its authorisation as a Foundation Trust, which was granted in May 2016, 
should acquire Calderstones. This acquisition was completed in early July 
and Calderstones Partnership Foundation Trust is no longer an organisation 
in its own right.  

This work coincides with the national plan for Learning Disability services so 
people with a Learning Disability and or Autism will be supported to lead more 
independent lives and have a greater say about where they live and the 
support they receive. Central to the progress set out by the plan, is that over 
the next three years there will be new, high-quality, community-based 
services, for those with a Learning disability and a move away from long stay 
inpatient hospital care. 
                                                                           
The plan predicts that, as these services are put in place, there will be a 
reduction in the number of secure inpatient beds, meaning that some units 
will close altogether. The plans developed by Greater Manchester and 
Lancashire Transforming Care Partnerships, with NHS England Specialised 
Commissioners, subject to consultation, will implement a new service model 
for those with Learning Disability and or Autism. 

A meaningful consultation regarding the proposed new models of care will 
take place over the next few months. The consultation led by NHS England is 
in conjunction with Commissioners in Greater Manchester and Lancashire 
and the provider, Mersey Care.    There is an expectation that the OSC’s will 
have a view on the consultation length and the process by which we engage 
stakeholders, however there will be online, easy read, visual aids to assist 
and face to face events. The consultation document is also supported by a 
wide range of engagement already undertaken by commissioners and the 
provider.

Page 17



 
  

Page 18



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

2 
 

 

Building the right support 
 
A national plan to develop community services and close inpatient 
facilities for people with a learning disability and/or autism who display 
behaviour that challenges, including those with a mental health condition 
 
Version number: 1 
 
First published: 30 October 2015 
 
Updated:  
 
Prepared by: Anthony Houlden, Commissioning Policy Manager 
 
Classification: OFFICIAL  

  

Page 19



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

3 
 

 

 

Contents 
 
Foreword ................................................................................................................... 4 

1.  Executive summary ............................................................................................. 5 

2.  The journey to date .............................................................................................. 9 

 Background .................................................................................................. 9 

 Fast tracks .................................................................................................. 12 

o Greater Manchester ............................................................................... 13 

o Lancashire ............................................................................................. 14 

o Cumbria and the North East .................................................................. 15 

o Hertfordshire .......................................................................................... 16 

o Nottinghamshire .................................................................................... 17 

o Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire ............................................. 17 

3.  The new services we need ................................................................................ 22 

 Improving services for a heterogeneous group .......................................... 22 

 The service model ...................................................................................... 24 

 Reduced need for inpatient services .......................................................... 27 

4.  Working together to provide new services ...................................................... 35 

 Transforming care partnerships.................................................................. 35 

 The challenge ............................................................................................. 36 

 Supporting local areas ................................................................................ 37 

 Monitoring progress .................................................................................... 41 

 Financial underpinnings ............................................................................. 43 

Conclusion .............................................................................................................. 45 

 

Annex A – Proposed CCG clusters for transforming care partnerships .................... 46 

Annex B – Workforce development .......................................................................... 52 

Annex C – Notes on data used in this document ...................................................... 55 

 

 

 

Page 20



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

4 
 

 

Foreword  
 
Children, young people and adults with a learning disability and/or autism have the 
right to the same opportunities as anyone else to live satisfying and valued lives, and 
to be treated with dignity and respect. They should have a home within their 
community, be able to develop and maintain relationships, and get the support they 
need to live healthy, safe and rewarding lives. 
 
As a society, we are on a long journey to make that simple vision a reality. We have 
made enormous strides over several decades. But for a minority of children, young 
people and adults with a learning disability and/or autism who display behaviour that 
challenges, including those with a mental health condition1, we remain too reliant on 
inpatient care - as they and their families have been telling us loud and clear.   
 
It is for that reason that, in February 2015, NHS England publicly committed to a 
programme of closing inappropriate and outmoded inpatient facilities and 
establishing stronger support in the community, and promised that further details 
would follow later in the year. This plan meets that commitment.    
  
We know it comes at a time when many people with a learning disability and/or 
autism, as well as their families/carers are frustrated - that change has been limited 
and slow, particularly following the appalling scandal at Winterbourne View. We know 
too that thousands of frontline carers, clinicians, providers and commissioners want 
to make progress. 
 
This plan sets out how we will do so: supporting local leadership and making 
available new investment to kick-start change. It means that we now have an 
opportunity – to make real the rights of people with a learning disability and/or 
autism, and to help thousands of people lead happier lives.  
 
We know that this challenge is achievable because many parts of the country are 
already successfully doing it. There is good practice across the country to replicate, 
and the skills and expertise of thousands of families and front-line staff to build on. 
‘Fast track’ areas across England are starting to show what kind of transformational 
change is possible with strong local leadership building a new generation of 
community-based services.   
 
Now it is time to deliver across the whole country. This plan sets out how we intend 
to do so – working with people with a learning disability and/or autism, families, staff, 
clinicians, providers, and commissioners.  
 
 
Jane Cummings,                                      
Chief Nursing Officer, England  

Ray James, President,  Association of 
Directors of Adult Social Services  
 
 

Sarah Pickup, Deputy Chief Executive, 
Local Government Association  

Dominic Slowie, National Clinical Director 
for Learning Disability, NHS England 

   

                                            
1 Hereafter people with a learning disability and/or autism 

Page 21



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

5 
 

 

1. Executive summary 
 

The journey to date 

1.1 Over many decades, as a society we have significantly reduced our reliance 
on institutional care to support people with a learning disability and/or autism, 
closing asylums, campuses and long-stay hospitals. For a minority of people 
however, there is still an over reliance on inpatient treatment for people who 
could, given the right support, be at home and close to their loved ones.  
 

1.2 Over the last few years hundreds of people from hospital have been 
supported to leave hospital – but others are admitted in their place, often to 
inappropriate care settings, so the number of inpatients remains steady.  We 
have not made enough progress when it comes to changing some of the 
fundamentals of care and support.  

 
1.3 To make this permanent we need a change in culture, a shift in power to 

individuals and a change in services. We need to see people with a learning 
disability and/or autism as citizens with rights, who should expect to lead 
active lives in the community and live in their own homes just as other citizens 
expect to. And we need to build the right community based services to 
support them to lead those lives, thereby enabling us to close all but the 
essential inpatient provision.    
 

1.4 To speed up this process and to help shape a national approach to supporting 
change, six ‘fast track’ areas2 drew up plans over the summer of 2015 and are 
already making a difference on the ground. Together they envisage shifting 
money into community services in order to reduce their usage of inpatient 
provision by approximately 50% over the coming three years. Their plans will 
result in the development of a range of new community services and the 
closure of hospital units, including the last standalone learning disability 
hospital in England.  
 

1.5 This document describes how we intend to build on our experience with fast 
tracks to implement change across the rest of the country.   

 

The new services we need 

1.6 People with a learning disability and/or autism who display behaviour that 
challenges are a highly heterogeneous group. Some will have a mental health 
problem which may result in them displaying behaviour that challenges. 
Some, often with severe learning disabilities, will display self-injurious or 
aggressive behaviour unrelated to any mental health condition. Some will 
display behaviour which can lead to contact with the criminal justice system. 
Some will have been in hospital for many years, not having been discharged 
when NHS campuses or long-stay hospitals were closed. The new services 
and support we put in place to support them in the community will need to 
reflect that diversity. 

                                            
2 Greater Manchester; Lancashire; North East and Cumbria; Arden, Herefordshire 
and Worcestershire; Nottinghamshire; Hertfordshire 

Page 22



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

6 
 

 

 
1.7 A national service model, developed with the help of people with lived 

experience, clinicians, providers and commissioners, outlined in this 
document and published in full alongside it, sets out the range of support that 
should be in place no later than March 2019. It should be read in tandem with 
this plan.    
 

1.8 Implementing this model, and giving people greater power over the services 
they use, will result in a significantly reduced need for inpatient care. We 
expect that as a minimum, in three years’ time no area will need capacity for 
more than 10-15 inpatients per million population in clinical commissioning 
group (CCG) commissioned beds (such as assessment and treatment units), 
and 20-25 inpatients per million population in NHS England-commissioned 
beds (such as low-, medium- or high-secure services).  
 

1.9 These planning assumptions will mean that, at a minimum, 45 – 65% of CCG-
commissioned inpatient capacity will be closed, and 25 – 40% of NHS 
England-commissioned capacity will close, with the bulk of change in secure 
care expected to occur in low-secure provision. Overall, 35% - 50% of 
inpatient provision will be closing nationally with alternative care provided in 
the community. The change will be even more significant in those areas of the 
country currently more reliant on inpatient care.  In three years we would 
expect to need hospital care for only 1,300-1,700 people where now we cater 
for 2,600. This will free up money which can then be reinvested into 
community services, following upfront investment.  

 
1.10 These planning assumptions should be seen as the starting point. 

Commissioners should, working with people with a learning disability and/or 
autism, be ambitious in thinking about how much further they can go, starting 
not from the point of what services they have currently but what support 
people need to live the best possible life. 

 
1.11 Just like the rest of the population, people with a learning disability and/or 

autism must and will still be able to access inpatient hospital support if they 
need it.  What we expect however is that the need for these services will 
reduce significantly.  The limited number of beds still needed should be of 
higher quality and closer to people’s homes.  
 

1.12 For those that do need this more specialist support in hospital, their length of 
stay should be as short as possible.  We will work with providers, 
commissioners and clinicians to reduce length of stay overall and ensure 
areas learn from best practice – for instance one ‘fast track’ area aims to 
reduce length of stay in assessment and treatment services to an average of 
85 days.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/service-model-291015.pdf


      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

7 
 

 

Delivering change 

1.13 To achieve this systemic change, 49 transforming care partnerships 
(commissioning collaborations of CCGs, NHS England’s specialised 
commissioners and local authorities) are mobilising now. They will work with 
people who have lived experience of these services, their families and carers, 
as well as key stakeholders to agree robust implementation plans by April 
2016 and then deliver on them over three years. 

 
1.14 An alliance of national organisations will support these transforming care 

partnerships to deliver on this ambitious agenda, including NHS England, 
Local Government Association (LGA), Association of Directors of Adult Social 
Services (ADASS), Health Education England (HEE), Skills for Health, Skills 
for Care, the Care Quality Commission (CQC), NHS Trust Development 
Authority (TDA), Monitor, and provider representative organisations, working 
closely with people with a learning disability and/or autism as well as their 
families/carers. 
 

1.15 In every part of the country there are people with the skills and experience to 
deliver effective care and support. These people can be found within health 
and social care services, and amongst the families and carers who support 
individuals in their own homes. Successful delivery will depend on them. Their 
insight will be key to designing, developing and launching new services in the 
community, and their skills and experience will be central to delivering them.  
 

1.16 As part of this alliance for delivery, and working alongside local 
commissioners, we will work with provider organisations to mobilise innovative 
housing, care and support solutions in the community. Our collaboration will 
focus on supporting commissioners to redesign services, scaling up 
community-based services, developing the workforce, accessing investment 
to expand community services, and securing the capital to deliver the new 
housing needed.  

 
1.17 A new financial framework will underpin delivery of the new care model:  

 Local transforming care partnerships will be asked to use the total sum of 
money they spend as a whole system on people with a learning disability 
and/or autism to deliver care in a different way that achieves better results  

 To enable that to happen, NHS England’s specialised commissioning 
budget for learning disability and autism services will be aligned with the 
new transforming care partnerships 

 CCGs will be encouraged to pool their budgets with local authorities whilst 
recognising their continued responsibility for NHS Continuing Healthcare.  

 For people who have been in hospital the longest, the NHS will provide a 
‘dowry’ – money to help with moving people home 

 During a phase of transition, commissioners will need to invest in new 
community support before closing inpatient provision. To support them to do 
this NHS England will make available up to £30 million of  transformation 
funding, to be matched by CCGs, over and above the £10 million already 
made available to fast track areas 

Page 24



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

8 
 

 

 In addition to this, £15 million capital funding over three years will be made 
available and NHS England will explore making further capital funding 
available following the Spending Review 

 From November 2015, ‘Who Pays’ guidance will be reformed to reduce 
financial barriers to swift discharge  

 
1.18 Before the end of 2018, having built up community support and closed 

hundreds of beds, we will take stock and look at going further. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 25



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

9 
 

 

2. The journey to date 
 

Background 

2.1 Historically, from the asylum to the long stay hospital, too often people have 
been routinely placed in institutions away from their homes and communities.  

 
2.2 Rightly, most of these institutions were closed and now the majority of people 

with a learning disability and/or autism will never come into contact with the 
types of hospitals – including assessment and treatment services – that are 
discussed in this document.  

 

Figure 1: NHS learning disability beds since 19873 

 
 
2.3 The scandal at Winterbourne View, however, was not just an individual 

episode of appalling abuse. It also highlighted the fact that despite the 
progress we have made as a society in recent decades, for a small number of 
people we remain too reliant on hospital care, particularly in some parts of the 
country (see figure 2 and figure 3).  
 

 
 
 

                                            
3 Data taken from KH03 collection from all NHS organisations that operate 
consultant-led beds open overnight or day only. Changes to the way data is collected 
mean only Q4 data provided from 2010/11.  More information: 
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/bed-availability-and-
occupancy/ 

 1993: 1st Mansell 
report 

8,197 

2007: 2nd Mansell 
Report  

2011: Winterbourne 
View abuse 
uncovered 

 2001: Valuing 
People 

5,694 

5,212 

1995 Disability 
Discrimination Act 

2009: Autism Act 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

1
9
8

7
-8

8

1
9
8

8
-8

9

1
9
8

9
-9

0

1
9
9

0
-9

1

1
9
9

1
-9

2

1
9
9

2
-9

3

1
9
9

3
-9

4

1
9
9

4
-9

5

1
9
9

5
-9

6

1
9
9

6
-9

7

1
9
9

7
-9

8

1
9
9

8
-9

9

1
9
9

9
-0

0

2
0
0

0
-0

1

2
0
0

1
-0

2

2
0
0

2
-0

3

2
0
0

3
-0

4

2
0
0

4
-0

5

2
0
0

5
-0

6

2
0
0

6
-0

7

2
0
0

7
-0

8

2
0
0

8
-0

9

2
0
0

9
-1

0

Q
4

  
2
0

1
0

/1
1

Q
4

  
2
0

1
1

/1
2

Q
4

  
2
0

1
2

/1
3

Q
4

  
2
0

1
3

/1
4

Q
4

  
2
0

1
4

/1
5

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
ily

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 b
e
d
s
 

Page 26

http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/bed-availability-and-occupancy/
http://www.england.nhs.uk/statistics/statistical-work-areas/bed-availability-and-occupancy/


      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

10 
 

 

Figure 2: Geographical variation in reliance on CCG-commissioned inpatient 
services (as at 31 July 2015)4 

 

Figure 3: Geographical variation in reliance on NHS England-commissioned 
inpatient services (as at 31 July 2015) 56 

 

                                            
4 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 
5 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

W
e

s
s
e
x

S
o

u
th

 W
e
s
t

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t

S
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

a
l

L
o
n

d
o

n

E
a

s
t

C
 M

id
la

n
d

s

Y
o

rk
s
 &

 H
u
m

b
e

r

W
 M

id
la

n
d
s

L
a
n

c
s
 &

 G
M

C
h
e

s
h

ir
e

 &
 M

e
rs

e
y

N
 M

id
la

n
d

s

C
u

m
b

ri
a
 &

 N
E

In
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

ra
te

 p
e
r 

m
ill

io
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

 

Current CCG-commissioned patients

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

S
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

a
l

W
e

s
s
e
x

S
o

u
th

 W
e
s
t

L
o
n

d
o

n

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t

C
h
e

s
h

ir
e

 &
 M

e
rs

e
y

C
 M

id
la

n
d

s

E
a

s
t

Y
o

rk
s
 &

 H
u
m

b
e

r

L
a
n

c
s
 &

 G
M

N
 M

id
la

n
d

s

C
u
m

b
ri

a
 &

 N
E

W
 M

id
la

n
d
s

In
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

ra
te

 p
e
r 

m
ill

io
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

 

Current NHS England-commissioned inpatients

Page 27



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

11 
 

 

2.4 To address this longstanding problem recently there has been a  renewed 
push to address these issues with, for instance:  
 

 The CQC introducing a new approach to inspecting learning disability 
hospitals and the care of people with a learning disability and/or autism in 
acute hospitals 

 New data systems put in place to track the care people are receiving 

 The Department of Health’s consultation No Voice Unheard, No Right 
Ignored: a consultation for people with learning disabilities, autism and 
mental health conditions looked at how to strengthen rights, incentives and 
duties in the wider system, focusing on how people can be supported to 
live independently in their communities and make choices in their 
lives.  Views were sought on a range of ideas intended to strengthen or 
build upon existing policies, including possible changes to legislation.  The 
Government will shortly set out the actions it proposes in response to the 
consultation 

 
2.5 In addition to this, NHS England has rolled out a programme of Care and 

Treatment Reviews (CTRs) - reviews of individual patients’ care to prevent 
unnecessary admissions and avoid lengthy stays in hospital. These CTRs 
bring together:  
 

 People with a learning disability and/or autism and their families/carers 

 Independent expert advisors – one clinical and one expert by experience 

 The responsible commissioner and others involved in the persons care 
and treatment  

 
These reviews look to see if someone’s care is safe, effective and whether 
they need to be in hospital as well as whether there is a plan in place for the 
future. By mid-September 2015 over 2,020 CTRs had been completed since 
their introduction in October 2014.  Between March and August 2015, over 
750 people in hospital were discharged or transferred.  
 
 

2.6 Progress has been made. Hundreds of people previously in hospital are now 
living in their own homes, and the foundations for future progress have         
been laid.  

 
2.7 Despite this, we know the most significant changes needed lie ahead. For all 

the progress discharging individuals from hospital, the number of people not 
living at home remains similar to what it was when CTRs were introduced.  
Admissions remain high, and some people are in hospital when they are 
ready to be discharged because the right support is not available.  

 
2.8 As Sir Stephen Bubb highlighted in his report for NHS England7, we need to 

change the mix of services available on the ground - shifting our investment 
into better support in the community and closing some inpatient services. To 
do this “we need both more ‘top-down’ leadership...and from the ‘bottom up’ 

                                            
7 http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/transforming-
commissioning-services.pdf  

Page 28

http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/transforming-commissioning-services.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/transforming-commissioning-services.pdf


      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

12 
 

 

more empowerment for people with learning disabilities and/or autism and 
their families.” 

 
2.9 Six ‘fast track’ areas have begun that process, and this plan sets out how we 

will now support the rest of the country to follow suit. 
 

Fast tracks 

2.10 Over the summer of 2015, NHS England, LGA and ADASS supported six ‘fast 
track areas’8 (collaborations of CCGs, local authorities and NHS England 
specialised commissioners) to draw up plans for service transformation. A £10 
million fund was made available to these areas to help fund transitional costs 
and speed up implementation.9 

 
2.11 These areas are highly diverse – in terms of demography, patient flows, 

provider landscapes, deprivation, urban and rural communities – allowing 
NHS England, LGA and ADASS to test our approach to a range of different 
challenges that different communities in England will face as they seek to 
transform services – from developing the local workforce to designing new 
community health services to ensuring that funding flows enable change.    

 
Figure 4: Fast track areas 

 

                                            
8 Greater Manchester; Lancashire; Cumbria and the North East; Arden, 
Herefordshire and Worcestershire; Nottinghamshire; Hertfordshire 
9 The NHS and local government in these areas spend many millions on care for 
people with a learning disability and/or autism. The £10 million is not intended to fund 
all the costs in that new service model 

Page 29



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

13 
 

 

2.12 Each fast track has published its plan and fast track areas are now engaging 
with local communities and providers to help shape delivery.  
 

2.13 Taken together, fast track plans envisage that bed usage across all six areas 
will reduce by approximately 50% over the coming three years, freeing up 
tens of millions of pounds which will be invested in community-based support 
to prevent hospital admissions.  
 

2.14 Below is a summary of some of the actions that each of the fast track areas 
are implementing.  

Greater Manchester 

2.15 The devolution deal for Greater Manchester has resulted in new powers and 
responsibilities for local leaders. In describing their joint ambition for change, 
they have prioritised the improvement of services for people with a learning 
disability and/or autism.   
 

2.16 In terms of bed usage, the Greater Manchester Fast Track uses a range of 
hospital providers but has a significant number of inpatients in Calderstones 
Partnership Foundation Trust, which is also used to a large degree to provide 
care to patients from Lancashire. As such their plans are being jointly 
developed with the Lancashire Fast Track.  
 

2.17 Their ambition is to reduce their use of 130 inpatient beds by 50%: from 77 
non-secure beds to 30 (a 60% reduction) and from 53 secure beds to 35 (a 
34% reduction) by 2018/19. To re-provide this care they are creating intensive 
community support services with robust case management and discharge 
coordination across the area to enable individuals to receive care at home 
and improve their care experience.  
 

2.18 Recognising that occasionally the needs of individuals can increase, they are 
also investing, this year, in six local crisis beds and an in-reach/outreach team 
providing safe short intensive support when needed.   
 

2.19 Furthermore they are in the process of creating an innovative housing scheme 
that will ensure round-the-clock care for people with a learning disability 
and/or autism from early next year.   
 

2.20 A cornerstone of the plan is their intention to retain and build the confidence of 
the staff, as well as families/carers, to improve quality of care in the 
community. To do this they intend to deliver a three year family and staff 
development programme. 
 

2.21 In addition, to monitor the impact of the plan by March 2017 - as part of the 
wider Greater Manchester Public Sector Reform Programme - there will a 
formal evaluation assessing its impact over an 18 month period.  
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

14 
 

 

Lancashire  
 
2.22 Similarly to Greater Manchester Fast Track, Lancashire uses a range of 

hospital providers but has a significant number of inpatients in Calderstones 
Partnership Foundation Trust.  
  

2.23 Lancashire intends to reduce their reliance on non-secure beds by 70% and 
substantially reduce the numbers of people who come into contact with 
secure services.  This high ambition will be achieved by focussing on putting 
in place high-quality individual packages of care and creating a hub and 
spoke community support model (expected to be fully operational by March 
2018).  They will develop:  
 

 An integrated community learning disability team across the whole of 
Lancashire 

 Crisis intervention and support services across the area 

 A small number of community-based assessment and treatment services 
to prevent unnecessary out of area placements 

 
2.24 To help with developing these services, Lancashire is rolling out a local 

engagement plan to ensure people impacted by these changes are fully 
involved in the building up of community capacity and shaping the services 
they use. 
 

2.25 Their intention to retain staff to work in new models of care is a vital part of the 
plan. A comprehensive development programme will be rolled out this year, 
with two CCGs implementing Positive Behavioural Support (PBS) training and 
a scheme designed to offer rights-based training to improve access to 
mainstream health and social care services for people with a learning 
disability and/or autism.  
 

2.26 Finally, in line with the national service model, they expect from April 2017 to 
reshape advocacy services across the region and develop a more robust 
model for delivering short break services. 
 

 Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
 
2.27 A key plank of the plans being developed in Lancashire and Greater 

Manchester will be to close and re-provide services offered by Calderstones 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. 
 

2.28 Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust is the only remaining 
standalone learning disability hospital trust in England with 223 beds.  They 
have initiated a collaboration with Mersey Care NHS Trust driven by an 
ambition to develop person-centred care, and sustainable services that stand 
the test of time, underpinned by a strong quality, clinical and financial case for 
fundamental changes in local secure mental health and learning disabilities 
care. 
 

2.29 The plan is for Mersey Care NHS Trust to take over Calderstones Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust, which from July 2016 will cease to exist. 

Page 31



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

15 
 

 

 
2.30 The plans developed by Greater Manchester and Lancashire Fast Tracks with 

NHS England Specialised Commissioners, subject to consultation, will 
implement a new service model resulting in a substantial reduction of beds 
(>60% fewer than currently).   
 

2.31 NHS England will also cease commissioning secure services on the 
Calderstones site.   
 

2.32 All hospital beds on the current Calderstones site will therefore, subject to 
consultation, close and be re-provided over the next three years on a case by 
case basis for each patient, in the community or in new state of the art units 
elsewhere in the North West, and the Calderstones site will close.   
 

2.33 Ongoing consultation and engagement with people with learning disabilities, 
their families and carers will be central to the process of change and the 
commissioners and providers involved are committed to ensuring that patients 
and families are always involved in decisions about their care and support.  
 

2.34 Calderstones Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and Mersey Care NHS Trust 
have appointed a joint Medical Director to provide clinical leadership in the 
process of bringing these two organisations together.  The post holder will 
help sustain and build world class leaders and staff, enabling them to be part 
of the future. 
 

2.35 The trusts are already focussing on a range of joint quality initiatives with staff 
to improve quality and increase efficiency - for instance, they have initiated 
an international collaboration with Stanford Risk Authority (Stanford 
University) to manage risk and learn lessons in a way that has never been 
undertaken in the NHS. 

 
Cumbria and the North East 
 
2.36 Compared to the rest of the country, Cumbria and the North East have more 

individuals with a learning disability registered on GP registers and a higher 
usage of inpatient services (255 inpatient beds) mainly making use of two key 
hospital trusts – Northumberland, Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust and Tees 
Esk and Wear Valleys Foundation Trust.   

 
2.37 These beds are a collection of secure and non-secure beds and are occupied 

not only by people from the area, but from across the country.  Cumbria and 
North East aim to deliver a 52% reduction (76 beds) in non-secure beds and a 
43% reduction (47 beds) in low secure beds. Commissioning action is already 
underway to facilitate this reduction, with 40 beds being empty at time of 
publication. 
 

2.38 Building on service improvements in physical health, Cumbria and the North 
East are creating a single set of standards to incorporate into contracts used 
locally. Each local authority and CCG is developing and building community 
capacity, including in 2015/16 new investment in:  
 

Page 32



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

16 
 

 

 Services to support people with attention deficit hyperactivity disorder and 
autism across Northumberland, and Tyne and Wear 

 Advocacy services 

 Carers support 
 
2.39 Localities are also testing new approaches to improving quality.  For example, 

in Newcastle an innovative housing initiative, developed through collaboration 
between social care providers and an NHS provider, is providing preventative 
care and treatment to improve the quality of support people with a learning 
disability and/or autism experience and to avoid unnecessary admissions.  
 

2.40 A central plank to the plan is to retain staff to work in new models of care, and 
develop and up skill the workforce. For instance, working with Northumbria 
University and local clinicians they intend to implement a National Vocational 
Qualification (NVQ) based on PBS training for staff.  
 

Hertfordshire  
 
2.41 For several years Hertfordshire CCGs have been working with Hertfordshire 

Partnership Trust, Hertfordshire County Council and others to modernise 
services for people with a learning disability and/or autism, and they have 
already successfully closed many assessment and treatment beds across the 
area. But they believe they should go further. 
 

2.42 Their ambition is now to bring adult and children’s services together into a 
dedicated integrated service.  This will include a single point of access that 
will empower service users of all ages to access help, support and 
appropriate treatment in the community. This model will be consulted on 
before the end of the year. 
 

2.43 By 2018/19 they expect to reduce their usage of low-secure beds by over 
30%, and to reduce length of stay in assessment and treatment beds to an 
average of 85 days.  
 

2.44 Furthermore, they are establishing an evaluation partnership with 
Hertfordshire University to test a number of prevention and early discharge 
services for individuals who have been in contact with the criminal justice 
system.  This includes a strengthened community forensic team to enable 
faster supported discharge and greater use of community restriction orders, 
and a Circles Project to deliver community support to people with a learning 
disability and/or autism who are deemed to be at high risk of sexual offending. 
 

2.45 Recognising that individuals’ needs can increase, a number of innovative 
crisis intervention pilots will be commissioned and evaluated from 2015/16, 
namely: 

 

 A hosted family crisis support pilot which will provide intensive home 
support during crisis periods  

 A ‘crash pad’ pilot providing short term accommodation for people who 
need crisis intervention in situations where there has been a placement 
breakdown or termination of tenancy 

Page 33



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

17 
 

 

 
2.46 Finally, Hertfordshire has already begun work to pilot the implementation of 

integrated personal health budgets, which will start to be introduced from April 
2016.  
 

Nottinghamshire 
 
2.47 Nottinghamshire intends to reduce its reliance on non-secure services from 40 

occupied beds to 15 (a 63% reduction) and almost halve its usage of low and 
medium secure beds from 34 to 16 (a 56% reduction). Nottinghamshire now 
has 65 people in inpatient care in NHS trusts and the independent sector.   
 

2.48 Nottinghamshire’s plan has individual rights at its centre and an immediate 
priority is to commission an increase in advocacy for people during care and 
treatment reviews. Early plans also include strengthening their existing 
community learning disability and intensive care and treatment teams, as well 
as risk registers, so they can confidently support individuals who are at risk of 
coming into contact with the criminal justice system and subsequent 
admission to hospital. 
 

2.49 Recognising that confidence of staff and families is paramount to helping 
individuals stay at home, families will be offered evidence-based parenting 
training as well as practical and emotional support locally.  In addition, to 
retain and up skill staff to deliver the new care model  workforce training will 
be undertaken to ensure staff have a consistent understanding and approach 
to working with people who display behaviour that challenges which enables 
individuals to remain in the least restrictive setting. 
 

2.50 Next year, they will expand their personal health budget offer and tackle gaps 
in the accessibility of mainstream services. As the needs of individuals can 
increase, new crisis accommodation will be established as well as new 
pioneering housing options for people with complex behaviours and those in 
contact with the criminal justice system as they are discharged from hospital.  
 

2.51 Nottinghamshire will start to pool budgets for crisis care from April 2016 and 
work towards further alignment and pooling arrangements from April 2017. 
 

2.52 Finally, across Nottinghamshire there are a high number of local inpatient 
beds (199), many of which are not used by local commissioners.  The Fast 
Track has recognised that the longer term plan of this economy will require 
strong partnerships with other commissioners across the country. 

 
Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire 
 
2.53 Commissioners in Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire have been driving 

forward improvements in learning disabilities for several years and have 
agreed strategies for improving both physical and mental health and been 
steadily reducing reliance on hospital beds. They now have 47 people in 
inpatient care, mainly in Coventry and Warwickshire NHS Trust.   
 

Page 34



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

18 
 

 

2.54 It is expected that across the area they will reduce the number of beds used 
by inpatients to 14. This means reducing their usage of non-secure beds from 
19 to 3 (an 85% reduction), and of secure beds from 21 to 11 (a 48% 
reduction).  They also intend to reduce their usage of child and adolescent 
mental health service (CAMHS) beds by children with a learning disability 
and/or autism by seven.  
 

2.55 These closures are expected to start this year, with a nine-bed assessment 
and treatment ward shutting (subject to appropriate local consultation).  
 

2.56 Their intention is to redeploy staff working in that unit to new community 
services, and having learnt from the experience and undertaken appropriate 
consultation, to apply the learning to other sites. 
 

2.57 In addition, the area plans to develop by November 2015: 
 

 An admission avoidance scheme in Coventry and Warwickshire NHS 
Trust  

 A short-term accommodation for people who need support when a 
placement breaks down or, for example, if a tenancy breaks down 

 
2.58 Throughout the rest of the year, across Arden, Herefordshire and 

Worcestershire the aim is to create intensive community support teams which 
will work with existing mental health crisis teams to provide comprehensive 
crisis care 24/7.  To facilitate this they plan to have a liaison nurse who will 
work to improve support and the interface between learning disability and 
wider mental health services.  
 

2.59 From April 2016 a community forensic service will be commissioned to 
support people to be discharged who are currently out of area and enhance 
the support locally to avoid future admissions. The aim is to then review the 
coverage and plan for further closures in 2017/18. 
 

2.60 Finally, Coventry and Warwick Partnership Trust are commissioned by other 
West Midlands commissioners.  The Arden, Hereford and Worcestershire 
Fast Track is exploring strategic alliances with them to spread learning and 
support change. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 35



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

19 
 

 

Figure 5: Projected bed usage rates across fast track sites (inpatients per 
million population)10  

 
 
Figure 6: Projected total bed usage across fast tracks (chart shows projected 
number of inpatients originating from the fast track site)11    

 

                                            
10 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 
11 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

60.00

70.00

80.00

90.00

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

In
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

m
ill

io
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

 

Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire Hertfordshire

Nottinghamshire Greater Manchester

Lancashire Cumbria & NE

0

50

100

150

200

250

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 i
n
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

b
e
d
s
 

Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire Hertfordshire

Nottinghamshire Greater Manchester

Lancashire Cumbria & NE

Page 36



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

20 
 

 

Figure 7: Projected usage of NHS England-commissioned beds across fast 
tracks (chart shows projected number of inpatients originating from the fast 
track site)12 

 
 
Figure 8: Projected usage of CCG-commissioned beds across fast tracks (chart 
shows projected number of inpatients originating from the fast track site)13 

 
                                            
12 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 
13 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 i
n
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

b
e
d
s
 

Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire Hertfordshire

Nottinghamshire Greater Manchester

Lancashire Cumbria & NE

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 i
n
p
a
ti
e
n
t 

b
e
d
s
 

Arden, Herefordshire and Worcestershire Hertfordshire

Nottinghamshire Greater Manchester

Lancashire Cumbria & NE

Page 37



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

21 
 

 

 
2.61 The action outlined above represent just the start of what the fast tracks will 

do, and as their plans develop and community services mature we expect the 
bed reduction trajectories set out in their plans to translate into further closure 
of individual wards and units. As the fast track areas start to implement their 
ambitious plans for change, NHS England, LGA and ADASS will draw on our 
experience of working with them to support the rest of the country to build new 
community services and close inpatient provision that is no longer needed. 
The rest of this plan sets out how these new services should look, and how 
we plan to work together to deliver them. 

 

  

Page 38



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

22 
 

 

3. The new services we need 
 
3.1 People with a learning disability and/or autism have the right to the same 

opportunities as anyone else to live satisfying and valued lives and to be 
treated with dignity and respect. They should expect, as people without a 
learning disability or autism expect, to live in their own homes, to develop and 
maintain positive relationships and to get the support they need to be healthy, 
safe and an active part of society.  
 

3.2 As Professor Jim Mansell highlighted in 1993 and in 2007, however, too rarely 
do people receive this type of personalised support across their whole life.  In 
turn, many of the behaviours services label as challenging could be prevented 
from developing if the right support were made available to people and their 
families or carers when they needed it. 
 

3.3 The changes to services we plan to make are intended to put that right.  
 

Improving services for a heterogeneous group  

3.4 People with a learning disability and/or autism who display behaviour that 
challenges are a highly heterogeneous group. The task of reshaping services 
will reflect that diversity.   

 
3.5 For people who have been in inpatient settings for a very long period of time, 

the task facing commissioners will be to resettle those individuals into the 
community and close the hospital beds behind them. This will include a 
number of people who will have been in hospital for many years, in some 
cases having not been discharged when NHS campuses or long-stay 
hospitals were closed. It is the group of people for whom hospital has 
effectively become a permanent home, and for whom the task now is to find 
them a more appropriate home in the community, with the right package of 
health and care support around them. This is the group who will likely be 
eligible for NHS-funded dowries when they are ready to be discharged, to 
help fund their new package of care in the community (see chapter 4 for more 
detail on how these ‘dowries’ will work). 
 

3.6 Approximately a third of the people currently in hospital have been in inpatient 
settings for five years or longer. Whilst hospital may be the right place for 
some of this group (for clinical reasons often combined with Ministry of Justice 
restrictions), Care and Treatment Reviews have already identified 
transfer/discharge dates over the coming three years for just under 40% of the 
individuals concerned, and we would expect that number to rise as we build 
the right set of services in the community.  

 
3.7 In the main, however, the challenge facing commissioners is as much about 

preventing new admissions and reducing the time people spend in inpatient 
care by providing alternative care and support, as it is about discharging those 
individuals currently in hospital.  The task requires: advocacy, early 
intervention, prevention, ensuring the right set of services are available in the 
community.  
 

Page 39



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

23 
 

 

3.8 In many cases, it will involve close collaboration not just between the NHS 
and social care, but also with parts of the criminal justice system, building on 
recent joint work between NHS England and the Ministry of Justice to facilitate 
discharges of patients subject to restriction orders - currently more than one in 
five of the people in hospital settings have been detained on part III of the 
Mental Health Act with a Ministry of Justice restriction. 

 
3.9 Transformation will mean redesigning services to better meet a range of 

common sets of needs. For instance, it will mean better serving children, 
young people or adults with a learning disability and/or autism who: 

 

 Have a mental health condition such as severe anxiety, depression, or a 
psychotic illness, and those people with personality disorders, which may 
result in them displaying behaviour that challenges 

 Display self-injurious or aggressive behaviour (not related to severe mental 
ill health), some of whom will have a specific neuro-developmental 
syndrome where there may be an increased likelihood of developing 
behaviour that challenges 

 Display risky behaviours which may put themselves or others at risk and 
which could lead to contact with the criminal justice system (this could 
include things like fire-setting, abusive or aggressive or sexually 
inappropriate behaviour) 

 Often have lower level support needs and who may not traditionally be 
known to health and social care services, from disadvantaged 
backgrounds (e.g. social disadvantage, substance abuse, troubled family 
backgrounds) who display behaviour that challenges, including behaviours 
which may lead to contact with the criminal justice system 

 
3.10 The different kinds of shift in service response required to better meet these 

different needs are set out in more detail in a national service model for 
commissioners of health and social care services, developed with the support 
of a group of independent experts, including people with lived experience of 
services, and published alongside this document.  

 
  

Page 40

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/service-model-291015.pdf


      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

24 
 

 

 
Figure 9: People for whom we need new services 

 
 

The service model  

3.11 Each local area is different. Local populations have different needs, and their 
range of providers have different strengths and weaknesses. The mix of 
services they put in place will need to reflect that diversity. However, there 
does need to be some national consistency in what services look like across 
local areas, based on established best practice. 

 
3.12 The national service model, developed with the support of people with 

learning disability and/or autism, as well as families/carers, and  a group of 
independent experts and published alongside this document, sets out how 
services should support people with a learning disability and/or autism who 
display behaviour that challenges.  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 41



      

      

      

   
Classification: Official 

25 
 

 

The National Service Model 

1. People should be supported to have a good and meaningful everyday life - 
through access to activities and services such as early years services, education, 
employment, social and sports/leisure; and support to develop and maintain good 
relationships.   

 
2. Care and support should be person-centred, planned, proactive and 

coordinated – with early intervention and preventative support based on 
sophisticated risk stratification of the local population, person-centred care and 
support plans, and local care and support navigators/keyworkers to coordinate 
services set out in the care and support plan.  

 
3. People should have choice and control over how their health and care needs are 

met – with information about care and support in formats people can understand, 
the expansion of personal budgets, personal health budgets and integrated 
personal budgets, and strong independent advocacy.  

 
4. People with a learning disability and/or autism should be supported to live in the 

community with support from and for their families/carers as well as paid 
support and care staff – with training made available for families/carers, support 
and respite for families/carers, alternative short term accommodation for people to 
use briefly in a time of crisis, and paid care and support staff trained and 
experienced in supporting people who display behaviour that challenges.  

 
5. People should have a choice about where and with whom they live – with a choice 

of housing including small-scale supported living, and the offer of settled 
accommodation. 

 
6. People should get good care and support from mainstream NHS services, using 

NICE guidelines and quality standards – with Annual Health Checks for all those 
over the age of 14, Health Action Plans, Hospital Passports where appropriate, 
liaison workers in universal services to help them meet the needs of patients with 
a learning disability and/or autism, and schemes to ensure universal services are 
meeting the needs of people with a learning disability and/or autism (such as 
quality checker schemes and use of the Green Light Toolkit).  

 
7. People with a learning disability and/or autism should be able to access specialist 

health and social care support in the community – via integrated specialist 
multi-disciplinary health and social care teams, with that support available on an 
intensive 24/7 basis when necessary.  

 
8. When necessary, people should be able to get support to stay out of trouble – 

with reasonable adjustments made to universal services aimed at reducing or 
preventing anti-social or ‘offending’ behaviour, liaison and diversion schemes in 
the criminal justice system, and a community forensic health and care function to 
support people who may pose a risk to others in the community.  

 
9. When necessary, when their health needs cannot be met in the community, they 

should be able to access high-quality assessment and treatment in a hospital 
setting, staying no longer than they need to, with pre-admission checks to ensure 
hospital care is the right solution and discharge planning starting from the point of 
admission or before.    

Page 42



      
   

Classification: Official 

26 
 

 

P
age 43



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

27 
 

 

Reduced need for inpatient services 
 
3.13 With the right set of services in place in the community, the need for inpatient 

care will significantly reduce, and commissioners will need to have in place far 
less hospital capacity.  

 
3.14 We will support local commissioners to plan exactly what inpatient capacity 

they do need, starting with a set of national planning assumptions. Those 
planning assumptions are that by March 2019, no area should need more 
inpatient capacity than is necessary at any one time to cater to:  
 

 10-15 inpatients in CCG-commissioned beds (such as those in 
assessment and treatment units) per million population  

 20-25 inpatients in NHS England-commissioned beds (such as those in 
low-, medium- or high-secure units) per million population  

 
3.15 In some local areas, use of beds will be lower than these planning 

assumptions, and we will encourage those local areas to see if they can go 
still further in supporting people out of hospital settings above and beyond the 
these initial planning assumptions. 

 
3.16 These planning assumptions are based on what fast track areas have told us 

they believe is possible, ‘sense-checked’ against current geographical 
variation in usage of inpatient services (see figures 2 and 3 below). 

 
3.17 These planning assumptions (10-15 inpatients in CCG-commissioned beds 

per million population; 20-25 inpatients in NHS England-commissioned beds 
per million population) would translate to closing, at a minimum:  
 

 45-65% of CCG-commissioned inpatient capacity (such as assessment 
and treatment units)  

 25-40% of NHS-England- commissioned inpatient capacity (such as 
secure services, where we expect the bulk of change to occur in low-
secure provision) 

 
3.18 Taken together, that means closing, at a minimum, between 35% - 50% of 

inpatient provision nationally.  In some areas more reliant on hospital care the 
change will be even more significant, as the following map and charts 
illustrate. 

 
 

  

Page 44



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

28 
 

 

Figure 10: Reduction in bed usage (%) implied by national planning 
assumptions, by proposed transforming care partnerships14  
 
 

 

                                            
14 Upper and lower planning assumptions have been applied to current inpatient 
rates at a transforming care partnership level.  The map shows the % reduction in 
inpatient numbers represented by the midpoint between the projected upper and 
lower rates for each partnership. See Annex C for further notes on the data used in 
these charts 

% Reduction in inpatient numbers

60 - 70%

50 - 60%

40 - 50%

30 - 40%

20 - 30%

Less than 20%

Page 45



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

29 
 

 

Figure 11: Geographical variation in reliance on CCG-commissioned inpatient 
services (as at 31 July 2015), shown against new national planning 
assumptions by proposed transforming care partnership15  

  

                                            
15 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Wiltshire and Swindon

Cornwall

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest

Somerset and North Somerset

Bradford

Leeds

London South West

Sussex

Gloucestershire

Dorset

Cambridge and Peterborough

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

Oxfordshire

Surrey

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Nene and Corby

Buckinghamshire

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Knowsley

Shropshire

Lincolnshire

London North, Central & East

Kent and Medway

Norfolk

London North West

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

Devon

Leicestershire

Essex

Hertfordshire

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

London South East

Coventry, Rugby, South Warwickshire & Warwickshire North

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

Lancashire

Berkshire

Greater Manchester

Derbyshire

Suffolk

North Yorkshire

Staffordshire

Nottinghamshire

East Riding & Hull

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

Black Country

Hereford

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Cumbria and NE

Walsall

Current CCG-commissioned inpatients per million

Upper Planning Assumption

Lower Planning Assumption

Page 46



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

30 
 

 

Figure 12: Geographical variation in reliance on NHS England-commissioned 
inpatient services (as at 31 July 2015), shown against new national planning 
assumptions by proposed transforming care partnership16  

 
 

                                            
16 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Suffolk

Buckinghamshire

Essex

Wiltshire and Swindon

Surrey

Dorset

Oxfordshire

Somerset and North Somerset

Devon

Norfolk

London North West

Berkshire

London South East

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Cornwall

Sussex

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

London South West

Cambridge and Peterborough

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Knowsley

Gloucestershire

Leicestershire

Hertfordshire

Lincolnshire

London North, Central & East

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

Nene and Corby

Bradford

Hereford

Leeds

Greater Manchester

Derbyshire

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest

North Yorkshire

Kent and Medway

Staffordshire

Nottinghamshire

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

Walsall

East Riding & Hull

Coventry, Rugby, South Warwickshire & Warwickshire North

Cumbria and NE

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

Lancashire

Shropshire

Black Country

Current NHS England-commissioned inpatients per million

Upper Planning Assumption

Lower Planning Assumption

Page 47



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

31 
 

 

Figure 13: Reductions in usage (%) of CCG-commissioned inpatient services 
implied by national planning assumptions by proposed transforming care 
partnership17  

 

                                            
17 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

-90.0% -80.0% -70.0% -60.0% -50.0% -40.0% -30.0% -20.0% -10.0% 0.0%

Walsall

Cumbria and NE

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Hereford

Black Country

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

East Riding & Hull

Nottinghamshire

Staffordshire

North Yorkshire

Suffolk

Derbyshire

Greater Manchester

Berkshire

Lancashire

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

Coventry, Rugby, South Warwickshire & Warwickshire North

London South East

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

Hertfordshire

Essex

Leicestershire

Devon

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

London North West

Norfolk

Kent and Medway

London North, Central & East

Lincolnshire

Shropshire

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Knowsley

Buckinghamshire

Nene and Corby

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Surrey

Oxfordshire

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

Cambridge and Peterborough

Dorset

Gloucestershire

Sussex

London South West

Leeds

Bradford

Somerset and North Somerset

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest

Wiltshire and Swindon

Cornwall

% Reduction - Upper Planning Assumption % Reduction - Lower Planning Assumption

Page 48



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

32 
 

 

Figure 14: Reductions in usage (%) of NHS England-commissioned inpatient 
services implied by national planning assumptions by transforming care 
partnership18   

 

                                            
18 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

-80.0% -70.0% -60.0% -50.0% -40.0% -30.0% -20.0% -10.0% 0.0%

Black Country

Shropshire

Lancashire

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

Cumbria and NE

Coventry, Rugby, South Warwickshire & Warwickshire North

East Riding & Hull

Walsall

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

Nottinghamshire

Staffordshire

Kent and Medway

North Yorkshire

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest

Derbyshire

Greater Manchester

Leeds

Hereford

Bradford

Nene and Corby

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

London North, Central & East

Lincolnshire

Hertfordshire

Leicestershire

Gloucestershire

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Knowsley

Cambridge and Peterborough

London South West

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Norfolk

Essex

Wiltshire and Swindon

Somerset and North Somerset

Cornwall

Devon

Sussex

Surrey

Oxfordshire

Berkshire

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Dorset

London North West

London South East

Buckinghamshire

Suffolk

% Reductions in usage of NHSE-commissioned inpatient 
services implied by national planning assumptions 

% Reduction - Upper Planning Assumption % Reduction - Lower Planning Assumption

Page 49



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

33 
 

 

Figure 15: Reductions in total usage (%) of inpatient services implied by 
national planning assumptions by proposed transforming care partnership19  

 
                                            
19 See Annex C for further notes on the data used in these charts 

-80.0% -70.0% -60.0% -50.0% -40.0% -30.0% -20.0% -10.0% 0.0%

Black Country

Suffolk

Walsall

Cumbria and NE

East Riding & Hull

Lancashire

Nottinghamshire

Shropshire

Staffordshire

Hereford

Coventry, Rugby, South Warwickshire & Warwickshire North

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

North Yorkshire

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

Derbyshire

Greater Manchester

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

Kent and Medway

Essex

Berkshire

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

London South East

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

Hertfordshire

Devon

Nene and Corby

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest

Leeds

Buckinghamshire

Leicestershire

London North West

Bradford

Norfolk

London North, Central & East

Lincolnshire

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Knowsley

Surrey

Oxfordshire

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

Dorset

Gloucestershire

Cambridge and Peterborough

London South West

Sussex

Somerset and North Somerset

Cornwall

% Reduction - Upper Planning Assumption % Reduction - Lower Planning Assumption

Page 50



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

34 
 

 

 
3.19 These national planning assumptions should be seen as articulating a 

minimum ambition for the coming three years - not a target that, once met, 
renders the task complete.  
 

3.20 These assumptions are exactly what the term implies – assumptions for local 
commissioners to use as they enter into a detailed process of planning. Local 
planning needs to be creative and ambitious based on a strong understanding 
of the needs and aspirations of people with a learning disability and/or autism, 
their families and carers, and on expert advice from clinicians, providers and 
others. The starting point for service planning should be to think creatively 
about what support would help people to live the best possible life, as 
opposed to making marginal change to the set of services we have currently – 
and we will support people with lived experience, clinicians, providers and 
other experts to work with commissioners and help them think ambitiously and 
creatively in that way. 
 

3.21 In parallel to these planning assumptions, for the inpatient provision that 
remains we will work with clinicians, providers and commissioners to reduce 
the period of time that people spend in hospital, building on and spreading 
best practice – for instance, Hertfordshire’s fast track plan aims to help reduce 
length of stay in assessment and treatment services to an average of 85 days. 
We will also use Care and Treatment Reviews (CTRs) to this end: if someone 
is still in hospital after six months a mandatory CTR will take place, and 
people in hospital will also have a right to request a CTR.  
 

3.22 The planning assumptions articulated here should not be seen as describing 
an ‘end state’ after which services can be set in aspic. We will always want to 
improve the services and support we make available to people with a learning 
disability and/or autism. So before the end of 2018, having built up community 
support and closed hundreds of beds, we will take stock and look at going 
further with the development of community support and the closure of 
inpatient services.  
 

3.23 The immediate task now, however, is to start delivering the ambitious 
changes set out above. What follows is our plan for doing that.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 51



      
      

      
 

Classification: Official 

35 
 

 

4. Working together to provide new services 
 
Transforming care partnerships 
 
4.1 To deliver the change outlined in the previous chapter, and following what we 

have learned from the fast tracks, NHS commissioners, in discussion with 
local government, are mobilising transforming care partnerships –
collaborations of CCGs, local authorities and NHS England specialised 
commissioners.  
 

4.2 Currently the approach to commissioning services for people with a learning 
disability and/or autism is fractured, with responsibility split between local 
authorities, CCGs and NHS England. It can be difficult to move funding from 
one agency to another, to enable the commissioning of less inpatient care and 
more preventative, community-based services and support. Furthermore, 
many CCGs will be commissioning for a small number of people with a 
learning disability and/or autism, making it difficult to take a strategic approach 
to changing services across the system. Hospitals caring for this group of 
patients will often be commissioned by a large number of CCGs and NHS 
England, so that it is difficult for one commissioner to work with those 
providers to change the services they offer.  
 

4.3 The new transforming care partnerships, currently mobilising, are intended to 
help address these weaknesses in commissioning arrangements. They will 
bring together the commissioners responsible for funding health and social 
care for people with a learning disability and/or autism (CCGs, local 
authorities with their responsibilities for care and housing, NHS England 
specialised commissioning), with their budgets aligned or pooled as 
appropriate. Figure 16 below and Annex A set out  further details on how 
CCGs propose to cluster together in order to work with local authorities and 
NHS England specialised commissioning hubs in these new partnerships. We 
expect all CCGs in England to have finished these arrangements by 
December 2015. 

 
4.4 Transforming care partnerships will be supported to work alongside people 

who have experience using these services, as well as their families/carers, 
clinicians, providers and other stakeholders to formulate and implement joint 
transformation plans – closing some inpatient provision and shifting 
investment into support in the community. 

 
4.5 They will bring commissioners together at a scale larger than most CCGs and 

many local authorities, with their geographical footprint based on:   
 

• Building where possible on existing collaborative commissioning 
arrangements (e.g. joint purchasing arrangements amongst CCGs, joint 
commissioning arrangements between CCGs and local authorities)  

• Local health economies of services for people with a learning disability 
and/or autism (e.g. patient flows, the provider landscape, and relationships 
between commissioners and providers). Where, for instance, a number of 
CCGs tend to use the same hospital provider for inpatient services for 

Page 52



      
      

      
 

Classification: Official 

36 
 

 

people with a learning disability and/or autism, it makes sense for those 
CCGs to implement change collaboratively  

• Commissioning at sufficient scale to manage risk, develop commissioning 
expertise and commission strategically for a relatively small number of 
individuals whose packages of care can be very expensive   

 
The challenge  
 
4.6 Each Transforming Care Partnership will be supported to improve outcomes 

for people with a learning disability and/or autism – both those currently in 
inpatient services (of whom there are approximately 2,600 nationally) and 
those in the community at risk of being admitted to hospital without the right 
support (of whom there are an estimated 24,000 nationally20).   

 
4.7 We will support local transforming care partnerships to make progress on 

three outcomes: 
 
• Reduced reliance on inpatient services (closing hospital services and 

strengthening support in the community)  
• Improved quality of life for people in inpatient and community settings 
• Improved quality of care for people in inpatient and community settings 
 

4.8 People with a learning disability and/or autism as well as their families/carers 
should be supported to co-produce these plans. The change we need to see 
is as much about a shift in power as it is about service reconfiguration, and 
that should be reflected not just in the new services and support put in place 
(where for instance the national service model calls for the expansion of 
personal health budgets and high-quality independent advocacy), but in the 
way service changes are planned and delivered.  

 
4.9 We will expect transforming care partnerships to tailor their approach based 

on local context, but in a way that is consistent with national parameters - in 
particular, the national service model and minimum planning assumptions on 
inpatient capacity outlined in chapter 3. 

   
4.10 This work will also need to align with a number of other national priorities, 

such as: 
 

• Local Transformation Plans for Children and Young People’s Health                         
and Wellbeing 

• Local action plans under the Mental Health Crisis Concordat 
• The ‘local offer’ for personal health budgets, and Integrated Personal 

Commissioning (combining health and social care)   
• Work to implement the Autism Act 2009 and recently refreshed                         

statutory guidance 
• The roll out of education, health and care plans  

                                            
20 K. Lowe et al, Challenging Behaviours: prevalence and topographies. Journal of 
Intellectual Disability Research, 51, 625–636 (2007). 

Page 53



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

37 
 

 

Figure 16 – Proposed transforming care partnerships  

  

Transforming Care Partnerships

South Worcestershire, Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre Forest (Fast Track)

Hereford (Fast Track)

Coventry, Rugby, South Warw ickshire & Warw ickshire North (Fast Track)

Birmingham Cross City, Birmingham South Central & Solihull

Walsall

Black Country

Derbyshire

Nottinghamshire (Fast Track)

Suffolk

Norfolk

Cambridge and Peterborough

Essex

Bedford, Luton and Milton Keynes

Hertfordshire (Fast Track)

Nene and Corby

Lincolnshire

Leicestershire

Shropshire

Staffordshire

Gloucestershire

Wiltshire and Sw indon

Bristol, Bane and South Gloucestershire

Somerset and North Somerset

Cornw all

Devon

Kent and Medw ay

Sussex

Surrey

Oxfordshire

Buckinghamshire

Berkshire

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

Dorset

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, Know sley

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & Formby

Greater Manchester (Fast Track)

Lancashire (Fast Track)

Cumbria and NE (Fast Track)

North Yorkshire

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, Huddersfield & Calderdale

Bradford

Leeds

Sheffield, Doncaster, Rotherham, N Lincs

East Riding & Hull

London North West

London North, Central & East

London South East

London South West

Page 54



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

38 
 

 

Supporting local areas  
 
4.11 NHS England, LGA and ADASS will support transforming care partnerships 

through the different stages of their journey in planning for and implementing 
change.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mobilisation 

4.12 Local areas will need to have a solid foundation upon which to base 
transformation, including strong leadership and sound governance, 
engagement and commitment to joint working amongst a complex range of 
stakeholders.  

 
4.13 As with the fast track areas, we envisage all transforming care partnerships 

having a single Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) responsible for the 
development and delivery of this work.  

 
4.14 Transforming care partnerships will need to engage with and involve a broad 

range of people, including: all the CCGs; NHS England specialised 
commissioners; local authorities, including those commissioners responsible 
for adult and children’s social care, education, housing and safeguarding; 
people with a learning disability and/or autism, their families/carers; clinicians; 
third-sector organisations; the police and those responsible for the criminal 
justice system; and relevant Local Education and Training Boards.  

   
4.15 We will support local commissioners in this phase to mobilise the necessary 

project management resource, governance arrangements and partnership 
working across the range of organisations who need to be involved.  

 
Understanding the starting point 

4.16 Transforming care partnerships will need to base their plans on a strong 
understanding of: the population they are seeking to achieve better outcomes 
for (both current inpatients and those in the community at risk of admission 
without the right support); how much money CCGs, local authorities and NHS 
England specialised commissioners are currently spending on health and care 
for that population; which providers are delivering what services for that 
spend; and how the system is currently performing, its strengths and 
weaknesses.   

 
4.17 In addition to the above areas will need to understand the estate and housing 

requirements to implement their plans, and establish whether there are 

Page 55



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

39 
 

 

available capital receipts which could be recycled as part of this programme – 
including those relating to the estimated 2,000 properties used by councils or 
social landlords to provide housing or care to people with a learning disability 
but under an NHS charge.  
 

4.18 NHS England, LGA and ADASS will provide data and access to subject 
matter experts to support local commissioners to understand the strengths 
and weaknesses of existing local services.  
 

Developing a vision for the future and designing a future model of care 

4.19 We will support local commissioners to develop a shared vision of how 
services will change, in line with the national service model.  

 
4.20 NHS England, LGA and ADASS will support local areas with independent 

facilitation to bring local stakeholders together to design a jointly-owned future 
model of care. We will also support commissioners to access a range of 
experts, such as people with a learning disability and/or autism and their 
family carers who are ‘experts by experience’, clinicians, people with 
experience of person-centred planning - and integrated personal budgets -  
and providers of innovative community care and support.  

 
Implementation planning  

4.21 Local commissioners will need to draw up a road map for implementation, 
covering issues such as finance, workforce development, market 
development, or changes to estates.  

 
4.22 NHS England, LGA and ADASS will provide technical expertise to support 

local areas with implementation planning. Building on the review process 
developed for assuring fast track plans and in alignment with the process for 
assuring CCGs’ annual plans, local implementation plans will be reviewed and 
challenged by a range of stakeholders including people with a learning 
disability and/or autism, their families/carers, clinicians and commissioners 
from other areas.  

 
Delivery  

4.23 We expect local transforming care partnerships to have drawn up robust 
implementation plans and be delivering against them from 1 April 2016.  

 
4.24 A cross-sector alliance of organisations will support these transforming care 

partnerships to deliver on this ambitious agenda.  
 
4.25 Working alongside local commissioners, NHS England, LGA and ADASS will 

work with providers and their representative bodies to rapidly mobilise new 
housing and care services in the community. This work will focus on 
supporting providers to:      

 

 Support commissioners to redesign services, including through advice on 
commissioning plans and market development, expertise on legal 
frameworks (such as the Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty 

Page 56



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

40 
 

 

Safeguards [DoLS]), and supporting individuals and families to design 
person-centred packages of support  

 Deliver appropriate community-based services at scale, including through 
joint work between social care providers and providers of clinical services, 
and developing local responses to emergencies 

 Train the local workforce within and beyond their organisations (e.g. 
through PBS training) 

 Access the investment needed to expand and improve their offer at pace, 
including potentially through social investors 

 Secure the capital required to deliver high-quality housing in community 
settings, including through potential social investment solutions such as 
charity bond issues (see case study below) 

 

Case study – Retail Charity Bonds  

In 2014, the first charity bond to be listed on the London Stock Exchange’s Order 
Book for Retail Bonds was launched.  

The bond, which raised £11 million to fund accommodation for people with a learning 
disability, was so oversubscribed it closed its offer period two and half weeks early. 

The bond was launched by Retail Charity Bond plc and the funds have been used by 
Golden Lane Housing, the national charity which provides housing for people with a 
learning disability, to invest in buying and adapting much-needed community based 
housing across the country for over 100 people with a learning disability.  

 
4.26 Alongside this work with providers to mobilise new services and housing in 

the community, we will explore the establishment of a national collaborative 
improvement programme (co-ordinating peer-learning and shared problem-
solving between local areas), and a national accelerated support team able to 
work intensively with local areas with the biggest challenges and/or struggling 
to make progress. 

 
4.27 HEE, Skills for Health and Skills for Care will collaborate to support the 

development of an appropriately skilled workforce to build the capacity to 
support people in the community. As far as possible, this will include working 
to support current inpatient staff to develop skills to work in the community. 
Every transforming care partnership will have a lead HEE contact to support 
them with planning and delivering workforce change. That lead contact will 
help them access relevant tools (such as competency frameworks), funding 
streams and training (for example leadership development or training to 
support staff in mainstream services to understand the needs of people with a 
learning disability and/or autism). Annex B sets out some of these resources 
in more detail. 

 
4.28 NHS England, Monitor and the TDA will work together to support hospitals 

proactively to shift their business models, increasingly offering NHS 
assessment and treatment services in the community.  

 

Page 57



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

41 
 

 

4.29 We will work with the CQC, Monitor, the TDA and local commissioners to 
ensure that inpatient units are only closed when people living in those units 
are supported to move in an appropriate and timely way to high quality 
services that can meet their needs. The CQC is also undertaking work to 
review their fundamental standards against the service model.  When 
regulating active services (or those seeking registration) these fundamental 
standards will be used and robust action taken if services are not compatible 
with these and therefore the new service model.  
 

4.30 We will review governance arrangements for the Transforming Care 
programme at a national level to ensure it reflects this alliance of 
organisations supporting local areas to deliver.  
 

Monitoring progress  

 
4.31 Nationally, we will monitor progress on delivery against the overarching 

outcomes we expect transformation to achieve, namely:    
 

 Reduced reliance on inpatient services (closing hospital services and 
strengthening support in the community) 

 Improved quality of life for people in inpatient and community settings 

 Improved quality of care for people in inpatient and community settings 
 

4.32 Reduced reliance on inpatient services will be monitored using Assuring 
Transformation data,21 and from January 2016 the Mental Health Services 
Single Data Set22 (MHSDS), incorporating data from the Learning Disabilities 
Census and Assuring Transformation dataset.  

 
4.33 We will explore with transforming care partnerships an appropriate way to 

monitor improvements in quality of life, but are minded to support areas to roll-
out use of the Health Equality Framework tool23 to monitor quality of life. In 
particular, we are considering how to support the use of this tool to 
understand changes to quality of life as people are supported to move out of 
inpatient services. 

 

4.34 We will support the development of a basket of indicators to monitor 
improvements in quality of care, aligned with the newly developed service 
model. This basket of indicators will, as far as possible, be based on existing 
data sources currently collected in the NHS and social care.   
 

4.35 Furthermore, as part of the role out of the CTRs across the NHS, NHS 
England will work with system partners on introducing a metric for measuring 
the outcomes of this process. This may involve introducing a Patient Reported 
Outcome Measure (PROM) and/or a Patient Reported Experience Measure 

                                            
21 http://www.hscic.gov.uk/article/6328/Reports-from-Assuring-Transformation-
Collection 
22 This is replacing the Mental Health and Learning Disabilities dataset 
23 http://www.ndti.org.uk/publications/other-publications/the-health-equality-
framework-and-commissioning-guide1/  

Page 58

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/qual-clin-lead/ld/atd/
http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/qual-clin-lead/ld/atd/
http://www.ndti.org.uk/publications/other-publications/the-health-equality-framework-and-commissioning-guide1/
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/article/6328/Reports-from-Assuring-Transformation-Collection
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/article/6328/Reports-from-Assuring-Transformation-Collection
http://www.ndti.org.uk/publications/other-publications/the-health-equality-framework-and-commissioning-guide1/
http://www.ndti.org.uk/publications/other-publications/the-health-equality-framework-and-commissioning-guide1/


      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

42 
 

 

(PREM). Development of this CTR outcome measure will have to involve 
people with a learning disability and/or autism, as well as their families/carers, 
clinicians, providers and commissioners to ensure it is robust and can be used 
at a national level to assess progress. 

 
4.36 We will also revise the Learning Disability Self-Assessment Framework (SAF) 

and the Autism Self-Assessment Framework so that they reflect how well 
local areas are doing in building up support in the community and closing 
inpatient services.  
 

4.37 With all the measures outlined above, it is important that people are supported 
to understand who will see their information, how their information will be used 
and make decisions about sharing their information.  People should be given 
help to do this. For those people who lack capacity, they should still be 
involved as much as possible in any decisions made in their best interests.   
 

4.38 NHS England will also support people with a learning disability to check the 
quality of services themselves, through a programme of work to establish a 
centralised system for NHS Quality Checking by people with a learning 
disability. Quality checker services train and support experts by experience to 
audit service quality. Quality checkers use their own experiences to make 
assessment on the quality of care and support, and to give a view that can be 
often missing from other forms of quality review. This entails using indicators 
of quality which people with a learning disability themselves consider to be 
relevant and important and which may therefore differ from those which have 
historically been used. Quality checkers with a learning disability will 
themselves carry out the evaluation, part of which will involve talking to 
service users about their experiences and views of the service in question. 
Evaluation of quality checking programmes show them to be an effective and 
efficient use of resources and to be associated with increases in quality and 
improved outcomes.  
 

4.39 In addition, pilot work supported by NHS England has also demonstrated the 
potential of ‘Always Events’ to strengthen the voices of people with a learning 
disability and/or autism in the quality assurance of services. 
 

4.40 Lancashire Care NHS Foundation Trust - in partnership with the Institute for 
Healthcare Improvement (IHI), the Picker Institute Europe and NHS England - 
has co-produced with people with a learning disability a set of ‘Always Events’ 
to improve the quality and consistency of transitions within and between 
services. NHS England will expand its work on ‘Always Events’, share the 
case study from Lancashire and produce a toolkit with IHI to support the 
further use of this tool in order to improve the responsiveness and 
accountability of services. 

 
  

Page 59

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/learning-disability-projects/
http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/learning-disability-projects/


      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

43 
 

 

Financial underpinnings 
 
4.41 A new financial framework will underpin and enable transformation.  

 
4.42 Local transforming care partnerships (CCGs, local authorities and NHS 

England specialised commissioning) will be asked to use the total sum of 
money they spend as a whole system on people with a learning disability 
and/or autism to deliver care in a different way to achieve better results. This 
includes shifting money from some services (such as inpatient care) into 
others (such as community health services or packages of support). The costs 
of the future model of care will therefore be met from the total current 
envelope of spend on health and social care services for people with a 
learning disability and/or autism. We estimate that the closure of inpatient 
services of the scale set out in chapter 3 will release hundreds of millions of 
pounds for investment in better support in the community. 

 
4.43 To enable that to happen, NHS England’s specialised commissioning budget 

for secure learning disability and autism services will be aligned with the new 
transforming care partnerships, and CCGs will be encouraged to pool their 
budgets with local authorities whilst recognising their continued responsibility 
for NHS Continuing Healthcare. CCGs, NHS England specialised 
commissioning and local authorities will be supported to, where appropriate, 
put in place governance and financial mechanisms to align or pool resources 
and manage financial risk. The degree of change and financial risk will 
inevitably vary across localities, and we will support local commissioners to 
base decisions on transparent, open-book discussions, focussed on achieving 
the best outcomes for the people they serve.  

 
4.44 For people who have been an inpatient for five years or more (approximately 

one third of the total inpatient population) and who are ready for discharge, we 
expect the transformational change required to be one of ‘resettlement’ out of 
hospital and into a more suitable home, as opposed to redesigning services to 
reduce the ‘revolving door’ of admissions and discharges. For this group, 
money will ‘follow the individual’ through dowries.  
 

4.45 Dowries will be paid by the NHS to local authorities for people leaving hospital 
after continuous spells in inpatient care of five years or more at the point of 
discharge. We expect that NHS England will pay for dowries when the 
inpatient is being discharged from NHS England-commissioned care, and that 
CCGs will pay for dowries when the individual is being discharged from CCG-
commissioned care. Dowries will be recurrent, will be linked to individual 
patients, and will cease on the death of the individual. An annual confirmation 
of dowry-qualifying individuals should be undertaken by local authorities and 
CCGs. Dowries are to be prospective only, and so should not be applied to 
any patients that have already been discharged. They should apply to those 
patients discharged on or after 1 April 2016, and only to those patients who 
have been in inpatient care for five years or more on 1 April 2016 (not any 
patient who reaches five years in hospital subsequent to that date). They 
should apply pro rata in the start and finish year. To ensure that the costs of 
the future model of care fit within the existing funding envelope, it is important 

Page 60



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

44 
 

 

that dowries are set at a level which is consistent with this principle. The 
absolute level of the dowry is not expected to be set nationally, but is to be left 
to local discussions which should be subject to the principles set out here. In 
addition to paying for these dowries, the NHS will continue to fund continuing 
healthcare (CHC) and relevant Section 117 aftercare. 

 
4.46 In addition, from November 2015 Who Pays guidance - determining 

responsibility for payment to providers - will be revised to facilitate swifter 
discharge from hospital of patients originating from one CCG but being 
discharged into a different local area. This will ensure continuity of care with 
responsibility remaining with one CCG rather than being passed from 
commissioner to commissioner. 

 
4.47 Transformation of this scale will entail significant transition costs, including the 

temporary double running of services as inpatient facilities continue to be 
funded whilst new community services are established.  The extent of the 
transition costs will depend on the efficiency of the bed closure programme, 
and the timing and extent of required new community investment.  We will 
work with commissioners and providers to support the closure of inpatient 
capacity and development of new community services as efficiently as 
possible, but we recognise that non-recurrent investment will still be 
necessary. To support local areas with these transitional costs and building on 
the approach tested with fast track areas, NHS England will make available 
up to £30 million of transformation funding over three years, with national 
funding conditional on match-funding from local commissioners.  
 

4.48 In addition to this, £15 million capital funding over three years will be made 
available, and NHS England will explore making further capital funding 
available following the Spending Review. 

   
4.49 As set out in the national service model, alongside these new financial 

underpinnings to enable transformation we expect to see a significant growth 
in personalised funding approaches (personal budgets, personal health 
budgets, and integrated personal budgets as well as education, health and 
care plans). Local transformation should, for instance, be aligned with existing 
requirements for CCGs to set out a ‘local offer’ on personal health budgets.  
 

4.50 In some parts of the country, local transformation plans will also need to align 
with Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC) pilots. IPC sites are currently 
testing approaches to enable people to purchase their care (including clinical 
services currently commissioned using NHS standard contracts) through 
personal budgets, combining resources from health, social care and other 
funding sources where applicable. The work these sites are undertaking 
includes linking cost and activity data across services and trialling new 
contracting and payment approaches that enable the money to be used 
differently. As IPC sites progress their work, we will support local transforming 
care partnerships to learn from them and apply the lessons to their own local 
areas.  

Page 61



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

45 
 

 

Conclusion 
 
This document started with a simple vision that people with learning disability and/or 
autism have the right to the same opportunities as anyone else to live satisfying 
valued lives and to be treated with dignity and respect.  They should have a home, 
be able to develop and maintain relationships, and get the support they need to live 
healthy, safe and fulfilling lives in the community. 
 
For all the frustration of recent years, it is a vision that we can make real. Thousands 
of people with a learning disability and/or autism are today supported in the 
community who would years ago have lived in hospitals. There is good practice 
across the country. There are thousands of people with the expertise and 
commitment to make this shift happen, from people with a learning disability and/or 
autism themselves, families/carers as well as frontline clinicians and staff. We have 
local leaders across social care, the NHS and criminal justice system ready and 
willing to take up the challenge. At a national level there is an alliance of 
organisations committed to breaking down the barriers to change, supporting local 
leaders to make a difference.  
 
Together we have an opportunity to transform thousands of lives. Together we must 
seize the day and deliver.   
 

  

Page 62



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

46 
 

 

Annex A – Proposed CCG clusters for transforming care 
partnerships  
 
This table shows how CCGs currently propose to cluster together to work with local 
authorities and NHS England specialised commissioning to build up community 
services and close inpatient provision that is no longer needed. 

 

Transforming Care 
Partnership 

Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

South Worcestershire, 
Redditch, Bromsgrove & Wyre 
Forest  
  

NHS South Worcestershire CCG 

NHS Wyre Forest CCG 

NHS Redditch and Bromsgrove CCG 

Hereford  NHS Herefordshire CCG 

Coventry, Rugby, South 
Warwickshire & Warwickshire 
North  
 

NHS Coventry and Rugby CCG 

NHS South Warwickshire CCG 

NHS Warwickshire North CCG 

Birmingham CrossCity, 
Birmingham South Central & 
Solihull 
 

NHS Birmingham CrossCity CCG 

NHS Birmingham South and Central CCG 

NHS Solihull CCG 

Walsall NHS Walsall CCG 

Black Country 
 

NHS Dudley CCG 

NHS Sandwell and West Birmingham CCG 

NHS Wolverhampton CCG 

Derbyshire 
 

NHS Erewash CCG 

NHS Southern Derbyshire CCG 

NHS Hardwick CCG 

NHS North Derbyshire CCG 

Nottinghamshire  
  

NHS Mansfield and Ashfield CCG 

NHS Bassetlaw CCG 

NHS Newark and Sherwood CCG 

NHS Nottingham City CCG 

NHS Nottingham North and East CCG 

NHS Nottingham West CCG 

NHS Rushcliffe CCG 

Suffolk 
 

NHS Ipswich and East Suffolk CCG 

NHS West Suffolk CCG 

Norfolk 
 

NHS North Norfolk CCG 

NHS Norwich CCG 

Page 63



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

47 
 

 

 
 

NHS South Norfolk CCG 

NHS West Norfolk CCG 

NHS Great Yarmouth and Waveney CCG 

Cambridge and Peterborough NHS Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG 

Essex 
 

NHS Basildon and Brentwood CCG 

NHS Castle Point and Rochford CCG 

NHS Mid Essex CCG 

NHS North East Essex CCG 

NHS Southend CCG 

NHS Thurrock CCG 

NHS West Essex CCG 

Bedford, Luton and Milton 
Keynes 
 

NHS Bedfordshire CCG 

NHS Luton CCG 

NHS Milton Keynes CCG 

Hertfordshire  
 

NHS East and North Hertfordshire CCG 

NHS Herts Valleys CCG 

Nene and Corby 
 

NHS Nene CCG 

NHS Corby CCG 

Lincolnshire 
 

NHS Lincolnshire East CCG 

NHS Lincolnshire West CCG 

NHS South Lincolnshire CCG 

NHS South West Lincolnshire CCG 

Leicestershire 
 

NHS East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG 

NHS Leicester City CCG 

NHS West Leicestershire CCG 

Shropshire 
 

NHS Shropshire CCG 

NHS Telford and Wrekin CCG 

Staffordshire 
 

NHS East Staffordshire CCG 

NHS North Staffordshire CCG 

NHS South East Staffordshire and Seisdon 
Peninsular CCG 

NHS Stafford and Surrounds CCG 

NHS Cannock Chase CCG 

NHS Stoke-on-Trent CCG 

Gloucestershire NHS Gloucestershire CCG 

Wiltshire and Swindon 
 

NHS Swindon CCG 

NHS Wiltshire CCG 

Bristol, Bane and South NHS Bristol CCG 

Page 64



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

48 
 

 

Gloucestershire 
 

NHS South Gloucestershire CCG 

NHS Bath and North East Somerset CCG 

Somerset and North Somerset 
 

NHS North Somerset CCG 

NHS Somerset CCG 

Cornwall NHS Kernow CCG 

Devon 
 

NHS North, East, West Devon CCG 

NHS South Devon and Torbay CCG 

Kent and Medway 
 

NHS Ashford CCG 

NHS Canterbury and Coastal CCG  

NHS Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley CCG 

NHS Medway CCG 

NHS South Kent Coast CCG 

NHS Swale CCG 

NHS Thanet CCG 

NHS West Kent CCG 

Sussex 
 

NHS Brighton and Hove CCG 

NHS High Weald Lewes Havens CCG 

NHS Eastbourne, Hailsham and Seaford CCG 

NHS Hastings and Rother CCG 

NHS Coastal West Sussex CCG 

NHS Crawley CCG 

NHS Horsham and Mid Sussex CCG 

Surrey 
 

NHS Guildford and Waverley CCG 

NHS North West Surrey CCG 

NHS Surrey Downs CCG 

NHS East Surrey CCG 

NHS Surrey Heath CCG 

Buckinghamshire 
 

NHS Aylesbury Vale CCG 

NHS Chiltern CCG 

Berkshire 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NHS Bracknell and Ascot CCG 

NHS Slough CCG 

NHS Windsor Ascot and Maidenhead CCG 

NHS Newbury and District CCG 

NHS North and West Reading CCG 

NHS South Reading CCG 

NHS Wokingham CCG 

Hampshire & Isle of Wight 
 

NHS North East Hampshire and Farnham CCG 

NHS North Hampshire CCG 

Page 65



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

49 
 

 

NHS Portsmouth CCG 

NHS South Eastern Hampshire CCG 

NHS Southampton CCG 

NHS West Hampshire CCG 

NHS Fareham and Gosport CCG 

NHS Isle of Wight CCG 

Dorset NHS Dorset CCG 

Wirral, Cheshire & Chester 
 

NHS Wirral CCG 

NHS West Cheshire CCG 

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG 

NHS South Cheshire CCG 

NHS Vale Royal CCG 

Halton, St Helens, Warrington, 
Knowsley 
 

NHS Halton CCG 

NHS St Helens CCG 

NHS Warrington CCG 

NHS Knowsley CCG 

Liverpool, Sefton, Southport & 
Formby 
 

NHS South Sefton CCG 

NHS Southport and Formby CCG 

NHS Liverpool CCG 

Greater Manchester  
  

NHS Bolton CCG 

NHS Bury CCG 

NHS Central Manchester CCG 

NHS Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale CCG 

NHS North Manchester CCG 

NHS Oldham CCG 

NHS Salford CCG 

NHS South Manchester CCG 

NHS Stockport CCG 

NHS Tameside and Glossop CCG 

NHS Trafford CCG 

NHS Wigan Borough CCG 

Lancashire  
  
 
 
 
 
 

NHS Blackburn with Darwen CCG 

NHS Blackpool CCG 

NHS Chorley and South Ribble CCG 

NHS East Lancashire CCG 

NHS Fylde and Wyre CCG 

NHS Greater Preston CCG 

NHS Lancashire North CCG 

Page 66



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

50 
 

 

NHS West Lancashire CCG 

Cumbria and NE  
 

NHS Cumbria CCG 

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 

NHS North Tyneside CCG 

NHS Northumberland CCG 

NHS South Tyneside CCG 

NHS Sunderland CCG 

NHS Darlington CCG 

NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
CCG 

NHS Hartlepool and Stockton-on-Tees  CCG 

NHS North Durham CCG 

NHS South Tees CCG 

North Yorkshire 
 

NHS Hambleton, Richmondshire and Whitby 
CCG 

NHS Harrogate and Rural District CCG 

NHS Scarborough and Ryedale CCG 

NHS Vale of York CCG 

Barnsley, Wakefield, Kirklees, 
Huddersfield & Calderdale 
 

NHS Barnsley CCG 

NHS Wakefield CCG 

NHS North Kirklees CCG 

NHS Greater Huddersfield CCG 

NHS Calderdale CCG 

Bradford  
  

NHS Bradford Districts CCG 

NHS Bradford City CCG 

NHS Airedale, Wharfdale and Craven CCG  

Leeds 
 

NHS Leeds North CCG 

NHS Leeds South and East CCG 

NHS Leeds West CCG 

Sheffield, Doncaster, 
Rotherham, North Lincolnshire 
 

NHS Doncaster CCG 

NHS Rotherham CCG 

NHS North East Lincolnshire CCG 

NHS North Lincolnshire CCG 

NHS Sheffield CCG 

East Riding & Hull 
 

NHS East Riding of Yorkshire CCG 

NHS Hull CCG 

London North West 
 

NHS Brent CCG 

NHS Central London CCG 

Page 67



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

51 
 

 

NHS Ealing CCG 

NHS Hammersmith and Fulham CCG 

NHS Harrow CCG 

NHS Hillingdon CCG 

NHS Hounslow CCG 

NHS West London CCG 

London North, Central & East 
 

NHS Barking and Dagenham CCG 

NHS Barnet CCG 

NHS Camden CCG 

NHS City and Hackney CCG 

NHS Enfield CCG 

NHS Haringey CCG 

NHS Havering CCG 

NHS Islington CCG 

NHS Newham CCG 

NHS Redbridge CCG 

NHS Tower Hamlets CCG 

NHS Waltham Forest CCG 

London South East 
 

NHS Bexley CCG 

NHS Bromley CCG 

NHS Greenwich CCG 

NHS Lambeth CCG 

NHS Lewisham CCG 

NHS Southwark CCG 

London South West 
 

NHS Croydon CCG 

NHS Kingston CCG 

NHS Merton CCG 

NHS Richmond CCG 

NHS Sutton CCG 

NHS Wandsworth CCG 

Oxfordshire NHS Oxfordshire CCG 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

52 
 

 

Annex B – Workforce development  
 

i. In every part of the country there are people with the skills and experience to 
deliver effective care to people with a learning disability and/or autism. These 
people can be found within health and social care and amongst the people 
with a learning disability and/or autism themselves, as well as families/carers 
that support individuals in their own home.   

 
ii. As such, an essential part of delivering each joint transformation plan relies on 

how areas can harness these skills.  
 

iii. Areas need to develop, focus and refine the skills needed to enable them to 
work in a different way. They need to manage risk efficiently and have robust 
and effective ways of intervening in crisis situations that lead to the best 
possible solutions in the least restrictive environment. 

 
iv. Each area needs to establish mechanisms to understand the skills and 

competencies that are required to support the specific needs of every 
individual.  Only then will they be able to commission a service that is flexible 
enough to care for each person and their own specific circumstances. The 
development of new and innovative approaches to supporting people will be 
reliant upon the development of a flexible and skilled workforce equipped to 
adapt and adopt new practices. This may involve commissioning new roles 
from those traditionally employed within the current provision.24 Those 
commissioned to provide such services will need to define competencies and 
skills required, assess the capability currently available within their workforce, 
and access appropriate training and development. This will include developing 
skills to deliver services across all ages in the areas of mental health, autism, 
managing behavioural problems and offending behaviour.   

 
v. HEE alongside partner organisations Skills for Care and Skills for Health will 

offer practical support with the aim to: 
 

 Equip commissioners with the tools and confidence to commission 
for workforce skills and competencies. Commissioners are an essential 
part of the workforce that needs development and support to deliver the 
new service model.  This includes enhancing existing service provision, 
creating new service models and commissioning beyond the traditional 
service boundaries, for example placing learning disability nurses in 
primary and secondary care in order to support health and care 
professionals to make better decisions. Skills for Care have developed a 
workforce commissioning model that provides a systematic way of linking 
service commissioning with workforce commissioning and financial 
strategy. This can be found here 

 
vi. There are several models for testing workforce assumptions and undertaking 

Strategic Workforce planning, including Integrated Workforce Planning 

                                            
24 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/ 
309153/Strengthening_the_commitment_one_year_on_published.pdf  

Page 69

http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/NMDS-SC-intelligence-research-and-innovation/Workforce-commissioning/Workforce-commissioning.aspx
http://www.skillsforhealth.org.uk/images/services/workforce/Workforce%20planning%20leaflet.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/%20309153/Strengthening_the_commitment_one_year_on_published.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/%20309153/Strengthening_the_commitment_one_year_on_published.pdf


      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

53 
 

 

Solutions from Skills for Health, and Skills for Care’s Workforce Capacity 
Planning guidance. 

 

 Work with existing service providers to review the skills and 
competencies within their existing workforce to identify education 
and training needs, and facilitate transition to a new way of working. 
HEE in partnership with Skills for Health have developed a skills and 
competency framework which can be utilised to undertake a training needs 
analysis of the existing workforce, and to build a competency based team 
model against which new and existing roles can be mapped. The 
framework, alongside an illustrative animated video, can be found here: 
HEE Skills & Competency Framework 

 
vii. We are in the process of developing an interactive tool to support the 

implementation and use of the competence framework. 
  
viii. The Positive Behavioural Support (PBS) Coalition have published a PBS 

Competency Framework. For ease of use, the PBS competencies have been 
mapped into the HEE Skills and Competency Framework.  

 
ix. Whilst this framework has been developed primarily for the health care 

workforce it can be utilised in a range of services. Skills for care have 
developed a strategy for the social care sector to support functional and 
employability skills (Core Skills), which impact directly on the quality of care 
and support services.  

  

 Ensure that education and training to enable the wider workforce is 
able to meet the needs of people with a learning disability in all care 
settings. Recognising that most people with a learning disability have their 
health and care needs met by mainstream health care services, HEE 
commissioned the development of education and training resources 
'Learning Disability Made Clear' that can be used by staff in a range of 
health and care settings to increase their knowledge and support how 
services can make adjustments to meet specific needs 

 
x. A suite of existing resources developed to raise awareness of the needs of 

people with autism, have been reviewed and located in one place to enable 
individuals and organisations to select the most appropriate resource for their 
needs. A marketing and promotion strategy is underway to ensure these 
resources are widely accessed by employers, employees, volunteers and 
carers across the country. These can be found here.  

  
xi. In addition to the above, work is being undertaken to develop specific learning 

disability and autism skills in the mainstream mental health workforce on 
whom we will become increasingly reliant as specialist services become more 
integrated. 
 
 

 

Page 70

http://www.skillsforhealth.org.uk/images/services/workforce/Workforce%20planning%20leaflet.pdf
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/NMDS-SC-intelligence-research-and-innovation/Workforce-commissioning/Workforce-capacity-planning/Workforce-capacity-planning.aspx
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/NMDS-SC-intelligence-research-and-innovation/Workforce-commissioning/Workforce-capacity-planning/Workforce-capacity-planning.aspx
https://hee.nhs.uk/work-programmes/mental-health-and-learning-disability/learning-disability/education-and-training-for-learning-disability-workforce/
http://pbscoalition.blogspot.co.uk/
http://pbscoalition.blogspot.co.uk/
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Skills/Core%20skills/Core-skills.aspx
http://learningdisabilitymadeclear.nhs.uk/
https://hee.nhs.uk/work-programmes/mental-health-and-learning-disability/learning-disability/education-and-training-for-the-whole-workforce/autism-awareness-learning-resources/


      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

54 
 

 

 Developing leadership capability across the system including 
commissioners, service providers and carers to promote innovation 
and change services to focus on people’s needs. HEE, Skills for Health 
and Skills for Care will coordinate access to the various provision and 
funding streams available across agencies to ensure that creative and 
innovative leadership activities are supported as part of the national 
transformation plan 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 71



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

55 
 

 

Annex C – Notes on data used in this document 

 
All modelling to produce planning assumptions and charts was based on calculating 
inpatient rates per million population. The following notes apply to all charts used in 
this document which describe projected reductions in fast track bed usage and 
current geographical variation in reliance on inpatient care across England.  
 

• All inpatient rates are based on GP registered population aged 18 and over as 
at 2013/14 

• Inpatient numbers include children under the age of 18 but these patients 
represent less than 5% of the total inpatient population 

• High secure services have been excluded (65 patients25) 
 
Data on the current position and projections for fast track areas is taken from the fast 
track plans, but projections exclude Worcestershire (part of Arden, Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire Fast Track).  
 
The data set used to calculate the current geographical variation as at 31 July 2015 
combines information on CCG-commissioned patients from the Assuring 
Transformation collection and data on NHS England-commissioned patients from 
NHS England’s Local Trackers (this includes information on the home CCG of NHS 
England-commissioned patients). This means that the presentation of inpatient data 
is based on where patients originally come from, not where their hospital is located. 
 
Assuring Transformation data is collected and published by The Health and Social 
Care Information Centre (HSCIC). All rights reserved ©2015. Assuring 
Transformation data is presented in accordance with HSCIC rules on suppressed 
data for collections involving small numbers of records. 
 
Not all NHS England-commissioned patients in the Local Tracker data could be 
matched to a CCG of origin, and these patients are therefore omitted from the 
analysis of geographical variance on a Transforming Care Partnership level.  The 
geographical analysis presented in Figures 2 and 3 assigns these patients to the 
locality of their commissioner.    

                                            
25 Number of inpatients in high secure settings suppressed in accordance with 
HSCIC rules on suppressed data for collections involving small numbers of records. 
Figure correct as at 31st July 2015. 

Page 72



      

      

      

 
Classification: Official 

56 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE  

 
 

Page 73



 

Subject: Market Oversight Report Status: Public  

Report to: Health, Schools & Care Overview 
Scrutiny Committee 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed 

Date: 4th August  2016  

Report of: Assistant Director of Commissioning  

Author Email: dianne.david@rochdale.gov.uk 

Author: Dianne David  
Tel:    01706 924438          

Comments from Statutory 
Officers:

Monitoring Officer:   
Section 151 Officer: 

Key Decision:  

1.        Purpose of report 

           For committee to consider the market oversight report which provides quality 
assurance information for services commissioned by the Adult Care service for quarter 
1 2016/17. 

Also contained within this report are the 5 key questions that CQC ask when 
undertaking an inspection, this was requested at the last committee.

2.        Recommendations

           That committee consider the content of the market oversight report and also note the 
explanation of the 5 key questions. 

3.         Reasons For Recommendations

            Adult Care commissions external provider services to deliver a range of Care services 
to adults with eligible social care needs. The Adult Care Commissioning team assures 
the quality of these services and the Care Quality Commission also regulates some of 
the services. The market oversight report presents quality assurance information on 
quarter 1 for 2016/17 for the committee to scrutinise.

4. Background

The Health, Schools and Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee have agreed the 
content of the Market Oversight report at previous meetings. This report provides the 
agreed information for quarter 1 in 2016/17. 

                     
5.        Alternatives considered  

Page 74

Agenda Item 5



           There are no alternatives needed as part of this report.

6. Financial Implications

            There are no financial implications as a result of this report. 

7. Legal Implications

            There are no known legal implications as a result of this report.

8. Personnel Implications

           There are no workforce issues as a result of this report.

9. Corporate Priorities

The council has three key priorities to help us to achieve our vision. These priorities 
direct and underpin everything we do. We have embraced public service reform to 
improve services for local people and will continue to deliver services for local people 
with co-operative values and ethics at the heart. 
Our priorities are: People, Place and Prosperity

10. Risk Assessment Implications 

             There are no risk assessment implications as a result of this report        

11. Equalities Impacts

            There are no equality issues arising as a result of this report

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 75



CQC Inspection Questions

Below are the five CQC questions asked for when services are inspected:

Are they safe? By safe, we mean that people are protected from abuse and avoidable harm.

Are they effective?
By effective, we mean that people's care, treatment and support achieves good 
outcomes, promotes a good quality of life and is based on the best available evidence.

Are they caring?
By caring, we mean that staff involve and treat people with compassion, kindness, 
dignity and respect.

Are they responsive to people's needs? By responsive, we mean that services are organised so that they meet people's needs.

Are they well-led?

By well-led, we mean that the leadership, management and governance of the 
organisation assures the delivery of high-quality person-centred care, supports 
learning and innovation, and promotes an open and fair culture.

P
age 76



Market Oversight Report  
for Quarter 1 2016-17

Page 77



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 1

The information provided below shows commissioning activity for Quarters 1 2016/17
Contents include:

 Quality Assurance Reviews 

 CQC Ratings

 Market Oversight feedback

 Satisfaction results

P
age 78



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 2

Service Providers reviewed by Quarter 2016/17 for all client groups

36 36

12

2 1

Older People Learning Disability Mental Health Physical Disability Prevention
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

Providers reviewed- Quarter 1 2016/17

Reviews broken down by In Borough & Out of Borough

 Quarter 1 (Apr-Jun)

 In 
Borough

Out of 
Borough

Older People 23 13
Learning Disability 36 -
Mental Health 12 -
Physical Disability 0 2
Prevention Services 1 -

Learning Disability, Mental Health, Physical Disability and Prevention Services do not differentiate between in borough and out of borough 
reviews. These are classed as one.

P
age 79



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 3

CQC Inspections split by individual ratings (April- June 2016) for all client groups

 In borough Out of borough
Outstanding 0 0
Good 4 11
Requires improvement 3 3
Inadequate 0 0

0

4
3

00

11

3

0

Outstanding Good Requires improvement Inadequate
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

In borough Out of borough

Overall CQC ratings Apr- Jun 16 P
age 80



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 4

CQC April- June 16

Service name Authority 
Where 

Services are 
Delivered

Overall rating Safe Effective Caring Responsive Well led

Moor Park House Limited Lancashire Good Good Good Good Good Good
Burrswood House Nursing and 
Residential Home Bury Good Good Good Good Good Good

Turning Point - Birchwood 
Nursing Home Oldham Good Good Good Good Good Good

Beechwood Lodge Rochdale Requires 
improvement

Requires 
improvement

Requires 
improvement Good Good Requires 

improvement

Ashbourne House Nursing Home Rochdale Requires 
improvement

Requires 
improvement

Requires 
improvement Good Requires 

improvement
Requires 
improvement

Premier Care Limited - Rochdale 
Branch Rochdale Requires 

improvement
Requires 
improvement Good Good Requires 

improvement Good

Goldcrest House Humberside Good Good Good Good Good Good
Brookfield Residential Care Home 
Limited Manchester Good Good Good Good Good Good

Marshmead Limited--Turfcote 
Care Home with Nursing Lancashire Requires 

improvement
Requires 
improvement Good Good Requires 

improvement
Requires 
improvement

Aspirations Care Limited Sefton Requires 
Improvement

Requires 
Improvement Good Good Good Requires 

improvement

FitzRoy Support Trafford Requires 
Improvement

Requires 
Improvement Good Good Good Requires 

Improvement
Half Acre Care Home (Radcliffe) Bury Good Good Good Good Good Good
Woodleigh (Healey Care) Lancashire Good Good Good Good Good Good
DHP Care LTD t/a Prestige 
Nursing + Care (Single Care) Rochdale Good Good Good Good Good Good

Rosedale  Rossendale Good Good Good Good Good Good

P
age 81



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 5

Rosemary Care Home Rochdale Good Requires 
improvement Good Good Good Good

Benjamin House Lancashire Good Good Good Good Good Requires 
improvement

Browfield House Bury Good Good Good Good Requires 
improvement Good

Henshaws Society for Blind 
People Harrogate  Harrogate Good Good Good Good Good Requires 

improvement
Highfield Manor Care Home Rochdale Good Good Good Good Good Good

Meavy View Rochdale Good Good Requires 
improvement Good Good GoodP

age 82



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 6

Adult Care Market Oversight feedback

Adult Care Commissioning Team record issues regarding commissioned services. A summary of the information for April to June 2016 is 
included in the table below. *Of the outstanding concerns raised, the majority are around issues with care management, missed visits, late 
visits, failure to meet care standards, missed medication, inefficient/ ineffective staff and poor service delivery. The table on page 8, gives a 
more detailed breakdown of the themes reoccurring.

COMMISSIONING TEAM 
INFORMATION

Quarter 1 
16/17

Number of complaints 
received 39

Complaints resolved 35
Outstanding complaints *4
Complaints transferred to 
other departments external 
to the    Commissioning 
team

0

Compliments to Adult Care 
Commissioning about 
providers

0

39
35

4
0

Number of complaints 
received

Complaints resolved Outstanding complaints Complaints transferred 
to other departments 

external to the    
Commissioning team

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Commissioning Complaints log

P
age 83



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 7

Looking at a snapshot of complaints from April 2015 to June 2016, it is apparent that complaints are consistently being logged. The volume of 
complaints have had little movement over the months. 

There was a considerable increase in the volume of complaints received from Quarter 2 of 2015/16, the reason for this is that processes were 
put in place to systematically log complaints sent to the Commissioning Complaints inbox which then fed into the Complaints database. 

Previous to this, minor complaints were resolved on an informal basis. The Commissioning Complaints inbox has been widely promoted as a 
point of contact within the Care Management teams; this has been a contributory factor in the increase over the months.

The vast majority of complaints logged have been domiciliary care related, with issues raised around missed visits, late visits, medication not 
given and care plans not being followed. 

The number of complaints received in each month of quarter 1 is illustrated below along with the percentage of complaints per service area:

15%
3%

74%

8%

Learning Disability
Mental Health
Older People
Physical Disability

Percentage complaints by service area

Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Complaints recieved Quarter 1 2016/17

P
age 84



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 8

The issues being raised have been investigated with care providers . Contract Managers continue to work with providers to ensure high 
standards of care provision for service users.

Reoccurring Themes  
Missed visits/ Late visits 11%
Carers 6%
Medication 3%
Incidences in the home 11%
Care Management 40%
Care Plans not followed 6%
Staffing 17%
Other 3%
Falsifying documentation 3%

4

2

1

4

14

2

6

1 1

Miss
ed vi

sit
s/ 

La
te vi

sit
s

Care
rs

Medica
tio

n

Incid
ence

s in
 th

e home

Care
 M

an
ag

ement

Care
 Plan

s n
ot fo

llo
wed

Sta
ffin

g
Other

Fa
lsif

yin
g d

ocu
mentat

ion
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Reoccurring themes- Quarter 1

P
age 85



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 9

Commissioned Provider Concerns 

Adult Care Commissioning Team collects information from providers about the concerns that they receive and manage internally. This has been 
done on an annual basis as part of the quality monitoring process. 

144 emails were sent out to providers within the Rochdale region with a response rate of 24%, 35 responses were collated, which is a reduction 
of 8 from the previous quarter. Responses are low but we will continue to aim for an increased number of responses in future reports however 
obtaining the information from providers has been very difficult. 

A summary of the information for April to June 2016 is below:

  

 PROVIDER INFORMATION Quarter 
1

Total number of complaints 
received 23

Number of complaints 
resolved 21

Number of outstanding 
complaints *2

Compliments to providers 221

*Of the 2 outstanding complaints in Quarter 1, issues have been around missed visits/ late visits and a lack of communication.

23
21

2

Total number of 
complaints 

received

Number of 
complaints 

resolved

Number of 
outstanding 
complaints

0

5

10

15

20

25

Provider Complaints information- Quarter 1 2016-
17

P
age 86



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 10

Since quarter 2, we have begun to ask providers to categorise the complaints they receive. Of the providers that have attempted to do this, the 
graph below illustrates the kind of concerns being raised:

Themes
Q2 

2015/16
Q3 

2015/16
Q4 

2015/16
Q1 

2016/17
Staff attitude 6 9 5 0
Ineffective/inefficient staff 3 6 4 1
Service change/denial 0 0 2 1
Failure to meet standards 2 1 3 0
Inadequate facilities 0 0 2 2
Lack of communication 4 3 4 4
Abuse/ill treatment 2 0 1 0
Other 6 8 5 0

6

3

0

2

0

4

2

6

9

6

0
1

0

3

0

8

5
4

2
3

2

4

1

5

0
1 1

0

2

4

0 0

Sta
ff a

tti
tude

Ineffe
cti

ve
/in

effic
ien...

Se
rvi

ce
 ch

an
ge

/d
enial

Fa
ilu

re to
 m

eet s
tan

dard
s

Inad
equate

 fa
cili

tie
s

La
ck 

of c
ommunica

tio
n

Abuse/ill
 tr

eatm
ent

Other 
0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Q2 2015/16 Q3 2015/16 Q4 2015/16 Q1 2016/17

Number of complaints recieved by type

P
age 87



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 11

Satisfaction Questionnaires Q1 2016/17 (Apr- Jun)

Questionnaires Count % response
Family 25 23%
Service User 18 16%
Staff 38 34%

25

18

38

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Family

Service User

Staff

Number of questionnaires recieved

The intelligence gained from gathering satisfaction data helps determine the Quality Assurance Officers focus for the quality assurance visits. 

P
age 88



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 12

A sample of the responses from the 15-20 questions in the Satisfaction questionnaires is illustrated in the table below. 

Service User Satisfaction % satisfied % fairly satisfied % dissatisfied

The support I get works well 78% 22% 0%

I feel safe where I live 83% 17% 0%

Staff listen to me and what I want 80% 20% 0%

The people who support me understand me 83% 17% 0%

Families Satisfaction Always Sometimes Never

The support  my family member receives works well 84% 16% 0%

My family member feels safe where they live 96% 4% 0%

Staff listen to  my family member and what they want 88% 13% 0%

I am able to be involved in developing support plans and 
reviewing them with my family member if I want to 84% 12% 4%

P
age 89



Market Oversight

www.rochdale.gov.uk 13

Staff Satisfaction Always Sometimes Never

I have access to clear records on how a client wants to be 
supported and I  consistently use this on a day to day basis and 
update this regularly

86% 14% 0%

I am part of a team which believe that people should have 
maximum choice and control in their lives, as part of a local 
community

74% 24% 3%

I can see that staff are carefully matched to people and rotas are 
personalised to all clients

62% 30% 11%

I work in a way that ensures that risk are thought through in a 
person centred way, with the person and family centrally 
involved

79% 18% 3%

I receive training and personal development in areas that I need 
to do my job

79% 11% 11%

P
age 90



Subject: School Admissions and Allocation of 
Places 2016

Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Councillor Donna Martin

Date: Thursday, 28 July 2016
 

Report of: Director of Children’s Services

Author Email:    Chris.Swift@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Author: Chris Swift

Tel: Tel: 01706925016

   PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1. Rochdale Local Authority has a statutory duty to ensure there are enough school places for 

children in its’ area who want them and to make arrangements for parents to apply for 
school places and ensure every parent in the borough receives the offer of a school place. 
The Council exercises this duty by planning for enough school places and by setting out 
clear arrangements for their allocation. 

2. The purpose of this report is to present to Health Schools Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee information on school admissions arrangements and allocation for the 2016 
Admissions round, including the Annual Report to the Schools Adjudicator. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
     School Admissions Arrangements
3. In setting admission criteria and the co-ordinated admission arrangements the Local 

Authority must comply with the statutory School Admissions Code 2014. The process for the 
September 2016 admissions round started in October 2014 with public consultation on 
proposed admission arrangements, planned admission numbers and admission criteria for 
September 2016. Following that consultation the local authority determined the admission 
arrangements at the end of February 2015 and published them on the Council website by 
15th March 2015. The current Admissions Arrangements for Rochdale Borough for 
September 2017 are set out at Appendix Five. Schools that are their own admission 
authorities must follow the same timeline to publish their admission arrangements and 
admission criteria. In September 2015 the composite admissions book was published on the 
council website and parents were able to apply for school places from then. The closing 
date for Year 7 admissions to secondary school was 31st October 2015, and 15th January 
2016 for primary schools. A glossary admissions terms is set out at Appendix One.

4. For admission to any school in September for Reception classes and Year 7, parents must 
apply through the local authority where they live, even if the school is in another area. The 
Local Authority has the responsibility for co-ordinating admissions between other local 
authorities and own admission authorities in its area. 

5. For within year admissions and transfers the local authority is not required to co-ordinate 
these with own admission authority schools. In Rochdale Borough, by agreement, the 
Authority does co-ordinate within year admission for secondary schools but not primary 
schools.

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



ALLOCATING SCHOOL PLACES- Secondary Schools
6. The table below summarises at Borough level the number of first preferences received and 

places offered on the national offer day for secondary schools in the Borough. It shows that 
on 1st March, 2374 children applied for school places and of these 2267 (95.5%) were 
allocated their first preference. There were 220 vacancies. On the offer date 59 (2.5%) 
parents were not allocated any of their preferences. There are 2696 Year 7 places in 
Rochdale Borough Secondary schools. 203  Rochdale borough parents were offered places 
at schools outside the Borough, compared to 217 in 2015. Full details at school level are set 
out in Appendix Two. 

Secondary Applications and Offers Borough Summary:
NUMBER OF PREFERENCES NUMBER OF OFFERS

PAN
1st 2nd 3rd 4th Ot

he
r

Total 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Ot
he

r

No
. N

om
ina

ted

To
tal

 O
ffe

re
d

Pl
ac

es
 Le

ft

%
 1s

t P
re

fs 
off

er
ed

2696 2374 1274 748 230 8 4634 2267 114 24 12 0 59 2476 220 95.5

ALLOCATING SCHOOL PLACES- Primary SCHOOLS
7. The table below summarises at Borough level the number of first preferences received and 

places offered on the national offer day for primary schools in the borough. It shows that on 
15th April 2016, there were 2947 first preferences expressed for Rochdale Borough primary 
schools and 2617 of these were allocated their first preference (89%). There were 241 
vacancies. 35 Rochdale Borough children were offered places at schools outside the 
Borough, compared with 67 children in 2015.  On the offer date 118 (4%) parents were not 
allocated any of their preferences. Full details at school level are set out in Appendix 
Three. 

Primary Applications and Offers Borough and Township:

 PAN
NUMBER OF 

PREFERENCES RECEIVED

Number of 
PREFERENCES 

OFFERED

      
No. 

Nom- Places Places
 % 1st 
Pref

  1st 2nd 3rd Other TOTAL 1st 2nd 3rd Other inated Offered left Offered
Heywood 445 422 251 180 0 853 354 37 6 0 18 415 30 83.9
Middleton 720 633 352 217 2 1204 582 31 3 0 14 630 90 91.9
Pennines 590 557 396 267 1 1221 475 32 9 0 39 555 35 85.3
Rochdale 1427 1335 727 550 0 2612 1206 64 24 0 47 1341 86 90.3
Borough 3182 2947 1726 1214 3 5890 2617 164 42 0 118 2941 241 88.8

LATE APPLICATIONS  and CHANGES of CHOICE
8. Late applications and changes of choice result in additional children being admitted to 

schools. Already this year an xx additional secondary places have been offered and xx 
primary places have been offered.

ANNUAL REPORT TO THE SCHOOLS ADJUDICATOR
9. Each year Local Authorities are required to submit a report on school admissions, appeals 

and Fair Access to the Office of the  Schools Adjudicator (OSA) , and to publish that report 
on the Council’s website. A copy of the OSA report for 2016 is attached as Appendix Four. 
The report covers a range of matters as set out in the following paragraphs.

Page 92



10. Admission Arrangements 2016- Paragraph 2- How the admissions arrangements have 
worked out for Looked after Children and  children with disabilities. The Authority does not 
have any difficulties or concerns to report.

11. Co-ordination of Admissions- Paragraph 3 – This section asks whether there are issues 
with the operation of both the normal admissions round and within year applications. There 
are no concerns to report with regard to the normal admissions round. However, with 
regards to within year applications some parents do report that when they approach some 
own admission authority schools to enquire about school places they are told the school is 
full, but the parent is not advised that they can still submit an application. Many own 
admission authority schools do not inform the Authority when a child leaves or is admitted, 
even though they have a duty under the School Admission Code to do so.

12. Fair Access Protocol (FAP) - Paragraph 4- This section asks for information on which 
schools did not support the FAP when it was agreed (in 2012 in Rochdale Borough). It also 
asks for information on the number of applications considered through the FAP, including 
the outcome and whether schools have been directed to admit children under the Protocol. 
The principal concern highlighted is that some schools do not readily wish to admit some 
children under the FAP.

13. Admission Appeals- Paragraph 5- This section identifies the number of own admission 
authority schools which use the Local Authority services for the independent appeals 
process. (data to follow)

14. Objections to Admission Arrangement- paragraph 6A-  This section asks for information 
on the timely submission of admission arrangements to the local authority, and whether 
there are any objections to the admission arrangements. The majority of own admission 
authority schools did not send a copy of their full  admission arrangements by 15th March as 
required by the School Admission Code. Schools had been informed 4 times before the 
required submission date of the need to comply with these requirements of the Admissions 
Code.  On 14th September  2015 a report was sent to all governing bodies on school 
admission arrangements as an item for the termly governing body meeting, and on 16th 
October 2015 specific guidance was sent to each own admission authority school on 
changes to their admission arrangements and the requirements of the  Code, and on 7th 
December 2015 all own admission authority schools were again reminded of their duties 
under the Code to notify the Local Authority of their admission arrangements and to publish 
these on their website. A final reminder was sent to schools on 10th March reminding them 
to send a copy of their admission arrangements and to publish them on the school website.

15. Fraudulent Applications- paragraph 6B- The Authority does not have a concern about 
fraudulent or potentially misleading applications. This year there have been 2 potentially 
fraudulent applications for places in primary schools. .

16. Summer-born children, deferred entry and part-time attendance- paragraph 6C-  This 
section asks for information on the number of requests for consideration for children under 
these provisions. There were X requests as follows……

17. Pupil, service and early years premium- paragraph 6D- This section asks for information 
on which schools have included a priority within their admission arrangements for eligible 
children. For community and voluntary controlled schools, the Authority introduced a priority 
for children eligible for the service premium from September 2016, following the appropriate 
consultation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 93



18. The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant.  There is currently a budget pressure in this area of £120k which 
is being met within the Service.  The cost of administering admission appeals for local 
authority maintained schools is met by the Local Authority. Academy schools receive 
funding through their funding agreement to meet the cost of administering their appeals 
panels.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Each local authority and admission authority has a statutory duty to act in accordance with 
and to ensure that it’s admission arrangements are compliant with the School Admissions 
Code and Appeals Code. These codes impose requirements and offer guidance relating to 
school admissions and appeals in all primary, secondary and middle schools.
The local Authority must submit an annual report to the Schools Adjudicator.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
19. There are no personnel implications arising from this report.

      CORPORATE PRIORITIES
20. The application of the admission arrangements will contribute to the Council Business Plan 

in ensuring an effective allocation process for school admissions.

RISK ASSESSMENT IMPLICATIONS
21. All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk considerations as 

set out below:
 the Authority must determine its Admission arrangements by  28th February each year 

and publish them on it’s website by 15th March each year to comply with  statutory 
requirements.

EQUALITIES IMPACTS
22. Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment- There are no workforce equality issues arising 

from this report.

23. Equality/Community Impact Assessments- There are no equality or community issues 
arising from this report. Where the Local Authority proposes to change existing Admissions 
Policies and arrangements an equality impact assessment would be required.

CHS 28-07-16

BACKGROUND  DOCUMENTS
Background Papers

Document Place of Inspection
School Admissions Code 2014
School Appeals Code 2012

 DfE Website

Page 94



APPENDIX ONE Glossary and definition of terms relating to school 
admissions

Academy This type of school is not maintained by the Local Authority. It is legally an independent school funded 
directly by the government. The academy Trust/Governing body is the admission  authority for the 
school. The school is subject to the admissions code

Admissions Authority This is the body responsible for deciding which pupils are admitted to a school. In Community and
Voluntary Controlled Schools, this is the LA. In Voluntary Aided and Foundation Schools, it is the 
Governing Body. In Academies and Free schools it is the Academy trust/governing body

Admissions Code This is statutory guidance on the processes to be followed in relation to school admissions and applies 
to all schools

Admission Criteria The rules used to allocate places to pupils if there are more children wanting places than there are 
places
available at a school.

Admission number This is the maximum number of places available at the school for pupils in Year 7. It can also be
described as “the number of places available” or “planned admission number”.

Admission policy These are the rules used to allocate places to pupils for a particular school if there are more children
wanting places than there are places available. These do vary between the different sorts of school.

Appeal When it is not possible to offer a place to a child in a particular school, parents have the right to submit 
an
appeal. An appeal hearing normally takes place some weeks later in front of an independent panel. 
The panel can decide  that a place should be offered above the admission number subject to Infant 
Class Size legisaltion

Appeal Panel An independent body, usually of 3 people, which hears admission appeal cases.
Community Schools The LA is responsible for admissions to these schools.
Infant Class Size The number of children in Infant classes (Reception, Year 1 and Year2) is limited by law to 30 with one 

qualified teacher.
Looked After Children 
(LAC)

The School Admissions Code states that these children must have the highest priority for admissions. 
The definition includes former LAC. The definition is in the Admissions Code Faith schools  can give 
priority to LAC of the faith over LAC not of the faith, but cannot subdivide LAC further.

Oversubscribed Where there are more pupils wanting a place than there are places available, then the school is 
oversubscribed

PAN- Published 
Admission Number

The number of places available in the school in each new year group

NOR- Number On Roll The number of children on roll at the school
Sibling Sibling refers to brother or sister, half brother or sister, adopted brother or sister, step brother or sister, 

or the child of the  parent/carer’s partner, and in every case, the child should be living in the same 
family unit at the same address. The older child must be in attendance at the school in the September 
when the younger child starts.

Special Educational 
Needs (SEN)

The School Admissions Code states that the school’s admissions criteria must clearly state that where 
the school is named in a child’s statement of special educational needs, the local authority and the 

Page 95



school have a duty to admit the child. It must not be part of the over-subscription criteria. The 
admission of SEN children where the school is named on the child’s statement cannot be conditional 
on the school’s approval. 

Statement of SEN/ 
Education Health and 
Care Plan

A small number of children have special educational needs (SEN). In some cases, a formal document
is prepared to describe their needs and what help should be provided. The document is now called the 
Education Health and Care Plan. There are different application and appeal procedures for pupils with 
a Plan (or statement).

Voluntary Aided (VA) 
Schools

These are mainly linked to a particular Church or parishes. They are also referred to as Faith Schools. 
The Governing body is responsible for decision on admissions. In Rochdale borough these are either 
Roman Catholic (RC) or Church of England (CE) schools, although there is one joint RC/CE secondary 
school.

Voluntary Controlled 
(VC) Schools

These are mainly linked to a particular Church or parish. They are also referred to as Faith Schools. 
The Local Authority is responsible for decision on admissions. In Rochdale borough these are Church 
of England schools, although there is one joint CE/Methodist primary school.

APPENDIX TWO SECONDARY  Preferences and Offers at Offer Day 
March 2016

NUMBER OF PREFERENCES NUMBER OF OFFERS

SCHOOL PAN
1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Ot
he

r

Total 1st 2nd 3rd 4th

Ot
he

r

No
. N

om
in

at
ed

To
ta

l O
ffe

re
d

Pl
ac

es
 L

ef
t

%
 1s

t P
re

fs
 o

ffe
re

d

Cardinal Langley RC 210 205 124 75 15 1 420 202 8 0 0 0 0 210 0 98.5
Falinge Park 240 234 101 72 35 0 442 231 8 0 1 0 0 240 0 98.7
Hollingworth Acad 270 305 207 84 31 1 628 261 6 3 0 0 0 270 0 85.6
Holy Family RC/CE 136 179 67 11 11 0 268 135 1 0 0 0 0 136 0 75.4
Kingsway Park 240 197 99 94 20 0 410 197 2 1 0 0 6 206 34 100
Matthew Moss 180 130 85 64 28 0 307 130 2 1 0 0 5 138 42 100
Middleton Tech Sch 270 254 107 58 10 5 434 251 11 4 4 0 0 270 0 98.8
Oulder Hill 300 252 171 91 29 0 543 252 21 6 5 0 16 300 0 100
Siddal Moor 210 118 76 44 8 0 246 118 14 1 0 0 24 157 53 100
St Anne's CE Acad 160 113 53 53 6 0 225 113 8 0 0 0 6 127 33 100
St Cuthbert's RC 240 156 80 51 15 1 303 156 17 5 2 0 2 182 58 100
Wardle Academy 240 231 104 51 22 0 408 221 16 3 0 0 0 240 0 95.7
TOTALS 2696 2374 1274 748 230 8 4634 2267 114 24 12 0 59 2476 220 95.5

Page 96



APPENDIX THREE PRIMARY  Preferences and Offers at Offer Day April 2016

 PAN
NUMBER OF 

PREFERENCES RECEIVED

Number of 
PREFERENCES 

OFFERED

      
No. 

Nom- Places Places
 % 1st 
Pref

  1st 2nd 3rd Other TOTAL 1st 2nd 3rd Other inated Offered left Offered
HEYWOOD               
Heap Bridge CP 25 30 14 15 0 59 23 1 1 0 0 25 0 76.7
Woodland CP 60 50 16 10 0 76 50 5 1 0 4 60 0 100
St Margaret's CE 30 33 18 9 0 60 28 2 0 0 0 30 0 84.8
Harwood Park CP 60 25 6 8 0 39 25 1 0 0 11 37 23 100
All Souls' CE 30 35 55 26 0 116 25 5 0 0 0 30 0 71.4
St Luke's CE 60 55 38 35 0 128 48 10 2 0 0 60 0 87.3
Hopwood CP 60 90 28 19 0 137 59 1 0 0 0 60 0 65.6
St Michael's CE B,ford 30 34 33 32 0 99 28 2 0 0 0 30 0 82.4
OurLady&St Paul's RC 30 30 18 6 0 54 28 2 0 0 0 30 0 93.3
St Joseph's RC 60 40 25 20 0 85 40 8 2 0 3 53 7 100
TOTAL 445 422 251 180 0 853 354 37 6 0 18 415 30 83.9
MIDDLETON  
Boarshaw CP 60 25 7 6 0 38 25 0 0 0 1 26 34 100
Bowlee Park CP 120 88 29 12 0 129 88 2 0 0 5 95 25 100
Hollin CP 60 31 22 8 0 61 31 4 0 0 1 36 24 100
Parkfield CP 30 30 29 22 0 81 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 96.7
Little Heaton CE 30 32 5 1 0 38 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 90.6
Middleton Parish CE 60 49 37 29 0 115 49 5 0 0 5 59 1 100
St John Fisher RC 30 23 23 21 0 67 23 0 1 0 0 24 6 100
St Mary's RC Langley 60 71 22 7 0 100 60 0 0 0 0 60 0 84.5
St Peter's RC 45 53 50 27 0 130 41 4 0 0 0 45 0 77.4
St Thomas More RC 45 54 44 17 2 117 45 0 0 0 0 45 0 83.3
Alkrington CP 60 49 25 30 0 104 49 9 2 0 0 60 0 100
Elm Wood CP 60 53 32 10 0 95 53 5 0 0 2 60 0 100

Page 97



St Gabriel's CE 30 39 10 4 0 53 30 0 0 0 0 30 0 76.9
St Michael's CE Alk 30 36 17 23 0 76 30 0 0 0 0 30 0 83.3
TOTAL 720 633 352 217 2 1204 582 31 3 0 14 630 90 91.9

 PAN
NUMBER OF 

PREFERENCES RECEIVED

Number of 
PREFERENCES 

OFFERED

      
No. 

Nom- Places Places
 % 1st 
Pref

  1st 2nd 3rd Other TOTAL 1st 2nd 3rd Other inated Offered left Offered
PENNINES               
Littleborough CP 60 38 18 22 0 78 38 2 1 0 16 57 3 100
Stansfield Hall CE/Meth 20 22 6 5 0 33 18 1 1 0 0 20 0 81.8
Holy Trinity CE 30 51 45 19 0 115 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 56.9
St Mary's RC L,boro 30 29 22 15 0 66 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 100
St Andrew's CE 45 60 47 30 0 137 39 6 0 0 0 45 0 65
Smithy Bridge Found 60 57 52 52 0 161 50 7 3 0 0 60 0 87.7
St James CE 30 39 25 15 0 79 29 0 1 0 0 30 0 74.4
Hamer CP 45 52 41 23 0 116 44 1 0 0 0 45 0 84.6
Kentmere Acad 45 30 22 4 0 56 30 5 1 0 9 45 0 100
Alice Ingham RC 24 18 8 7 0 33 18 2 0 0 4 24 0 100
Moorhouse CP 60 29 5 7 0 41 29 0 1 0 10 40 20 100
Newhey CP 45 38 33 23 0 94 37 2 1 0 0 40 5 97.4
Milnrow Parish CE 30 27 17 16 1 61 27 3 0 0 0 30 0 100
St Thomas CE 21 13 19 12 0 44 13 1 0 0 0 14 7 100
Crossgates Foundation 45 54 36 17 0 107 45 0 0 0 0 45 0 83.3
TOTAL 590 557 396 267 1 1221 475 32 9 0 39 555 35 85.3

Page 98



 PAN
NUMBER OF 

PREFERENCES RECEIVED

Number of 
PREFERENCES 

OFFERED

      
No. 

Nom- Places Places
 % 1st 
Pref

  1st 2nd 3rd Other TOTAL 1st 2nd 3rd Other inated Offered left Offered
ROCHDALE               
Bamford Academy 45 39 21 28 0 88 38 6 1 0 0 45 0 97.4
Whittaker Moss CP 45 50 42 50 0 142 40 5 0 0 0 45 0 80
Norden CP 60 54 38 56 0 148 44 8 8 0 0 60 0 81.5
Caldershaw CP 30 67 73 38 0 178 30 0 0 0 0 30 0 44.8
Meanwood CP 60 45 11 9 0 65 45 2 2 0 8 57 3 100
Spotland CP 60 49 8 4 0 61 49 0 0 0 6 55 5 100
St Vincent's RC 60 58 31 12 0 101 55 5 0 0 0 60 0 94.8
Shawclough CP 60 46 30 20 0 96 46 6 4 0 1 57 3 100
Healey Foundation 30 27 29 25 0 81 24 4 2 0 0 30 0 88.9
Greenbank CP 60 41 26 28 0 95 41 1 0 0 1 43 17 100
All Saints CE 30 36 33 21 0 90 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 80.6
St Patrick's RC 45 52 31 26 0 109 42 2 1 0 0 45 0 80.8
Heybrook CP 90 63 22 18 0 103 63 1 2 0 9 75 15 100
Belfield CP 45 53 14 16 0 83 43 1 1 0 0 45 0 81.1
Broadfield CP 60 50 8 8 0 66 50 1 0 0 2 53 7 100
Deeplish Primary Acad 60 47 27 16 0 90 47 1 0 0 7 55 5 100
St John's RC 45 36 9 9 0 54 36 1 0 0 4 41 4 100
Lowerplace CP 60 65 58 23 0 146 59 1 0 0 0 60 0 90.8
St Peter's CE 60 63 22 11 0 96 60 0 0 0 0 60 0 95.2
Brimrod CP 30 16 13 8 0 37 16 0 0 0 5 21 9 100
Marland Hill CP 60 58 21 21 0 100 58 0 2 0 0 60 0 100
Ashfield Valley CP 30 35 17 9 0 61 30 0 0 0 0 30 0 85.7
Sandbrook CP 90 81 31 21 0 133 81 3 0 0 1 85 5 100
St Mary's CE 30 25 16 12 0 53 25 1 0 0 0 26 4 100
St Gabriel's RC 30 22 13 13 0 48 22 5 0 0 2 29 1 100
Holy Family RC 30 22 13 10 0 45 22 0 0 0 1 23 7 100

Page 99



Castleton CP 30 22 27 13 0 62 22 7 1 0 0 30 0 100
St Edward's CE 52 69 20 5 0 94 52 0 0 0 0 52 0 75.4
St John's CE T,ham 10 8 9 3 0 20 8 1 0 0 0 9 1 100
Sacred Heart RC 30 36 14 17 0 67 29 1 0 0 0 30 0 80.6
Total 1427 1335 727 550 0 2612 1206 64 24 0 47 1341 86 90.3

…………………………………… Appendix Three ends……………………………………

Page 100



1 of 17

LOCAL AUTHORITY REPORT

TO

THE SCHOOLS ADJUDICATOR

FROM

Rochdale Local Authority

30 JUNE 2016

Report Cleared by (Name): Gail Hopper
                                

  (Title): Director of Children's Services

Date submitted: DRAFT at 19-07-16

By (Name): Peter Speers

        (Title): School Organisation and Development Manager

Contact email address: peter.speers@rochdale.gov.uk

Telephone number: 01706 92

www.gov.uk/government/organisations/office-of-the-schools-adjudicator

Please email your completed report to: osa.team@osa.gsi.gov.uk

Page 101

http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/office-of-the-schools-adjudicator
http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/office-of-the-schools-adjudicator
mailto:osa.team@osa.gsi.gov.uk


2 of 17

Introduction

1. Section 88P of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 requires 
Local Authorities to make an annual report to the adjudicator.

2. The School Admissions Code (the Code) at paragraph 6 sets out the 
requirements for reports by local authorities.  Paragraph 3.23 specifies what 
must be included as a minimum in the report to the adjudicator and makes 
provision for the local authority to include any other local issues.

3. There are other matters concerning admissions, some suggested by 
local authorities themselves, about which it would be useful to have a view.  
Rather than undertake a separate exercise in which information is sought from 
local authorities, you are asked to include any relevant information in your 
report to the adjudicator.   

Completing the Template

This template is designed to be completed electronically - boxes will 
expand as necessary.  Please note that we will contact you if any data 
boxes have not been completed.  However if there are any blank 
comment boxes we will presume that you have no comments to make.  

Throughout this report, please include middle deemed primary schools 
as for pupils up to age 11 and middle deemed secondary schools as for 
pupils over 11.  For schools that have children of primary and secondary 
age and are not designated as a middle school please record them as all-
through schools.

Where a type of school is given, foundation covers foundation schools 
and foundation schools with a foundation (trust schools).  Academy 
schools should be recorded by the individual type of academy school, 
namely, academy, free school, UTC or studio school.

1. Local Authority school numbers

Please give the total number of schools by type within your local authority as at 
30 June 2016.

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Community 30 5 0
Voluntary Controlled 9 0 0
Voluntary Aided 23 3 0
Foundation 4 1 0
Academy 3 3 0
Free School 0 0 0
UTC N/A 0 0
Studio School N/A 0 0

Page 102



3 of 17

2. Admission Arrangements for Admissions in September 
2016

The Code at paragraph 3.23 requires that each local authority provides 
“information about how admission arrangements in the area of the local 
authority serve the interests of looked after children and previously looked after 
children, children with disabilities and children with special educational needs, 
including any details of where problems have arisen”.
 
Please include details of: 

1. Any ways in which each of the following groups of children have been 
especially well served; and

2. Any difficulties that have arisen for each group of children while 
allocating places for admission in September 2016.  

(a) How well are the interests of looked after children served?

Tick as appropriate: Fully  In part  Not satisfactorily  

Comments:  There have been no problems with the allocation process for this 
group in either the primary or the secondary sector. There is close liaison 
between the Admissions Team and the Virtual Head Teacher for Cared for 
Children (LAC) allowing efficient response to the meeting of school place 
needs. Members of the Admissions Team have inputted into training for Social 
Workers to appraise them of relevant procedures. 

(b) How well are the interests of previously looked after children served?

Tick as appropriate: Fully  In part  Not satisfactorily  

Comments:  
There have been no problems with the allocation process for this group in 
either the primary or the secondary sector. There was an issue where the 
status of a child was not identifed in time to alert priority of status.

(c) How well are the interests of children with disabilities served?

Tick as appropriate: Fully  In part  Not satisfactorily  

Comments:  
Secondary Sector- there have been no problems with the allocation process 
for this group with regard to the secondary sector.

Primary Sector- - In the main there are no problems for this group although 
occasionally issues arise in relation to accessibility for some children; the 

Page 103



4 of 17

Local Authority works closely with receiving schools to address and overcome 
these and meet parental preference.

(d) How well served are children who have special educational needs 
and who have a statement of special needs that names a school (or 
an education health and care plan?

Tick as appropriate: Fully  In part  Not satisfactorily  

Comments:  
There have been no problems with the allocation process for this group in 
either the primary or the secondary sector where a school is already named in 
a statement.
Very occasionally issues can arise when the statement process concludes 
after the allocation date and parents request a school to be named in a 
statement which they have not received via the allocation process.

(e) How well served are those children who have special needs, but do 
not have a statement?  

Tick as appropriate: Fully  In part  Not satisfactorily  

Comments:  
Some problems have arisen in the primary  sector, where a child's needs 
have not been appropraitely flagged up to enable appropriate provision.

There have been no problems with the allocation process for this group in  the 
secondary sector.

3. Co-ordination of admissions

A) During the normal admissions round

Please assess the effectiveness of co-ordination of primary and secondary 
admissions for September 2016 in your local authority, highlighting any 
particular strengths in the process or any problems that have arisen.

Primary

(a) How well has the operation of national offer day worked for primary 
admissions this year compared with previous years?

Tick as appropriate:   Better   The same   Less well   
 
Comments:  More checks on addresses have been implemented- the 
Authority is more confident with the accuarcy of the allocation process . There 
were fewer localised pressures- in one township area four schools  were 
grossly oversubscribed as a result of demographic growth and parental 

Page 104



5 of 17

preference. Steps taken last year to increase capacity at one of the schools 
has ameliorated this.

Secondary

(b) How well has the operation of national offer day worked for secondary 
admissions this year compared with previous years?

Tick as appropriate: Better  The same  Less well   

Comments:       

(c) If you have any UTCs or studio schools in your area, do you co-ordinate 
admissions for entry at the relevant year group for entry to these 
schools?

Tick as appropriate: Yes No           N/A 

If YES, please comment on how well the admissions process is working for 
these schools:       

If NO, do you have any evidence about how well the admission process 
is working for individual UTCs or studio schools?  

Tick as appropriate: Yes No 

If YES, please comment:       

B) In-year admissions

The Code sets out that in-year admissions  do not have to be co-ordinated by 
the local authority.

(a) How many pupils have needed a school place because they do not 
have one or because parents have applied for a place as an in-year 
admission for any other reason between 1 September 2015 and 15 
June 2016?

Number of pupils up to 
age 11

Number of pupils over 
age 11

Number of post-16 
students 

1124 
within year applications all 
Rochdale Borough children 
have been offered a school 

place.

493 
within year applications. 

All Rochdle Borough 
children have been 

offered a school place

no information 
available

(b) Does your local authority co-ordinate in-year admissions for all, some or 

Page 105



6 of 17

none of the schools in your area?

Tick as appropriate: All     Some    None  

If ‘Some’, please complete the table below as appropriate

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Community 30 5 n/a
Voluntary Controlled 9 n/a n/a
Voluntary Aided 0 3 n/a
Foundation 0 1 n/a
Academy 0 3 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

(c) Do you have any information about how many schools parents might 
approach before obtaining a place?  Please comment on any issues 
that have come to your attention.

Comments:  
Anecdotally- some parents report that they have approached some own 
admisison authority schools, to be told they are full, but parents are not invited 
to submit an application. 

(d) How confident are you that the requirements of the Code at paragraph 
2.22, for schools to keep the local authority informed in a timely manner 
about applications and the outcomes, are being met?  (If you co-
ordinate all admissions for all schools then please tick not applicable.)

Tick as appropriate: 

Very confident Confident    Not confident  Not applicable 

(e) Across your local authority, how well have in-year admissions worked 
this year?

Tick as appropriate: Better than last year     The same as last year 
  Less well than last year 

(f) Please comment on the effectiveness overall of in-year admission 
arrangements across all types of schools in your local authority.

Comments:  Secondary schools- all agreed that LA should continue to co-
ordinate within-year applications. We do not get information from own 
admission authority primary schools on applications received or the outcome. 
Anecdotally  a number of parents have approached us after being told by an 

Page 106



7 of 17

own admission authority school that they are full. Sometimes that is the case 
but sometimes not. Some schools are not treating enquiries as applications, 
nor are they telling parents they can apply for a place even though the year 
group is full. Generally within year applications have been processed and 
allocations made in better timeframes than last year.

4. Fair Access Protocol

The Code at paragraph 3.9 requires each local authority to have agreed a Fair 
Access Protocol with the majority of schools in its area.  Paragraph 3.11 of the 
Code requires that all admission authorities must participate in the Fair Access 
Protocol.

(a) Please confirm that your local authority has a Fair Access Protocol that 
has been agreed with the majority of schools in your area.

Tick as appropriate: Yes  No  

If NO, please explain:        

(b) Although a majority of schools, and perhaps all, will have agreed the 
Fair Access Protocol, some may not have done so.  Please state how 
many schools have not agreed your Fair Access Protocol.

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Community 1 0 n/a
Voluntary Controlled 1 0 n/a
Voluntary Aided 1 0 n/a
Foundation 0 0 n/a
Academy 0 0 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

(c) Where schools did not agree the Fair Access Protocol, please say why 
they did not agree.

Comments:  
Boarshaw CP
The governing body minute (15th October 2012) was :
Resolved: that the governing body do not approve the Fair Access Protocol.

St.Lukes CE VC  Feb 2012: ( as received)
After due consideration it was resolved:
That the Governing Body does not support the implementation of the fair 

Page 107



8 of 17

access protocol due to the following points:
a) That the protocol states that the 'LA must ensure that no school - including 
those with available places- is asked to take a disproportionate number of 
children who have been excluded from other schools or who have challenging 
behaviour' (section 5).
Governors felt that as St Luke's has large concentrations of vulnerable pupils 
with special educational needs in certain year groups that this definition 
should be expanded upon to include this group as admitting a pupil with 
challenging behaviour into such a class could be extremely detrimental to the 
welfare and education of these pupils. This point would also apply to section 7 
in the document. 
Governors feel that this is supported by the protocol's own aims in section 2.1 
which states that it aims to' acknowledge the real need of vulnerabkle 
children...to be placed appropriately'.  Although section 5.5 mentions LAC and 
SEN pupils, governors felt that this was not explicit within the document and 
open to too much interpretation. 
Governors also noted section 6.3 which states that 3 primary school 
headteachers would sit on the panel in rotation. It was felt by governors that 
heads from other local schools (e.g. within the geographical cluster) should 
not make decisions on admissions for other local schools as there could be 
potentially be a conflict of interests between the proposed placement school 
and potential impact upon their own school should this placement not be 
suitable. Governors felt that the panel should consist of headteachers from 
other clusters. 
Governors felt that if such changes were made they would be happy to 
endorse the protocol.

St.Thomas More RC VA
The governing body  minute on 17th October 2012 was:
Resolved: that the governing body discussed at length the Fair Access 
Protocol and agreed to consider further and forward to the clerk their views 
before the end of the Autumn Term. On 28th November the LA was informed 
by the clerk that the governors have agreed not to accept the Fair Access 
Protocol.

(d) (i) Please give your assessment of how well your Fair Access Protocol      
has worked in the academic year 2015/16 in placing children without 
a school place in schools in a timely manner.

Tick as appropriate: Very well   Mostly well   Some difficulties 

(ii) What is your general assessment of the working of the protocol 
compared with last year? 

Tick as appropriate: More effective   As effective    Less effective 

(iii) How frequently has the protocol been used to place a child 
compared with last year? 

Tick as appropriate: More frequently  Same frequency  Less frequently 

Page 108



9 of 17

(e) Have you any examples of particularly effective collaboration and 
working with individual schools, for example, placing children in year 6 
of a primary school or years 10 and 11 of a secondary school?  

Tick as appropriate: Yes  No  

Comments:  
There have been examples from some schools at, including those that 
manage their own admissions, where the school is reluctant to accept Hard-
to-Place children. Generally, when the process is explained to those schools, 
they are more receptive and have admitted the child.  

(f) Have you had  specific problems in allocating a place through the 
protocol, for example, where a school has been reluctant to accept a 
child?

Tick as appropriate: Yes  No  

Comments:  There   have been several schools that have been particularly 
supportive of the process who have been overly accommodating and willing to 
admit a high number of Hard-to-Place children in comparison to other schools 
in their locality. The Authority has placed a number of Year 6 and Year 11 
children and both primary and secondary schools have been supportive, 
welcoming and inclusive and have admitted children in a timely manner.
The Borough considers all Hard to PLace children through the Fair Access 
Panel- and the data in (g) below reflects the number of applications 
considered through the Panel.

(g) How many children have been admitted under the protocol to each type 
of school in your area?  How many children have been refused 
admission to a school?

Number of children 
admitted

Number of children 
refused admission

Type of School
Schools 

for 
pupils 
up to 

age 11

Schools 
for 

pupils 
over age 

11

All- 
through 
schools

Schools 
for 

pupils 
up to 

age 11

Schools 
for 

pupils 
over 

age 11

All- 
through 
schools

Community 174 65 n/a 0 0 n/a
Voluntary Controlled 27 0 n/a 0 0 n/a
Voluntary Aided 22 11 n/a 0 0 n/a
Foundation 4 16 n/a 0 0 n/a
Academy 4 22 n/a 0 0 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a N/A n/a n/a

(h) If children have not been placed successfully in a school through the 

Page 109



10 of 17

protocol, have you used the direction process to provide a place for a 
child?

Tick as appropriate: Yes  No  N/A 

(i) If YES, how many children have been placed and in which type of 
school as a result of a direction, including a direction via the EFA on 
behalf of the Secretary of State or after a referral to the Adjudicator?

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Community                
Voluntary Controlled                
Voluntary Aided                
Foundation                
Academy                
Free School                
UTC N/A           
Studio School N/A           

(j) Please add any other relevant information you wish to include in 
sections g - i concerning Fair Access Protocols.

Comments:       

5. Admission Appeals

The Code requires data to be collected about appeals.  In order to meet this 
requirement the DfE will use the latest published Statistical First Release: 
admission appeals for maintained and academy primary and secondary 
schools in England.

Taking into account comments reported in 2014, and data gathered for the first 
time in 2015, in response to the invitation to “add any comments about the 
appeals process in your area”, it would be helpful to  gather views once again  
across all local authorities on the extent to which schools that are their own 
admission authority continue to use local authority services for admission 
appeals.

(a) Do any own admission authority schools use any of your services as 
part of the appeals process?

Tick as appropriate: Yes  No  

(b) If yes, please indicate the number of schools that use at least some of 
your services

Page 110



11 of 17

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Voluntary Aided 23 3 n/a
Foundation 4 1 n/a
Academy 3 3 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

(c) Please indicate the services that are used :

Type of School
Schools for 
pupils up to 
age 11(Y/N)

Schools for 
pupils over 
age 11 (Y/N)

All- through 
schools (Y/N)

Full appeals process Y Y n/a
Legal advice N N n/a
Assistance in the 
preparation and 
presentation of case 
documentation

Y Y n/a

(d) Please add any other service related to appeals obtained from your 
local authority

Comment:       

(e) Please add comments about any aspects of the appeals process in your 
area that work well or that cause difficulties, as appropriate.

 
Comment:       

6. Other Issues

A. Objections to admission arrangements

Paragraph 3.2 in the Code says “local authorities must refer an objection to 
the Schools Adjudicator if they are of the view or suspect that the admission 
arrangements that have been determined by other admission authorities are 
unlawful”.  

(a) How many sets of admission arrangements of schools were queried 
directly by your local authority with schools that are their own admission 
authority because they were considered not to comply with the Code? 

Page 111



12 of 17

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Voluntary Aided 0 0 n/a
Foundation 0 0 n/a
Academy 0 0 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

(b) How confident are you that own admission authority admission 
arrangements are now fully compliant with the Code?

Tick as appropriate:  Very confident   Confident   Not confident 

(c) How many schools did not send you a copy of their full admission 
arrangements, including any supplementary information form (or any 
such form by  another name, for example, religious inquiry form) if one 
is used, by 15 March, as required by paragraph 1.47 of the Code?

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Voluntary Aided 18 0 n/a
Foundation 3 1 n/a
Academy 1 2 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

B. Fraudulent applications

(a) Is there any concern in your local authority about fraudulent 
applications?

Tick as appropriate: Yes No 

(b) Did your local authority make any offers on national offer days that were 
subsequently withdrawn as a result of a fraudulent application? 

Tick as appropriate: Yes No 

(c) If YES, how many for each type of school?

Type of School
Number of 
Schools for 
pupils up to 

age 11

Number of 
Schools for 
pupils over 

age 11

Number of all- 
through 
schools

Community 1 0 n/a

Page 112



13 of 17

Voluntary Controlled 0 0 n/a
Voluntary Aided 0 0 n/a
Foundation 1 0 n/a
Academy 0 0 n/a
Free School n/a n/a n/a
UTC N/A n/a n/a
Studio School N/A n/a n/a

(d) What action is your LA taking to prevent fraudulent applications?

Comment:  The Authority continues to monitor address information including 
checking addresses provided on application forms against those held on our 
central pupil database, and directly challenging parents about any 
discrepancy. This approach results in the correct address or details being 
used in considering the application so reducung the number of potentially 
fraudulent or misleading applications.

C. Summer-born children, deferred entry and part-time attendance

The DfE issued revised guidance in December 2014 “Advice on the admission 
on summer-born children” for local authorities, school admission authorities 
and parents (Link to Guidance).  The  Code at paragraph 2.16 deals with 
deferred entry and/or part-time attendance for children in the year they reach 
compulsory school age.  Paragraph 2.17, 2.17A and 2.17B refer to the 
admission of children outside their normal age group.

(a) Do you keep data for any schools on the number of requests from 
parents who ask that their child is admitted to a class outside their 
normal age group? 

Tick as appropriate: Yes No 

(i) For community and voluntary controlled schools:      Yes   No 

(ii) For own admission authority schools:  Yes   No 

If YES in answer to (a) above, please complete the tables:

Type of 
School

In 2015, how many requests for deferred 
admission to year R in 2016 were agreed for a 

child who will have reached the normal age 
for Year 1?

Community 
& Voluntary 
Controlled

0

Own 
Admission 
Authority

0

Page 113

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/summer-born-children-school-admission


14 of 17

Type of School
How many requests to 

defer admission to year R 
in 2016 were received? 

How many of those 
requests were 

subsequently agreed?
Community & 
Voluntary 
Controlled

1 0

Own Admission 
Authority 2 0

(b) What reasons, if known, were given for seeking to defer the admission 
to year R of  children for a full school year?

Comments:  
Foundation School- Child had no previous experiencen of pre-school 
provision and had significant language and developmental delays. Once 
introduced to nursery, the child quickly narrowed the gap between self and 
peers. The parent accepted that deferred admission might be beneficial  in the 
short term, but detrimental  overall.

Voluntary Aided school- Advice given by the LA to the school and the parent 
with regard to the reasons for and evidence that might support an application. 
No formal reason given, but the request to delay did not materialise.

Community School-Thre was some question about the reasons for the 
developmental delay and the consideration around delaying entry. The child 
had a medical issue and time was sought to manage/control the medical 
condition and to subsequently assess the child further. There was therefore 
no supporting evidence that could verify whether deferred admisison was 
appropriate and in the child's interests.  

(c) Do you have any other comments on the matter of admission of 
summer-born children, including requests to delay admissions made 
after the allocation of places in the normal admissions round?

Comments:       

(d) Do you have any comments about  paragraph 2.16c) in the Code 
concerning the offer and/or take-up of part-time attendance by children 
below compulsory school age?

Comments:  Schools need clarity on the funding arrangements for children 
under compulsory school age who are attending part-time in Reception 
classes

D. Pupil, service and early years premium

The 2014 Code permits all schools to give priority for admission in 2016 to 
children eligible for the pupil, service or early years premium (paragraphs 

Page 114



15 of 17

1.39A and 1.39B).  If admission authorities wish to introduce such a priority 
they must have consulted as required by the Code in paragraphs 1.42-1.45.

(a) Pupil and service premium

In respect of community and voluntary controlled schools:

Type of School

Has the LA 
considered 

giving priority 
to 

pupil/service 
premium?

(Y/N)

If YES, have 
you consulted 

on this?
(Y/N)

In response to 
consultation 

has the priority 
been 

implemented? 
(Y/N)

Community Primary Y Y Y
Voluntary Controlled 
Primary Y Y Y

Community 
Secondary Y Y Y

Voluntary Controlled 
Secondary Y Y Y

Comments:  As part of the Borough's commitment to the Armed Forces 
Covenant the there was full public consultation on the initorduction of a priority 
( above proximity) for children eligible for the Service Premium. This has now 
been introduced. 

In respect of own admission authority schools:

Type of School

Has the LA been 
consulted by any 
own admission 

authority of the type 
shown below on 
giving priority to 

pupil/service 
premium?

(Y/N)

If YES in response 
to consultation, 
for how many 

schools has the 
priority been 

implemented?
(Please give the 

number)
Voluntary Aided Primary N      
Foundation Primary N      
Academy Primary N      
Free School Primary N/A      
Voluntary Aided Secondary N      
Foundation Secondary N      
Academy Secondary N      
Free School Secondary N/A      
UTC N/A N/A
Studio School           

Comments:       

Page 115



16 of 17

(b) Early years pupil premium - nursery priority

In respect of community and voluntary controlled schools:

Type of School

Has the LA 
considered 

giving priority 
to early years 

pupil 
premium?

(Y/N)

If YES, have 
you consulted 

on this?
(Y/N)

In response to 
consultation 

has the priority 
been 

implemented? 
(Y/N)

Community Primary N           
Voluntary Controlled 
Primary N           

Comments:       

In respect of own admission authority schools:

Type of School

Has the LA been 
consulted by any own 
admission authority of 

the type shown below on 
giving priority to early 
years pupil premium?

(Y/N)

If YES in response 
to consultation, 
for how many 

schools has the 
priority been 

implemented?
(Please give the 

number)
Voluntary Aided Primary N      
Foundation Primary N      
Academy Primary N      
Free School Primary N      

Comments:       

E. Local Authority Issues

Please provide details of any other issues that you would like to raise and/or 
comment on that have not been already covered in this report.

Comments:   In respecty of admissions for children with special needs and 
disabililties, each year there is a  mismatch between the timeline for assessing 
children of nursery age in the year before they start school and the admission 
timeline, with a closing date of 15th January for applications.  

Page 116



17 of 17

Thank you for completing this report

Please email your completed report to: osa.team@osa.gsi.gov.uk

Page 117

mailto:osa.team@osa.gsi.gov.uk


APPENDIX FIVE ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS 2017

Admission Policy for Community &  
Voluntary Controlled Schools 2017

APPENDIX ONE

INTRODUCTON
1. The Local Authority is required to determine the ‘relevant area’ for admissions.  As with previous 

years, it is proposed that the relevant area will be the area covered by the Borough itself.

2. Schools are reminded that in all cases, places will be allocated in line with this policy.  For within year 
admissions, where a year group is not up to the Planned Admission Number (PAN), pupils will be 
admitted. 

3. Every attempt will be made to meet parents’ first preferences.  Where that is not possible, a place will 
be allocated at the highest ranked school possible.  

CHILDREN WITH STATEMENTS OF SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS or EDUCATION HEALTH and 
CARE PLAN
4. Where pupils have a Statement of Special Educational Needs or an Education, Health and Care Plan 

that names a specific school, the Local Authority has a statutory duty to admit those pupils. This 
means that children with such a Statement of Special Educational Needs will be allocated a place 
before any other places are allocated.

CRITERIA FOR THE ALLOCATION OF PLACES
5. The policy of Rochdale LA is to admit pupils, on demand, up to a school’s Published Admission 

Number. Where there are more applications for a school than there are places available, places will 
be allocated giving priority to pupils in the following order:

(i) Looked After Children  (Children in care to a Local Authority ):
Children who are in public care ( “Looked After” children as defined by section 22(1) of the Children Act 
1989), or children who were previously looked after but ceased to be so because they became adopted 
or became subject to a  child arrangement order or special guardianship order.

(ii) Children with exceptional medical needs  or  exceptional welfare considerations which are 
directly relevant to the school concerned:
Exceptional medical needs must be supported at the time of application by a letter from a GP, hospital 
consultant or other medical professional indicating how a pupil’s medical condition relates to the 
school preference. On receipt of the medical certificates/letters the case will be referred to the Service 
Director for consideration. You should note that providing evidence does not automatically mean that 
a place will be allocated under this priority.

Exceptional welfare considerations ( such as children at risk) must be supported  at the time of the 
application by a letter from a supporting agency (e.g. Social Worker, Family Support Worker, 
Education Welfare Officer) indicating how the circumstances relate to the school preference. On 
receipt of such a letter and evidence the case will be referred to the Service Director for consideration. 
You should note that providing evidence does not automatically mean that a place will be allocated 
under this priority.

This criteria will consider issues relevant to the child and/or the family in line with the Equalities Act 
2010. If exceptional medical or exceptional welfare grounds are claimed after the allocation procedure 
has been completed, it might not be possible to allocate a place under this priority.

Page 118



(iii) Children with an older sibling attending the school at the time of admission.
A sibling is defined as a brother or sister, step-brother or step-sister, and half- brother or half sister. A 
sibling must be living at the same address and not be a cousin or other relative. You may only claim 
this priority if your child has an older sibling who will be in attendance at the school in September 
2017. 

(iv) For Voluntary Controlled schools only- evidence of Church affiliation for children who have 
strong Church connections:
In the case of Voluntary Controlled Primary schools, priority can be claimed on religious grounds if 
evidence is provided to show that the family and the child are active worshipping members at the 
church to which the school is affiliated. Active worshipping members of the church will be those who 
worship at least once a month over a period of a year prior to the closing date for applications. This 
should be in the form of a supporting letter from the Minister of the parent’s church submitted at the 
time of the application.

Note: Should the number of children falling into the first three categories above exceed the Published 
Admission Number, Category (vi) will be used as a tie-breaker.

(v) Children eligible for the service premium.
Children eligible for admission under this priority are those where:
*  one of their parents is serving in the regular armed forces;
*  one of their parents served in the regular armed forces in the last 3 years;
*  one of their parents died while serving in the armed forces and the pupil is in receipt of a  pension 
   under  the Armed Forces Compensation Scheme (AFCS) and the War Pensions Scheme (WPS).

(vi) Proximity and ease of Access - where you live.
Once places have been allocated using criteria (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v), any remaining places are 
allocated on the basis of relative proximity and ease of access to the school but also other schools 
nearby.

Distance will be determined by measuring the shortest, suitable walking distance to the preferred 
school and deducting the shortest suitable walking distance to the nearest or next nearest alternative 
school. This figure will give the difference in distance that one child would have to travel compared to 
another, and so establish a priority ranking. This will mean that those living furthest from an 
alternative school will have priority for their nearest school. The nearest/next nearest school will 
include all community, voluntary controlled, foundation and academy schools whether in the Borough 
or not. 

In the event of a tie break situation, priority will be given to the child who has the longer journey to the 
nearest/next nearest school. If after this it is still not possible to decide on who should be offered the 
place then any final place will be decided by the drawing of lots.

It should be noted that in looking at ease of access bus routes are not used. Nationally, the suitable 
walking distance for primary age children up to 8 is up to 2 miles and for children over 8 it is up to 3 
miles, with the assumption that the journey can be undertaken on foot, accompanied as necessary. 
Walking routes are deemed to be along recognised lit, paved routes which, in general, are overlooked 
by houses and as such are likely to be relatively safe to walk. Unlit, unmade-up shortcuts are not taken 
into account in calculating walking distances, even if they are public rights of way.

Walking distances are measured using a computerised mapping system which uses the Ordnance 
Survey integrated network to measure from the centre point of the child’s home to the main gate of 
the school applied to, and to the nearest/next nearest school. In the event of a tie-break within a block 
of flats, those living furthest from the communal entrance will be given priority.

Page 119



6. Allocation of places to Twins 
Where a single place remains at a school and the application being considered is for twins or children 
from multiple births or same year group siblings the Local Authority will allocate above the Published 
Admission Number to accommodate each child.

7. Deferred entry to school
All children are entitled to a full-time place in the September following their fourth birthday. 
Parents can defer the date their child is admitted to school until later in the school year, but 
not beyond the point at which they reach compulsory school age, or for children born 
between 1st April and 31st August, not beyond the beginning of the final term of the school 
year  for which the offer is made. Where parents wish, children may attend part-time until 
later in the school year, but not beyond the point at which they reach compulsory school age.

8. Admission of children outside their normal age group
In some special cases, parents can request that their child is placed outside their normal age 
group. Where parents of a child born between 1st April and 31st August choose not to send 
their child to school until September following their fifth birthday they may request that they 
are admitted  out of their normal age group- that is to Reception rather than Year 1. The 
Local Authority will take decisions on any such requests on the circumstances of each case. 
This will include taking account of the parent’s views, information about the  child’s 
academic, social and emotional development and whether they have previously been 
educated outside their normal age group. The Local Authority will take into account the views 
of the headteacher of the school concerned.

9. Children of UK Service Personnel 
Families of UK service personnel are subject to frequent movement within the UK and from abroad, 
often at relatively short notice. A school place can be allocated in advance of the confirmed posting, 
even if there is uncertainty about the exact future address. Infant age children admitted outside the 
normal on round are excepted pupils under the infant class size regulations.

For the children of armed forces families and crown servants returning to the UK or the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough at the end of their service, a school place can be allocated in advance of their 
return, even if there is uncertainty about the exact future address and the child is not yet in the UK. 
The place can be held open until the family arrive in the UK or return to the area, and usually until 
the start of the following term, but could be longer in particular circumstances.

……………………..……………………… Appendix One ends……………………..…………………………..…

Page 120



CO-ORDINATED ADMISSION SCHEME for 
ROCHDALE LOCAL AUTHORITY MAINTAINED 
SECONDARY SCHOOLS 2017-18

APPENDIX TWO

        Introduction
1. Rochdale Local Authority operates a co-ordinated admissions scheme. The scheme requires 

that all parents living in the Borough apply for a place at a maintained school either inside 
or outside the Borough on a common application form to Rochdale Local Authority. 
Independent Schools are not included in the co-ordinated scheme.

2. Rochdale Local Authority, as the admissions authority for community high schools in 
Rochdale, will be responsible for determining who is allocated a place at these schools in 
accordance with the Local Authority’s published admissions policy.

3. For Foundation, Voluntary Aided schools and Academies, the Governing Body of the school 
is the admissions authority and as such will be responsible for determining the allocation of 
places at the school in accordance with its published admission policy. Where a school 
converts to academy status before September 2017, the existing published admission 
criteria for such schools will continue to apply.

4. For schools maintained by neighbouring Local Authorities, (Bury, Calderdale, Lancashire, 
Manchester and Oldham), the relevant admissions authority i.e. the Local Authority or the 
school’s Governing Body will be responsible for determining who is allocated a place.

Application Process
5. The parents/carers of all Year 6 pupils resident in the Borough will be requested to apply 

for a maintained high school place to Rochdale Local Authority, their home authority. 
Parents are recommended to apply on-line as soon as possible from 1st September. 
Applications can also be made by paper application form, obtainable from the Local 
Authority. 

6. All parents/carers will be requested to state up to four preferences on a standard Common 
Application Form. Most Voluntary Aided Schools require supplementary information to that 
contained on the Common Application Form. In such cases the Governing Body will request 
this information. Parents will be able to state reasons for their preferences.

7. A copy of the information booklet and Common Application Form will be made available on 
Rochdale Council’s web site by 1st September 2016. An admission pack, including a 
“Transferring to High School” information booklet and the common application form, will 
be available from the Local Authority on request.

8. Rochdale residents should complete the on-line form or return the completed Common 
Application Form to Rochdale Local Authority or their current Rochdale Local Authority 
primary school no later than 31st October 2016. If schools receive forms by mistake they 
should inform the maintaining Local Authority in order to ensure that the LA receives a 
completed Common Application Form.

9. All preferences for Rochdale Local Authority maintained community secondary schools will 
be treated equally and where possible parents/carers will be offered their highest ranked 
preference. Parents/Carers who want to express a preference for a Voluntary Aided, 
Foundation school or Academy, or a school maintained by another authority will be advised 
in the Transfer to Secondary School booklet to check the ranking policy with the 
appropriate school or local authority.

Page 121



Processing Applications
10. Rochdale Local Authority will notify other LAs of preferences for their schools by 14th 

November 2016. The relevant admission authority will be responsible for determining who 
is offered a place. 

11. Rochdale Local Authority will notify Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools and Academies 
within the Rochdale Local Authority area by 28th  November 2016. The governing bodies 
of those schools are responsible for determining who is offered a place.

12. The governing bodies of Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools and Academies within the 
borough will rank all applications in priority order, including those who cannot be offered a 
place initially, on their decisions list which will be returned to the LA by 16th December 
2016.

13. Rochdale Local Authority will inform other local education authorities of offers to be made 
to pupils resident within their boundaries and request offers they will be making to 
Rochdale Borough residents by 13th January 2017.

Determining Offers
14. If more than one school place can be offered by any admission authority, a single offer will 

be made for the school that the parent/carer has ranked the highest. If a parent/carer has 
ranked a preference for a school in another Local Authority higher than a school in 
Rochdale and Rochdale is informed by that Local Authority that it is in a position to offer a 
place, Rochdale Local Authority will not offer a place at a school in Rochdale.

15. If Rochdale Local Authority is unable to offer a place to any Rochdale resident a preference 
stated on the form and is informed that no other admission authority is able to offer a place 
at the parent’s/carer’s preferred school, Rochdale Local Authority will inform the 
parent/carer in writing. In this letter the parent/carer will be offered a place at the closest 
community or voluntary controlled school to their home address that has places available. 
The parent/carer will also be notified of their right of appeal for schools that are 
oversubscribed.

Notifying Parents/Carers of Decisions
16. Rochdale Local Authority will notify Rochdale residents by second class post of places that 

can be offered at all maintained Rochdale schools on 1st March 2017.  Online applicants 
will be sent an email on the same day.

17. Parents/carers are requested to accept or decline the place offered on the reply slip 
provided no later than 14th March 2017.

18. Rochdale Local Authority has also agreed with the following local authorities that it will 
send to the parents/carers of pupils who reside in Rochdale notification of offers of places 
that can be made to schools maintained by them on their behalf on 1st March 2017:-
Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Calderdale and Lancashire.

Late Applications
19. Applications received after the closing date of 31st October 2016 will be treated as late 

applications. The Local Authority will only accept applications received after the deadline if 
there is a genuine and good reason for doing so. This would include situations where pupils 
move into Rochdale Borough after 31st October 2016 and before offers of places are made.

Page 122



20. Late applications made without a genuine and good reason (for example parent/carer 
forgetting to send it in time) may be considered after the notification date of 1st  March 
2017. Parents/carers who apply late may, therefore, miss out on their preferred school.

21. Applications for Voluntary Aided, Foundation and Academy schools in Rochdale and for 
schools maintained by other Local Authorities received after the closing date of 31st 
October 2016  will be passed to the appropriate admission authority with a note indicating 
that they are late applications. It will be for that admission authority to decide how it 
wishes to process the application.

Waiting Lists
22. Rochdale Local Authority will operate a waiting list for Rochdale Community schools which 

are oversubscribed in accordance with the Local Authority’s admission policy. The Local 
Authority will only offer places, should any become available, in accordance with the 
authority’s admission policy. The waiting list will be maintained for the Autumn Term only.

23. Parents/carers should check the admission policies for Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools 
and Academies and schools in other Local Authorities in order to determine whether or not 
they operate waiting lists.

Changing secondary schools (In year admissions)
24. If a parent/carer residing in the Rochdale Borough wants to move their child to another 

secondary school other than at the normal transfer age, they need to complete a transfer 
form and submit it to Rochdale Local Authority in accordance with the Local Authority’s 
published Within-Year Transfer Policy.

……….. Proposed Timetable follows……………………….

Page 123



TIMETABLE OF CO-ORDINATED SCHEME FOR SECONDARY SCHOOLS

(LA= Local Authority)

…………………………………  Appendix Two ends ……………………………….

Offers made to parents
1st March 2017

Closing date for applications
31st October 2016

LA notifies other LAs of preferences for schools in their area
14th November 2016

LA notifies Rochdale MBC Foundation/Aided /Academies of preferences
28th  November 2016 

Foundation/Aided/Academies send list of ‘1st Cycle’ results to LA 
16th December 2016 

LA allocates places and sends results to other 
LAs/Aided/Foundation/Academies

13th January 2017

LA ‘crunches’ ‘2nd Cycle’ results and sends to other LAs 
3rd  February 2017

Page 124



CO-ORDINATED ADMISSION SCHEME for 
ROCHDALE LOCAL AUTHORITY MAINTAINED 
PRIMARY SCHOOLS 2017-18

APPENDIX THREE

Introduction
1. Rochdale Local Authority continues to operate a co-ordinated admissions scheme. The 

scheme requires that all parents living in the Borough apply for a place at a maintained 
school either inside or outside the Borough on a common application form to Rochdale 
Local Authority. Independent Schools are not included in the co-ordinated scheme.

2. Rochdale Local Authority, as the admissions authority for community and voluntary 
controlled primary schools in Rochdale, will be responsible for determining who is 
allocated a place at these schools in accordance with the Local Authority’s published 
admissions policy.

3. For Academies, Foundation and Voluntary Aided schools, the Governing Body of the 
school is the admissions authority and as such will be responsible for determining the 
allocation of places at the school in accordance with its published admission policy. 
Where a school converts to academy status before September 2017, the existing 
published admission criteria for such schools will continue to apply.

4. For schools maintained by neighbouring Local Authorities, (Bury, Calderdale, 
Lancashire, Manchester and Oldham), the relevant admissions authority i.e. the Local 
Authority or the school’s Governing Body will be responsible for determining who is 
allocated a place.

Application Process
5. The parents/carers of all pupils resident in the Borough will be requested to apply for a 

maintained primary school place to Rochdale Local Authority, their home authority.  
Parents are recommended to apply on-line as soon as possible from 1st September. 
Applications can also be made by paper application form, obtainable from the Local 
Authority. 

6. All parents/carers will be requested to state up to three preferences on a standard 
Common Application Form. Most Voluntary Aided Schools require supplementary 
information to that contained on the Common Application Form. In such cases the 
Governing Body will request this information. Parents will be able to state reasons for 
their preferences. 

7. Rochdale residents should complete the on-line form or return the completed Common 
Application Form to Rochdale Local Authority or their current Rochdale Local Authority 
primary school no later than 15th January 2017. If schools receive forms by mistake 
they should inform the maintaining Local Authority in order to ensure that the Local 
Authority receives a completed Common Application Form.

8. A copy of the information booklet and Common Application Form will be made available 
on Rochdale’s web site by 1st September 2016. An admission pack, including a “Starting 
School” information booklet and the common application form, will be available from 
the Local Authority on request. 

Page 125



9. All preferences for Rochdale Local Authority maintained community and voluntary 
controlled primary schools will be treated equally and where possible parents/carers 
will be offered their highest ranked preference. Parents/Carers who want to express a 
preference for a Voluntary Aided, Foundation school or Academy, or a school 
maintained by another authority, will be advised on the council website and in the 
Starting School booklet to check the ranking policy with the appropriate school or local 
authority.

Processing Applications
10. Rochdale Local Authority will notify other LAs of preferences for their schools by 30th 

January 2017. The relevant admission authority will be responsible for determining 
who is offered a place. 

11. Rochdale Local Authority will notify Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools and Academies 
within the Rochdale Local Authority area by 13th February 2017. The governing bodies 
of those schools are responsible for determining who is offered a place.

12. The governing bodies of Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools and Academies within the 
borough will rank all applications in priority order, including those who cannot be 
offered a place initially, on their decisions list which will be returned to the LA by 3rd 
March 2017.

13. Rochdale Local Authority will be responsible for determining who is offered a place at 
community and voluntary controlled schools in accordance with the published criteria. 
The LA will inform other local authorities of offers to be made to pupils resident within 
their boundaries and request offers they will be making to Rochdale residents by 17th 
March 2017.

Determining Offers
14. If more than one school place can be offered by any admission authority, a single offer 

will be made for the school that the parent/carer has ranked the highest. If a 
parent/carer has ranked a preference for a school in another Local Authority higher 
than a school in Rochdale and Rochdale is informed by that Local Authority that it is in a 
position to offer a place, Rochdale Local Authority will not offer a place at a school in 
Rochdale.

15. If Rochdale Local Authority is unable to offer a place to any Rochdale resident a 
preference stated on the form and is informed that no other admission authority is able 
to offer a place at the parent’s/carer’s preferred school, Rochdale Local Authority will 
inform the parent/carer in writing. In this letter the parent/carer will be offered a 
place at the closest community or voluntary controlled school to their home address 
that has places available. The parent/carer will also be notified of their right of appeal 
for schools that are oversubscribed.

Notifying Parents/Carers of Decisions
16. Rochdale Local Authority will notify Rochdale residents by second class post of places 

that can be offered at all maintained Rochdale schools on 17th April 2017. Online 
applicants will be sent an email on 16th April 2017.

17. Parents/carers are requested to accept or decline the place offered on the reply slip 
provided no later than 2nd May 2017. 

Page 126



18. Rochdale Local Authority has also agreed with the following local authorities that it will 
send to the parents/carers of pupils who reside in Rochdale notification of offers of 
places that can be made to schools maintained by them on their behalf on 17th April 
2017:-     Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Calderdale and Lancashire.

Late Applications
19. Applications received after the closing date of 15th January 2017 will be treated as 

late applications. The Local Authority will only accept applications received after the 
deadline if there is a genuine and good reason for doing so. This would include 
situations where pupils move into Rochdale after 15th January 2017 and before offers 
of places are made.

20. Late applications made without a genuine and good reason (for example parent/carer 
forgetting to send it in time) may be considered after the notification date of 17th April 
2017. Parents/carers who apply late may, therefore, miss out on their preferred school.

21. Applications for Voluntary Aided, Foundation schools and Academies in Rochdale and for 
schools maintained by other Local Authorities received after the closing date of 15th 
January 2017 will be passed to the appropriate admission authority with a note 
indicating that they are late applications. It will be for that admission authority to 
decide how it wishes to process the application.

Waiting Lists
22. Rochdale Local Authority will operate a waiting list for Rochdale Community and 

Voluntary Controlled schools, which are oversubscribed in accordance with the Local 
Authority’s admission policy. The Local Authority will only offer places, should any 
become available, in accordance with the authority’s admission policy.

23. Parents/carers should check the admission policies for Voluntary Aided, Foundation 
schools and Academies and schools in other Local Authorities in order to determine 
whether or not they operate waiting lists.

Changing primary schools (In year admissions)
24. If a parent/carer residing in the Rochdale Borough wants to move their child to another 

primary school other than at the normal transfer age, they need to complete a transfer 
form and submit it to the Admission Authority for the school  in accordance with the 
Local Authority’s published Within-Year Transfer Policy. 

…………………………Draft Timetable follows …………………………….

Page 127



TIMETABLE OF CO-ORDINATED SCHEME FOR PRIMARY SCHOOLS

(LA= Local Authority)

……………………………… Appendix Three ends….. ……………………..

Offers made to parents
17th April 2017

( i.e. the first working day after the national offer day of 16th April 2017)

Closing date for applications
15th January 2017 

LA notifies other LAs of preferences for schools in their area
30th January 2017

LA notifies Rochdale Foundation/Aided /Academies of preferences
13th February 2017

Foundation/Aided/Academies send list of ‘1st Cycle’ results to LA 
3rd  March 2017

LA allocates places and sends results to other 
LAs/Aided/Foundation/Academies

17th March 2017

LA ‘crunches’ ‘2nd Cycle’ results and sends to other LAs 
27th March 2017

Page 128



ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR WITHIN YEAR 
TRANSFER AND APPLICATIONS  OUTSIDE THE 
NORMAL ADMISSIONS ROUND SEPTEMBER 
2017-18

APPENDIX FOUR 

INTRODUCTION
1. In accordance with the School Admissions Code, where a pupil applies for a place 

outside the normal admissions round, whether in-year or at the start of a school year 
which isn’t the normal point of entry to the school (i.e. Reception or Year 7), 
admission authorities must comply with the parental preference unless one of the 
statutory reasons for refusing admission applies (i.e. the Year Group is full or the child 
has been permanently excluded from two or more schools). All applications must be 
considered without delay and a formal decision either to offer or to refuse a place 
must be made and notified to the applicant. Applicants must not be refused the 
opportunity to make an application, or told that they can only be placed on a waiting 
list rather than make a formal application.

TRANSFER/APPLICATION FORM
2. Applications for a school place outside of the normal transfer time must be made on 

Rochdale’s standard Within-Year Transfer Form. This form can be obtained from the 
Local Authority or its website, or the current school (if in Borough). Parents must 
ensure that the form is completed in full and submitted with any supplementary 
information. If in doubt parents should contact the Local Authority.

FAIR ACCESS 
3. A Fair Access Protocol is in place to consider children who are without a 

school/academy place who meet the criteria. This is in accordance with the School 
Admissions Code. This applies to both primary and secondary schools.

4. If, in the Admission Authority’s opinion, there is a statutory reason to refuse entry or 
a child meets the criteria in the Fair Access Protocol (Hard to Place), the 
application will be dealt with in accordance with the Fair Access Protocol. The 
operation of the Fair Access Protocols is outside the arrangements of co-ordination 
and is triggered when a parent of an eligible child has not secured a place under in-
year transfer procedures.

5. Admission authorities (see School Admissions Code 2.9) must not refuse to admit a 
child solely because:

a) they have applied later than other applicants;
b) they are not of the faith of the school in the case of faith schools;
c) they followed a different curriculum at their previous school; and
d) information has not been received from their previous school.

6. It is essential that children who have no school place are found one quickly. However 
in cases involving within-year transfers that do not require a house move, or where 
there is no need for an immediate transfer, the change of school will not normally be 
until the beginning of the next half term.

Page 129



INTERVIEWS
7. The School Admissions Code, paragraph 1.9(m) prohibits the interviewing of parents 

and/or children as a method for deciding whether a child is to be offered a place at a 
school. Interviews must not form part of the admissions process and admission 
authorities (or schools) must not use either face-to-face interviews or interviews by 
telephone or by other means.

CHILDREN WITH CHALLENGING BEHAVIOUR
8. Admission authorities (and schools) must not refuse to admit children on the basis of 

their behaviour elsewhere, unless they have been permanently excluded from two or 
more schools within the past two years. They also must not refuse to admit a child 
thought to be potentially disruptive, or to exhibit challenging behaviour.

9. Where a governing body does not wish to admit a child with challenging behaviour 
outside the normal admission round, even though places area available, it must refer 
the case to the local authority for action under the Fair Access Protocol. This will 
normally only be appropriate where a school has a particularly high proportion of 
children with challenging behaviour or previously excluded children, subject to the 
provisions of the Fair Access Protocol.

APPLYING FOR SCHOOL PLACES 
10. All applications for school places must be made on Rochdale’s Within-Year Admission 

Application Form, regardless of which school they are applying for.

11. Application forms will be available from all Customer Contact Centres, schools, the 
Admissions Team in the School Organisation and Development Team and on Rochdale 
MBC’s web site www.rochdale.gov.uk .

12. A pupil does not become resident in Rochdale until they actually live in Rochdale. 
Rochdale will however accept within-year applications from parents who are intending 
to move into the area when they can provide evidence of an exchange of contracts on 
a property or have a signed rental/lease agreement provided this is no more than 30 
days before the intended start date. Children must be in the UK before an application 
can be considered. The exception to this is in relation to the children of armed forces 
personnel or crown servants, whereby a school place can be allocated in advance of a 
confirmed posting, even if there is uncertainty about the exact future address.

13. If additional information is required by the governing body of a Foundation, Voluntary 
Aided school or academy in order to apply its oversubscription criteria, parents may 
need to provide additional information usually on a supplementary form. Such 
information must be provided at the time of application because applications cannot 
be considered until such information has been received.

14. For Community and Voluntary Controlled Primary Schools parents are required to 
return the completed form to the Local Authority. 

15. For Voluntary Aided, Foundation and Academy Primary Schools parents are 
required to return the completed form directly to the school. 

16. For ALL Secondary Schools parents are required to return the completed form to the 
Local Authority. Parents can send applications direct to own admission authority 
schools.

Page 130

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/


PROCESSING APPLICATIONS- COMMUNITY & VOLUNTARY CONTROLLED SCHOOLS 
17. The Local Authority aims to process applications within 10 school days of receipt 

(subject to relevant background information being available and address verification 
being available). See Appendix Five (A) for outline flow chart.

18. Where there are more preferences received than places available at a school then the 
relevant governing Body will use the published oversubscription criteria to allocate 
the place(s) available (details of the oversubscription criteria for each admission 
authority in Rochdale can be found in the admission booklet published by the LA each 
year).

19. If the Local Authority is unable to meet the preference requested by the parents a 
place will be allocated at the school nearest to the child’s home address that has a 
place available.

20. The Local Authority will inform parents in writing of the outcome of their application, 
and of their right to appeal to an independent appeals panel if their preference is not 
met.

PROCESSING APPLICATIONS- VOLUNTARY AIDED, FOUNDATION SCHOOLS & ACADEMIES
21. The Governing Body, on receipt of an in-year application, must notify the local 

authority of both the application and its outcome, to allow the local authority to keep 
up to date figures on the availability of places in the area. The admission authority 
must also inform the parent of their right to appeal against the refusal of a place. 
(see School Admissions Code para 2.22). See Appendix Five (B) for outline flow chart

22. Schools who are their own admission authorities should consider all applications 
without unnecessary delay. The school should admit the child if there is a vacancy 
within the admission number for the year group. If there are more applications than 
places available, the governing body must apply their oversubscription criteria.

23. Decisions to refuse admission cannot be made by an individual on behalf of an 
admission authority i.e. Headteacher of a Foundation school, Voluntary Aided school 
or an Academy. The decision must be taken by a committee of the Governing Body 
comprising at least  3 governors.

…………..……………………….. Appendix Four ends ………….………………………..……….

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



PROPOSED PLANNED ADMISSION NUMBERS 2017 APPENDIX SIX
COMMUNITY PRIMARY SCHOOLS

SCHOOL

Ne
t C

ap
ac

ity
 20

15

In
di

ca
te

d 
Ad

m
iss

io
n 

Nu
m

be
r  

 (I
AN

)

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

6  
 (P

AN
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

7  
 (P

AN
) Notes/Comments

Alkrington 420 60 60 60
Ashfield Valley 207 29 30 30
Belfield 315 45 45 45
Boarshaw 330 30 60 60 IAN adjusted to allow for temporary increases in numbers 
Bowlee Park 630 90 120 120 Increase in PAN subject to  statutory proposals 
Brimrod 180 25 30 30
Broadfield 420 60 60 60
Caldershaw 210 30 30 30
Castleton 210 30 30 30
Elm Wood 406 58 60 60
Greenbank 420 60 60 60
Hamer 315 45 45 45
Harwood Park 420 60 60 60
Heap Bridge 175 24 25 25
Heybrook 629 81 90 90
Hollin 270 30 60 30 IAN adjusted to allow for temporary increase in numbers,  60 children to be 

admitted in each of 2014, 2015 and 2016.
Hopwood 396 44 60 60
Littleborough 420 60 60 60
Lowerplace 510 60 60 60  IAN adjusted to allow for temporary increase in numbers in prior years
Marland Hill 418 59 60 60
Meanwood 420 60 60 60
Moorhouse 210 30 30 60 Up to  60 children to be admitted in 2015 and  2016
Newhey 315 26 45 30  IAN Adjusted to allow for temporary increase in numbers. 45 children were 

admitted  in 2014, 2015.
Norden 420 60 60 60
Parkfield 210 30 30 30
Sandbrook 480 60 90 90 Increase in PAN Subject to statutory proposals 
Shawclough 420 60 60 60
Spotland 420 60 60 60
Whittaker Moss 378 35 45 45 IAN Adjusted to allow for temporary increase in numbers in prior years
Woodland 510 60 60 60 IAN Adjusted to allow for temporary increase in numbers in prior years
Voluntary Controlled Primary Schools
All Souls’ CE 203 29 30 30
Little Heaton CE 210 30 30 30
St.Andrew’s CE 315 45 45 45
St.Edward’s CE 364 51 52 52
St.Gabriel’s CE 201 30 30 30
St.Luke’s CE 210 30 30 60 60 children were admitted in 2015, and 60 to be admitted in 2016 and 2017
St.Mary’s CE 210 29 30 30
St.Peter’s CE 406 60 60 60
Stansfield Hall 
CE/Free Church

140 20 20 20

Page 134



COMMUNITY SECONDARY SCHOOLS
SCHOOL

Ne
t C

ap
ac

ity
 20

15

In
di

ca
te

d 
Ad

m
iss

io
n 

Nu
m

be
r  

 (I
AN

)

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

6  
 (P

AN
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

7  
 (P

AN
) Notes/Comments

Falinge Park 1200 240 240 240
Matthew Moss 928 185 180 185
Middleton Technology 
School

1350 270 270 270

Oulder Hill 1500 300 300 300
Siddal Moor 1050 210 210 210

PAN increase to match IAN

VOLUNTARY AIDED, FOUNDATION and ACADEMY PRIMARY SCHOOLS
SCHOOL

Ne
t C

ap
ac

ity
 20

15

In
di

ca
te

d 
Ad

m
iss

io
n 

Nu
m

be
r  

 (I
AN

)

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

6  
 (P

AN
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

7  
 (P

AN
)

Notes/Comments

Bamford Academy 315 45 45
Deeplish Academy 419 59 60
Kentmere Academy 315 45 45
St.John’s Thornham CE VA 70 10 10
St.Michael’s CE Bamford VA 208 29 30
Holy Trinity CE VA 204 29 30
St.Margaret’s CE VA 210 30 30
St.Mary’s RC  Littleborough VA 209 29 30
St.Peter’s RC 234 29 45 IAN Adjusted to allow for temporary increase in 

numbers. The school admitted 45 children in each of 
2014, 2015 and 2016 only  

St.Mary’s RC Langley  VA 420 60 60
Our Lady & St.Paul’s RC VA 210 30 30
St.Thomas More RC VA 315 45 45
Middleton Parish Church School CE VA 420 60 45 School plans to admit 60 children in 2016 and 

subsequent years
St.Michael’s CE Alkrington VA 208 30 30
Milnrow Parish CE VA 210 30 30
St.Thomas’ CE Newhey VA 147 21 21
St.Gabriel’s RC VA 203 29 30
St.John’s RC VA 237 30 30 IAN Adjusted to allow for temporary increase in 

numbers in prior years
St.Patrick’s RC VA 315 45 45
Sacred Heart RC VA 210 30 30
All Saints CE VA 210 30 30
Holy Family RC VA 210 30 30
St.Vincent’s RC VA 420 60 60
Alice Ingham RC VA 209 30 30
St.Joseph’s RC VA 315 45 45  60 children admitted  in 2015 and  school plans to 

Page 135



admit 60 children in 2016 and 2017
Crossgates ( Foundation) 294 42 45
Smithy Bridge (Foundation) 420 60 60
St.James’ CE (Foundation) 209 29 30
St.John Fisher RC VA 210 30 30
Healey (Foundation) 210 30 30

Voluntary Aided and Academy Secondary Schools
SCHOOL

Ne
t C

ap
ac

ity
 20

15

In
di

ca
te

d 
Ad

m
iss

io
n 

Nu
m

be
r  

 (I
AN

)

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

6  
 (P

AN
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
dm

iss
io

n 
Nu

m
be

r 2
01

7  
 (P

AN
) Notes/Comments

Cardinal Langley RC VA 1060 180 180
St.Cuthbert’s RC VA 1200 240 240
Holy Family RC/CE College VA 600 120 120
Wardle Academy 1200 240 240
Hollingworth Academy 1207 241 250
Kingsway Park 1200 240 260
St.Anne’s CE Academy 911 150 150

……………… ends………………………………

Page 136



Subject: Schools Final Outturns and 
Reportable Surplus 2015/16

Status:  Publication

Report to: Health, Schools and Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Children's 
Services

Date: Thursday, 4 August 2016
 

Report of: Director of Children's Services

Author Email:    joanne.elcock@rochdale.gov.uk

Author: Joanne Elcock

Tel: Tel: 01706 926214

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. In line with the Scheme of Delegation with respect to school budgets, it is a 
requirement that the overall position on the balances held in schools be reported to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that members note this report.

3. Background

3.1. Under the Schools Standard and Framework Act 1998 (as amended) and the Scheme 
for Financing Schools, local authorities in conjunction with their schools forum are 
required to review and challenge the level of surpluses held by individual schools.  In 
general, funds given to schools are for the purpose of educating the pupils in school 
at that time, although it is recognised that schools will accumulate some funds for 
specific longer term planned projects. Excessive accumulation of surpluses, unless 
saved for a planned purpose, could represent a loss of opportunity for these pupils.

3.2. Surplus balances greater than a threshold equal to an agreed percentage of a 
school’s funding for a consecutive two year period are subject to challenge and review 
by the local authority in conjunction with Schools Forum. In October 2015 Rochdale’s 
Schools Forum approved the reduction of the threshold from 12% to 8% with the 
exception of schools with less than 180 pupils which remains at 12%.

3.3. Potentially, under Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing Schools, any surpluses fitting 
these criteria and not deemed to be used for ‘eligible’ purposes can be clawed-back 
with re-distribution to all schools via the Schools Block.  It is for Forum to agree the 
Scheme and the local authority to administer on School Forum’s behalf.  A copy of the 
section of the Scheme dealing with reportable surpluses is provided at Appendix A.

3.4. Schools final outturns for 2015/16 and an overview of the level of surpluses in schools 
as at 31st March 2016 were reported to Schools Forum in June 2016.

Page 137

Agenda Item 7



4. Alternatives considered

4.1. No alternatives considered.

5. Findings

Level of Balances – Final Outturn 2015/16

5.1. Outturn for 2015/16 showed total school balances of £13,275k, with no schools in 
deficit.

5.2. The overall final Individual School Budget (ISB) balance for 2015/16 compared to 
2014/15 is summarised in the table below and shows decreases in all sectors:

Sector
Final 

2015/16
£000

Final 
2014/15

£000

Change

£000

Change

%

Nursery 67 143 (76) (53%)

Primary 8,560 9,741 (1,181) (12%)

Secondary 3,998 5,664 (1,666) (29%)

Special 650 768 (118) (15%)

Overall 13,275 16,316 (3,041) (19%)

5.3. Balances overall represent around 8% of schools funding for 2015/16. Overall 
balances have decreased by £3,041k or 19% from the 2014/15 position, although the 
balances last year included £1,700k of monies due to the LA on completion of 
Building Schools for the Future (BSF) works at three secondary schools. Taking this 
into account the overall balance has reduced by £1,341k.

5.4. The following graph shows the level of balances over the last four years, both overall 
and per sector. For information purposes an amount showing the estimated level of 
balances in Rochdale schools based on the average level of balances per school for 
the North West has been included. This highlights the high level of balances Rochdale 
schools have in contrast to the rest of the region. This was the subject of a more 
detailed report to Schools Forum in March 2015; as a result Schools Forum agreed a 
reduction in the level of surplus permitted before it would become the subject of a 
review.

Page 138



Surplus Balances 2015/16

5.5. Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing Schools allows for schools to carry forward 
balances from one financial year to the next but also contains a mechanism to 
clawback excess surplus balances where there is no clear plan of its use on eligible 
expenditure.

5.6. Eligible expenditure as per Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing Schools is:

Repairs and Maintenance
 Revenue contributions to specific capital projects
 Essential health and safety works
 Essential security works
 Other specified repairs and maintenance

Investment: Information Technology
 Major investment in Information Technology equipment and/or facilities

Short Term Staffing
 Additional teaching or support staff (for 12 months only)

Other
 Investment in community facilities
 Pupil premium – 12% of the schools allocation for the financial year

The full details are shown at Appendix A.

5.7. The ‘balance control mechanism’ in the Scheme for Financing Schools ensures that 
schools with a surplus greater than 8%* of their ISB for two consecutive years are 
subject to review by the LA in conjunction with School Forum. Schools that fall into 
this category are considered to have a Reportable Surplus and governing bodies have 
to report details of the planned use of the amount in excess of the 8% to the LA.

*Note that for 2015/16 schools will need to have had a surplus in excess of 12% as at 31 
March 2015 and in excess of 8% as at 31 March 2016 to be subject to review. Also there is a 

Page 139



threshold of 12% for small schools with less than 180 pupils.

5.8. There are currently 47 schools with a surplus balance greater than 8%. The graph 
below shows how the number of schools with a balance greater than the reportable 
surplus threshold has increased over the years.

5.9. The increase from 32 to 47 schools with a surplus above the threshold will have been 
influenced by the reduction in the reportable surplus threshold from 12% to 8% half 
way through the 2015/16 financial year; many schools will have managed their 
budgets in previous years allowing for a surplus of just below 12%. With schools 
having more time to develop budget plans showing a reduced surplus as well as 
facing increased budget pressures this number is expected to drop in future years.

Reportable Surplus Balances 2015/16

5.10.Of the 47 schools with a surplus balance greater than 8%, 20 are subject to further 
review in accordance with Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing Schools. A report 
with details of the planned use of the surplus balances will be presented at the 
October 2016 Schools Forum.

5.11.In 2014/15 there were a total of 21 schools with a Reportable Surplus and the LA will 
be verifying that those schools have used their surplus balances in accordance with 
the planned use reported last year. This detail will form part of the report referred to in 
paragraph 5.10.

5.12.The following graph highlights how the level of Reportable Surplus has fluctuated over 
the last four years. The significant increase in 2015/16 can be attributed to the primary 
sector and is likely to be due to the reduction in the threshold from 12% to 8%. It 
should be noted that it is approximately only a quarter of primary schools with 
significant balances; 18 out of 66 schools hold 50% of the total primary sector 
balances.

Page 140



5.13.It is worth noting that the capital funding available to schools has reduced significantly 
in the last few years; schools increasingly have to use revenue funds to carry out 
improvement works to their school premises. If projects are carried out in the Easter 
and summer holiday period schools are likely to have an increased surplus to fund 
these works. A review of the reportable surplus statements due from schools over the 
summer months will be analysed and form part of the report to Forum in October.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. Following review of the use of reportable surpluses, Schools Forum has the authority 
to claw back from individual schools any reportable surplus amounts over the agreed 
percentage which has not been or will not be utilised by schools in accordance with 
the Scheme. Any funds clawed back go back into the Schools Block to be re-
distributed to all schools through the fair funding formula.

7. Legal Implications

7.1. Schools Forum is a statutory body with certain statutory powers in relation to school 
funding governed by legislation. Local Authorities are required to have a Scheme for 
Financing Schools and school forums have the authority to approve changes to a 
Scheme for Financing.

8. Personnel Implications

8.1. There are no personnel implications as a result of this report.

9. Corporate Priorities

9.1. Equity of funding for schools is an important element of contributing to the Council’s 
Priorities and Council’s Blueprint in encouraging local children to have high 
aspirations and helping them to achieve as highly as possible.

Page 141



10. Risk Assessment Implications

10.1.There are no specific risk issues arising from this report for members to consider.

11. Equalities Impacts

11.1. Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

11.2. Equality/Community Impact Assessments

There are no equality/community issues arising from this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 142



 

Healthwatch  
Rochdale 
Annual Report 2015/16

Page 143

Agenda Item 8



 

& Delete] Leave inside front cover BLANK 
 

Page 144



 

Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

3 

Contents 

  

 

Contents .................................................................................................. 3 

Message from our Chair ................................................................................ 4 

Message from our Chief Executive ................................................................... 5 

The year at a glance .................................................................................... 6 

Who we are ............................................................................................... 7 

Listening to people who use health and care services ........................................... 9 

Giving people advice and information ............................................................ 11 

How we have made a difference ................................................................... 14 

Our work in focus ..................................................................................... 17 

Our plans for next year .............................................................................. 20 

Our people .............................................................................................. 22 

Our finances ............................................................................................ 24 

Contact us .............................................................................................. 26 

 

 

Page 145



 

 Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

4 

  Message from our Chair 

 

 

 

 

This year has been one of establishing and 

developing our new Board. We have put 

in place policies and procedures which 

will make us an effective and efficient 

organisation in challenging the Health and 

Social Care system and standing up for 

residents.  

The past year has been one of great change 

as preparations for Greater Manchester 

Devolution have been developed.  All the 

Healthwatch organisations in Greater 

Manchester have played an active role in 

these preparations and will continue to 

monitor the changes as they affect 

residents within the Rochdale Borough.  

This year we have built strong relationships 

with our Clinical Commissioning Group and 

Council colleagues whilst still maintaining 

our independence. This has helped us to 

influence decisions and will help us to 

shape better services for the future.  

The new Board have settled well into its 

role and we now have a strong and 

effective team who are willing to develop 

and support the work of the CEO and the 

team. We can look back on the past year as 

one in which strong foundations have been 

laid.   

We have commenced our Enter & View 

programme, having undertaken two Enter & 

View visits to date, reports of these visits 

are available on our website. Healthwatch 

Rochdale has the statutory power to Enter 

& View any Health or Social Care service 

and Healthwatch Rochdale will do this 

through eviedence based feedback.  

 

Healthwatch Rochdale 

champions the voice of the 

general public, giving the 

opportunity to challenge local 

service providers and 

commissioners and also share 

best practice. 

 

The Annual Report contains examples of 

where we are beginning to make a 

difference for the people of the Borough of 

Rochdale.  

We would like to thank everyone who has 

been involved with Healthwatch over the 

past year.  Kate and the staff as well as the 

many volunteers have ensured that 

Healthwatch Rochdale has been available 

for all who have needed us, and they will 

continue to do this throughout the next 12 

months. 

 

Jane Jackson 

Chair  

Page 146



 

 Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

5 

Message from our Chief Executive 

 

 

 

Healthwatch Rochdale is a small staff 

team of only 5 people, who are not all full 

time. We have 5 dedicated volunteers 

who support the work we do here at 

Healthwatch Rochdale and this is 

something we couldn’t survive without. 

Over the last 12 months Healthwatch 

Rochdale has changed in many ways. On the 

1st April 2015 we stepped away from our 

private host and became an independent 

organisation ran by a board of non-

executive directors.  This enabled the 

board to review our current work plan and 

move forward with future plans through 

various channels. 

Our relationships with partner organisations 

are important, this year we have continued 

to support a number of key committees and 

meetings such as Health, Schools and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 

Children’s & Adults Safeguarding Board, 

HMR CCG’s governing body and vice chair to 

HMR CCG’s Patient Experience Assurance 

Committee. Moving forwards we have been 

invited to Chair Rochdale Adults and 

Children’s joint engagement subcommittee 

to the safeguarding boards. 

Late this year Healthwatch Rochdale 

facilitated four GP events (in partnership 

with HMR CCG) in the Rochdale Borough 

townships. These events came off the back 

of increased feedback from service users on 

various issues they were encountering. The 

events gave Rochdale residents the chance 

to ask GP’s and commissioners the 

questions on current and future services. 

Throughout 2015/2016 HWR engaged with 

254 young people through 16 sessions across 

the Rochdale borough. The feedback during 

these sessions was collated and formed 

round table discusses at our youth event in 

February 2016. The Young Voices, Your 

Story, Your Health project was led by 

engagement officer Elaine Grace who 

embraced the project to give the young 

people a voice in the presence of 

commissioners 

So it began, Greater Manchester 

Devolution! Last year Greater Manchester 

Devolution hit Rochdale with new 

challenges and many changes. Here at 

Healthwatch Rochdale we stepped up to 

this change and provided information to 

residents of the Rochdale borough though 

monthly e-bulletings, newsletters and flash 

news. Healthwatch Rochdale acted as a 

critical friend and scrutinising body during 

the public consultation process. 

The work we have done these last 12 

months has been outstanding and this 

report will only scratch the surface of the 

success we have had and the future of 

what’s to come. 

Kate Jones 

Chief Execuative Officer   

Page 147



 

 Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

6 

The year at a glance

This year we’ve reached 

115, 670 

people on 

social 

media 

Our 

volunteers 

help us with 

everything 

from 

information gathering to 

Enter and view visits.  

We’ve raised 10 escalations 

to local services and 

commissioners  

We’ve carried out two 

Enter and View visits at 

local 

services 

with follow 

up reports 

Our reports have tackled 

issues ranging from GP 

access to 

listen to 

the seldom 

heard 

 

We’ve met 3,776 local 

people at our Drop In and 

Feedback 

events 

Page 148



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

7 

Who we are

Healthwatch Rochdale is here to make 

Health and Social Care services better 

for ordinary people. We believe that 

the best way to do this is by designing 

local services around their needs and 

experiences.  

We exist to make health and care 

services work for the people who use 

them. 

Everything we say and do is informed by 

our connections to local people. Our sole 

focus is on understanding the needs, 

experiences and concerns of people of all 

ages who use services and to speak out 

on their behalf. 

We are uniquely placed as a national 

network, with a local Healthwatch in 

every local authority area in England. 

Our role is to ensure that local decision 

makers and health and care services put 

the experiences of people at the heart of 

their work. 

We believe that asking people more 

about their experiences can identify 

issues that, if addressed, will make 

services better. 

Our vision  

 Provide an opportunity for people 

living in the Borough of Rochdale 

to be involved in local and national 

Health and Social Care issues 

 Become the single point of contact 

for members of all communities 

who need information and advice 

about Health and Social Care 

services. 

  Be recognised and trusted by the 

local community, to ensure they 

feel confident that in sharing any 

view, concerns and experiences, 

both positive and negative, 

knowing they can help to make a 

difference. 

 Help individuals to help 

themselves whilst providing any 

additional help needed to 

understand and access the support 

available 

 Build strong realtionships with 

other organisations and networks 

and ensure that those who make 

decisions on Health and Social 

Care are aware of local views and 

concerns. 

 Maximise the use of the input and 

expertise of volunteers. 

Our priorities 

Addressing current concerns with 

Health and Social Care services 

Through evidence provided by the 

general public and using information from 

local organisations, we will identify 

trends and areas of concern within the 

Rochdale Borough. Where there are 

significant issues or long-term problems 

we will take action and put forward 

recommendations across Health and 

Social Care. 

Page 149



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

8 

We campaign to ensure that people’s 

concerns are not only listened to but 

valued as a way to improve services. 

Ensuring that future services are 

developed to meet people’s needs and 

are shaped by the people who will use 

them 

 Major changes in services are currently 

underway in our local communities. 

Personalised budgets and patient choice 

also mean that individuals are responsible 

for making more decisions about their 

care. 

Healthwatch Rochdale reports monthly 

on the public’s views and experiences of 

Health and Social Care through the 

Activity Report, which is shared with 

Service Users, Rochdale Metropolitan 

Borough Council (RMBC), Heywood 

Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 

Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) and 

other organisations including 

Healthwatch England. 

Work across the Rochdale Borough in a 

way that secures input and engagement 

from the public 

We respond to public enquiries in a 

timely and effective way and ensure that 

where we cannot deal with someone’s 

concern, they are signposted on to the 

right organisation who can. We carefully 

monitor our use of financial and human 

resources to ensure we are cost effective 

and evaluate our own contribution and 

that of the wider network to ensure we 

constantly learn and adapt. 

Our Healthwatch Team: 

 

 

 

   

Kate Jones 

Chief Executive Officer 

Alex Leach 

Officer and Communications Manager  

Jacqueline Bestley  

Community  Engagement Officer  

Elaine Grace   

Volunteer Manager/ Community 

Engagement Officer  

Claire Birch  

Administration Officer   

Page 150



 

 

Listening to people 
who use health and 
care services 

 

Page 151



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

10 

Gathering experiences and 

understanding people’s needs 

Healthwatch Rochdale gather 

experiences from local residents through 

 Drop in sessions 

 Attending local groups & Events 

 Website 

 Feedback leaflets across the 

community 

There are inequalities in health outcomes 

both across Rochdale Borough and also 

when compared with England, therefore 

focussed work has been undertaken with; 

 Young People (under 25).  Over 16 

sessions Healthwatch Rochdale 

engaged with 254 young people and 

gathered 163 experiences of health 

and social care services 

 Older people, particularly those in 

care homes 

A total of 291 people told Healthwatch 

Rochdale their story in 2015/16 

What we’ve learnt from visiting 

services 

This year Healthwatch Rochdale 

undertook the following Enter and View 

visits; 

 Urgent Care Centre, Rochdale 

Infirmary on Monday 15th Februrary 

 Ward 7, Fairfield General Hospital 

Friday 18th March 

Reports from each visit are available on 

the Healthwatch Rochdale website.  

 

Healthwatch Rochdale’s Board of 

Directors makes the decision to carry out 

an Enter and View based on feedback 

received about a particular issue or 

service.  The visit can be announced or 

unannounced and during an Enter and 

View both patients and staff will be 

interviewed as well as general 

observations of the service being made. A 

report is then sent to the relevant service 

with findings and recommendations for 

improvement. 

 

Thank you for sharing the 

report and recommendations, 

I welcome the findings which 

have highlighted good 

practice and also identified 

areas for improvement 

Gill Harris, Chief Nurse, Pennine Acute 

Hospitals NHS Trust 

 

Healthwatch Rochdale authorised 

representatives for 2015 – 16 are: 

 Jane Jackson 

 Louise Partington 

 Monica Oliver 

 Kate Jones 

 Alex Leach 

 Jacqueline Bestley 

 Elaine Grace 

 Claire Birch 

Page 152



 

 

Giving people advice 
and information 

  

Page 153



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

12 

Helping people get what they need 

from local health and care services  

Signposting Local Residents 

Healthwatch Rochdale support local 

residents get what they need from Health 

and Social Care services by listening to 

their stories and signposting them to 

services which can help.  The 

Healthwatch Rochdale Health and Social 

Care Directory is available on the website 

and was also produced in hard copy and 

distributed to local GP surgerys. Those 

wishing to make a formal complaint are 

also supported by being referred to 

Independants Complaints Advocacy (ICA) 

for NHS issues and for Social Care, Your 

Voice advocacy, who both utilise office 

space at the Healthwatch Rochdale office 

on Queensway. 

Just to let you know, I have 

had a response to my 

complaint about my GP 

surgery.  As per David’s 

(advocate) advice sent to NHS 

England.  My complaint was 

upheld and the surgery are 

putting in new procedures.  

Thank you. 

Local Resident  

 

Over the past 12 months Heathwatch 

Rochdale has signposted 106 people to 50 

different services, including 23 to 

Independent Complaints Advocacy who 

visit the Healthwatch Rochdale Office on 

a fortnightly basis to see clients.    

Other organisations/services signposted 

to include; 

 Your Voice Advocacy 

 NHS choices 

 Carers Resource Centre 

 Making Space 

 Volunteer Driver Service 

 Rochdale Solutions 

 Rochdale & District MIND 

 Rochdale Boroughwide User Forum 

 SENDiass service 

 

Healthwatch Rochdale GP Events 

The majority of feedback received by 

Healthwatch Rochdale is around GP 

services.  This is to be expected as a GP 

is very often the first point of contact for 

patients.  Difficulties around getting an 

appointment were highlighted as well as 

many positive experiences.  In response 

to this Healthwatch Rochdale facilitated 

four public meetings, in Middleton, 

Heywood, Rochdale and Littleborough in 

March 2016.  Questions were invited from 

the public and were put to a panel of 

professionals for their response.            

 

Page 154



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

13 

The panel comprised; Dr Chris Duffy, HMR 

CCG Chair, Simon Wootton, HMR Chief 

Executive; Janet Emsley RMBC Cabinet 

Member for Culture, Health and 

Wellbeing, Ben Squires,  Head of Primary 

Care Operations, NHS England, Dr Mo 

Jiva, Medical Secretary,Rochdale and 

Bury Local Medical Committee, 

Healthwatch Rochdale Chair/Vice Chair. 

Heywood Middleton and Rochdale 

Clinincal Commissioning Group were able 

to update residents on the changes 

occurring locally through Greater 

Manchester Devolution and the recent 

introduction of 7 day access to primary 

care.  

 

Pictured Above, left to right; Kate Hudson, Kate 

Jones, Simon Wootton, Dr Chris Duffy, Ben 

Squires, Dr Mo Jiva 

Healthwatch Rochdale Young Voices 

2016 Event 

Young Voices 2016 was a culmination of 

the engagement work carried out with 

young people over the year.   

73% of young people engaged with were 

either happy or very happy with the 

health or social care service they 

accessed 

Feedback received over the year from 

Unders 25’s was analysed and the top 3 

issues were; 

 GP services 

 A& E/Urgent Care Centre 

 Mental Health Services 

 

Pictured left 

to right 

Tabitha 

Rusden, Cllr 

Billy Sheerin, 

Dr Chris Duffy 

In order to 

try and find out what makes a good or 

bad experience an event with young 

people and also commissioners was 

arranged and, Young Voices 2016 took 

place on 26 February at Richmond Hall in 

Rochdale.  This event was open to all 

residents of the Borough under 25, 

together with students studying Health 

and Social Care at Hopwood Hall College. 

As a result of listening to young people at 

the Young Voices 2016 event 

recommendations have been made to the 

commissioners of services which 

included: 

 To support young people to have a 

greater awareness greater 

awareness of appropriate use of 

services  

 Use language that is 

understandable  

All the reports and recommendations 

published by Healthwatch Rochdale are 

available on the website or contact the 

office for a hard copy. 

Participant Feedback 

“Very interesting and a good way of 

voicing your opinion and getting answers 

from professtionals” 

 

Page 155



 

 

How we have made 
a difference 

  

Page 156



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

15 

Our reports and recommendations 

Over the last 12 months Healthwatch 

Rochdale have published a number of 

Project Reports and Enter and View 

Reports: 

 

 Healthwatch Rochdale reports 

make a number of 

recommendations to suggest how 

people’s Health and Social care 

services might be improved.  

 Healthwatch Rochdale have made 

over 20 recommendations which 

have been taken into account and 

actioned by the service and 

commissioners.  

 Intelligience from service providers 

and service users help in 

completion of all reports.  

 Healthwatch Rochdale project and 

Enter and View reports can be 

found by visiting 

http://www.healthwatchrochdale.

org.uk/reports  

Working with other organisations 

Healthwatch Rochdale works with a 

number of Health and Social Care 

organisations to share intelligence and 

raise issue around patient experience and 

care, these include: 

 The Care Quality Commission 

(CQC), liaise with Healthwatch 

Rochdale to help them monitor 

services, gather information for 

inspections and regulatory service 

activity. All reports, feedback and 

intelligence are shared with the 

CQC on a monthly basis.  

 Heywood, Rochdale and Middleton 

Clinical Commisioning Group (HMR 

CCG), Healthwatch Rochdale 

attends monthly Governing Body 

Meetings, in which intelligence and 

feedback is raised. Implementation 

of a triangluation process of patient 

feedback between Healthwatch 

Rochdale, NHS England and HMR 

CCG is currently ongoing to enable 

concerns to be highlighted much 

faster. 

 Rochdale Metopolitan Borough 

Council (RMBC), Healthwatch 

Rochdale have a seat on the Health 

and Wellbeing Board, in which the 

Healthwatch Rochdale activity 

report is shared with Board 

Members on a monthly basis. 

 Rochdale Borough Safeguarding 

Adults Board and Childrens Board. 

Healthwatch Rochdale regularly 

shares intelligence at both 

meetings, as a board member 

regarding safeguarding issues and 

concerns. Healthwatch Rochdale 

also chairs a sub group to this 

meeting which is made up of many 

partner orginsations.   

 Pennine Acute Hospital Trust 

(PAHT) – Pennine Acute and 

Healthwatch Forum has now been 

set up, to enable Healthwatch 

Rochdale and also other Greater 

Manchester Healthwatch’s to share 

feedback and intelligence to the 

Head of Patient Experience and 

Head of Partnership in the PAHT. 

This enables any concerns to be 

dealt with, in a timely and 

effective manner.  

Page 157

http://www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/reports
http://www.healthwatchrochdale.org.uk/reports


 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

16 

 Healthwatch England monthly 

activity report which includes 

service user feedback is shared 

with Healthwatch England to 

highlight local and national trends.  

 Service providers and 

commissioners have to respond to 

all formal requests for information 

in an appropriate and timely 

manner. 

Involving local people in our work 

Healthwatch Rochdale have supported 

local people in our work by:  

 Holding regular engagement and 

public events in the four townships 

of the Borough to make 

Healthwatch Rochdale easily 

accessible.   

 Carried out a number of surveys 

which can be completed both on 

the Healthwatch Rochdale website 

and also on paper format.  

 Publishing a monthly e-Bulletin and 

quartely newsletter to let local 

residents know what work is being 

carried out and how they can get 

involved. 

 Hosting events and facilitating 

meetings in the four townships. 

 Carrying out regular training 

sessions at the Healthwatch 

Rochdale office. 

 Carrying out enter and views. 

 

Healthwatch Rochdale volunteers have 

been involved in numerous ways to help 

carry out the statutory activities:  

 Assisted engagement officer’s 

carring out drop in sessions and 

feedback events in the Rochdale 

borough. 

 Used the Healthwatch Rochdale 

database to input service user 

feedback and maintain records. 

 Write articles and social media 

posts to help share the work of 

Healthwatch Rochdale.  

 Contact local Health and Social 

Care orginsations to inform them 

of the work and events 

Healthwatch Rochdale carrying 

out.  

 Attending community events and 

award nights to be the face of 

Healthwatch Rochdale. 

 Producing posters and flyers to aid 

in the publicty of Healthwatch 

Rochdale.  

Recently I’ve been looking for 

voluntary work to build my 

confidence up, by using the 

skills that I’ve gained from 

University. After looking for a 

variety of work experience 

opportunities I came across 

Healthwatch Rochdale.  

During the weeks I feel I have 

developed confidence on how 

to compete tasks to a 

professional standard, as well 

as understanding once again 

how much volunteering can 

help develop you as a person 

and help you feel valued 

again. 

Abid Ramtoola 

Healthwatch Rochdale Volunteer  

 

. 

Page 158



 

 

Our work in focus 

Page 159



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

18 

Our work in focus:  

Healthwatch Rochdale’s work with Rochdale Metopolitan Borough 
Council (RMBC) Adult Care Team  

Healthwatch Rochdale has worked in 

partnership with Rochdale Borough 

Council's Adult Care team to address 

issues and concerns some service users 

and organisations have highlighted when 

attempting to call the Adult Care 

telephone number (0300 303 8886). 

The Adult Care telephone number is used 

by people wishing to contact adult care 

with any number of issues related to the 

care received by older people or disabled 

adults in the borough. People can also 

phone this number to make a 

safeguarding alert because they are 

concerned about the welfare of an older 

or vulnerable individual. Healthwatch 

Rochdale gathered feedback relating to 

the above issue and findings showed that, 

on some occasions, people had 

experienced difficulty when trying to 

contact Adult Care directly on the 

specified number which is provided on 

their website. Further research gave 

Healthwatch Rochdale information that a 

small number of calls were taking up to 

20 minutes to be answered when trying 

to make a safeguarding alert. 

Healthwatch Rochdale raised the 

concerns with the council and asked that 

a formal reply was to be made to 

Healthwatch Rochdale within 20 working 

days in accordance with the statutory 

requirement. 

As a result of the feedback Healthwatch 

Rochdale has received, changes were 

made to the way calls are dealt with by 

the adult care team and as a result: 

 Calls are being answered promptly 

within 4 minutes. Complaint rates 

have decreased as a result of calls 

being answered quicker 

 Abandoned call rate has dropped by 

approximately 40% 

 

Adult care is an exceptionally 

busy service, which receives 

on average between 500 and 

700 calls a day. 

Unfortunately, as a result of 

this it appears that a small 

number of people were left 

waiting on the line. As soon 

as we became aware of this 

we immediately made 

changes to the way we deal 

with calls made to adult care 

so people can now get 

through to us much more 

quickly. 

Sheila Downey, Head of Adult Care, 
RMBC  

 

  

Page 160



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

19 

Our work in focus:  
Healthwatch Rochdale uses its statutory powers - Enter and View at 

Rochdale Infirmary Urgent Care Centre

On Monday 15th February, Healthwatch 

Rochdale conducted an Enter and View 

visit at Rochdale Infirmary's Urgent Care 

Centre. Over the past 12 months 

Healthwatch Rochdale have been holding 

a drop in session at the Urgent Care 

Centre, gathering patients views on a 

monthly basis. Feedback highlighted a 

trend that the service is being run 

extremely well and patients and relatives 

are happy with the service they have 

been receiving. Due to this excellent 

feedback Healthwatch Rochdale Board of 

Director's authorised an Enter and View 

visit at Rochdale Infirmary's Urgent Care 

Centre with the aim of highlighting and 

sharing best practice. 

During the visit Healthwatch Rochdale's 

trained representatives focused on three 

primary areas which included overall 

observations, interviews with staff and 

interviews with patients. The findings 

from this information has been published 

in a final report which highlights 

recommendations that Healthwatch 

Rochdale deem appropriate.  

The recommendations Healthwatch 

Rochdale made to Rochdale Infirmary's 

Urgent Care Centre in regards to this visit 

are as follows: 

 Increase the number of wheelchairs in 

the reception area 

 Information leaflets to be made 

available regarding the 'Friends and 

Family Test' in the waiting room 

 Putting up a notice on the outside of 

the Urgent Care Centre to deter 

individuals from smoking outside the 

consultation rooms 

 Putting up a sign above the waiting 

time, to ensure that patients are 

made aware this is the time for 

treatment and not to triage 

 Update the 'Friends and Family Test' 

statistic to the appropriate month 

 Provide information leaflets in the 

waiting area for patients who would 

like to make a complaint about the 

service 

 An internal review of discharge 

procedures/ management to ensure 

patients have had the appropriate 

treatment 

 Sharing your good working practices 

with other hospitals and Urgent Care 

Centres. 

These recommendations were issued to 

the PAHT and a reply was given to 

Healthwatch Rochdale within the 

statutory 20 days. 

The Pennine Acute Hospital Trust also 

created an action plan in relation to the 

recommendation, and after a follow up 

letter, it was documented that all 

recommendations had been addressed 

and actioned.  

 

Page 161



 

 

Our plans for next year 

  

Page 162



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

21 

Future priorities 

Healthwatch Rochdale gives residents 

of the Borough a powerful voice locally 

and nationally. At a local level, 

Healthwatch Rochdale will work to help 

local people get the best out of their 

local health and Social Care services. 

Whether it's improving them today or 

helping to shape them for tomorrow. 

Healthwatch Rochdale is keen to 

empower local voices to influence the 

delivery and design of local services. 

Not just people who use them, but 

anyone who might need to in future. 

Healthwatch Rochdale’s success will be 

built on public trust and confidence. This 

will be sustained by being democratic, 

transparent, accessible and inclusive. Its 

respect and credibility is dependent on 

not being afraid to challenge or be 

challenged. 

Focused Prioirties for 2015/16  

BAME Groups   

Raise awareness & gather feedback 

through events, stalls and various 

community groups. Hold Feedback events 

to ensure BAME communities have their 

say on health and social care services. 

Review how Healthwatch Rochdale 

provide various materials to enable all 

residents of the Borough to utilise the 

services we provide. 

Children and Parents 

Children's Centre’s project. Raise 

awareness and gather feedback from 

children and parents living in the 

Rochdale Borough on Health and Social 

Care services. Review the experiences of 

maternity services in line with local 

issues. 

Mental Health 

Raise awareness and gather feedback 

through events, stalls and various 

community groups. Hold Feedback events 

to ensure those with Mental Health issues 

have their say on health and social care 

services 

Older people 

Visit care homes and speak to staff, 

residents and family members to raise 

awareness of the role of Healthwatch 

gather feedback from staff, residents and 

family members. Engage with varies older 

people service groups to gather feedback 

on services and empower them with the 

knowledge of Healthwatch. 

Youth 

Hopwood Hall College, sixth form’s, 

statutory agencies and Voluntary and 

Community Sector Groups working with 

young people - Working in partnership to 

raise awareness of Healthwatch and 

gather feedback from service users to 

provide a footing for our annual youth 

event. 

Greater Manchester Devolution 

Reviewing the future changes of health 

and social care services ensuring the 

public’s voice is at the centre of 

discussion making processes. 

Ongoing work 

The work plan and key priorities are 

approved by Healthwatch Rochdale’s 

Board.

Page 163



 

 

Our people 

  

Page 164



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

23 

Decision making 

This year has seen the development of 

the organisaiton as we are now an 

independent company, moving away 

from our private hosts, Parkwood 

Healthcare, who had supported the 

work of Healtwatch Rochdale for the 

previous two years 

Healthwatch Rochdale is run by a Board 

of Trustees who are all volunteers. They 

meet on a monthly basis and decide on 

the priorities for the organisaiton.  The 

work for these priorities is then 

developed and delivered by operational 

staff. The Board also decide when to 

carry out an ‘Enter & View’ based on 

evidence of peoples experiences of 

services which are reported each month 

in an activity report.  

There are 7 Board members: 

 Jane Jackson (Chair) 

 Ben Greenwood (Vice Chair) 

 Christine Mullins(Treasurer) 

 Jonathan Yates 

 Louise Partington 

 Mohammed Sarwar 

 Sheila Johnson 

How we involve the public and 

volunteers  

Volunteers are recruited from across the 

Borough and support the work we do in a 

variety of ways.  Through 2015 a team of 

5 volunteers supported Healthwatch 

Rochdale with engagement support; 

administration and Enter & View visits.  

Volunteers get regular training and 

updates on health and social care issues.  

Pictured below are some of the 

volunteers and staff who received 

Dementia Friends Training in February 

2015 from Vicky Richardson from the 

Alzheimers Society. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pictured Above: Healthwatch Rochdale staff and volunteers taking part in dementia friends training

Page 165



 

 

Our finances 

 

Page 166



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INCOME £ 

Funding received from local authority to deliver local 
Healthwatch statutory activities 

 £156,066.00 

Additional income  £6,189.23 

Total income £162,255.23 

  

EXPENDITURE  

Operational costs £19,473.97 

Staffing costs £109,270.26 

Office costs £25,850.12 

Total expenditure £154,594.35 

Balance brought forward £7,660.88 

 

Page 167



 

 

Contact us 

 

Page 168



 

  Healthwatch  
Rochdale 

27 

Get in touch 

Address:  

Healthwatch Rochdale  
The Lodge 
Arrow Mill 
Queensway 
Rochdale 
OL11 2YW 

Phone number: 01706 249575 

Email: info@healthwatchrochdale.org.uk 

Website: www.Healthwatchrochdale.org.uk 

Twitter: @HWRochdale  

Facebook: Healthwatch Rochdale  

LinkedIn: Healthwatch Rochdale  

Youtube: Healthwatch Rochdale  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We will be making this annual report publicly available by 30th June 2016 by publishing it on 

our website and circulating it to Healthwatch England, CQC, NHS England, Clinical 

Commissioning Group/s, Overview and Scrutiny Committee/s, and our local authority.  

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch Trademark (which covers the logo and 

Healthwatch brand) when undertaking work on our statutory activities as covered by the 

licence agreement. 

If you require this report in an alternative format please contact us at the address above.  

 

© Copyright (Healthwatch Rochdale 2016) 

Page 169



 

 

 

Page 170



 

 

 1 

13a 
 

GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY 10 JUNE 2016  
  AT MANCHESTER TOWN HALL 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Bolton MBC     Cllr Kevin McKeon 
       Cllr Andrew Morgan 
       Cllr Debbie Newall 
 
Bury MBC     Cllr Rachel Skillen 
       Cllr Roy Walker 
 
Manchester CC    Cllr Ahmed Ali 
       Cllr Angeliki Stogia  
       Cllr Matt Strong 
 
Oldham MBC     Cllr Garth Harkness 
            
Rochdale MBC    Cllr Neil Butterworth 
       Cllr Michael Holly 
       Cllr Sara Rowbotham 
 
Salford CC     Cllr David Jolley 

Cllr John Walsh 
      
Stockport MBC    Cllr Iain Roberts 
  
Tameside MBC    Cllr Gill Peet 

Cllr Kevin Walsh 
       
 Trafford MBC    Cllr Barry Brotherton 
   
Wigan MBC     Cllr John O’Brien (Chair) 
       Cllr Pam Stewart    
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
 GM Interim Mayor    Tony Lloyd 
 
 GMCA     Andrew Lightfoot 

 
Transport for  Greater Manchester Simon Warburton 
       Nicola Kane 

 

Page 171

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 2 

GMIST     Allan Sparrow 
        

 
16/01  APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Jane Black (Bury), Cllr Jillian Collinson (Salford), Cllr 
John McGahan (Stockport) Cllrs Pam Dixon & Michael Young (Trafford) and Cllr Edward 
Houlton (Wigan). 
 
16/02 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 
Members were informed that under Part 5, Section B of the GMCA Constitution, the 
Scrutiny Pool members were required to appoint a chair for 2016/17 from amongst their 
number.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That Councillor John O’Brien be appointed as Chair of the Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
16/03 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 
 
Members were informed that under Part 5, Section B of the GMCA Constitution, the 
Scrutiny Pool members were required to appoint a Vice Chair for 2016/17 from amongst 
their number.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That Councillor John Bell be appointed as Vice Chair of the Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17. 
 
16/04 MEMBERSHIP OF THE GMCA & AGMA SCRUTINY POOL 2016/17  
 
Consideration was given to the membership of the Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17 and the 
Scrutiny Pool’s Terms of Reference was submitted for information.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the Membership of the Scrutiny Pool for 2016/17 as follows:  
 
Bolton Council: Councillors Kevin McKeon, Andrew Morgan & Debbie Newall 
Bury Council:  Councillors Jane Black, Rachel Skillen & Roy Walker 
Manchester CC: Councillors Ahmed Ali, Angeliki Stogia & Matt Strong 
Oldham Council: Councillors Elaine Garry, Garth Harkness & Colin McLaren 
Rochdale Council: Councillors: Neil Butterworth, Michael Holly and Sara Rowbotham 
Salford CC:  Councillors Jillian Collinson, David Jolley & John Walsh 
Stockport Council: Councillors Yvonne Guariento, John McGahan & Iain Roberts 
Tameside Council: Councillors John Bell, Gill Peet & Kevin Walsh 
Trafford Council: Councillors Barry Brotherton, Pam Dixon & Michael Young 
Wigan Council: Councillors Edward Houlton, John O’Brien & Pam Stewart  
 
2. To note the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool Terms of Reference. 

Page 172



 

 

 3 

 
 
16/05 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/17 
 
The schedule of meetings for 2015/16 was agreed as- 
 
8 July 2016    13 January 2017 
12 August 2016  10 February 2017 
9 September 2016  10 March 2017 
14 October 2016  7 April 2017 
11 November 2016 
9 December 2016 
 
All meetings will be held on Fridays: 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall 
 
 
16/06 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair asked the Scrutiny Pool to note that future arrangements for Scrutiny Pool 
meetings might change following the outcome of the review being undertaken by the 
GMCA/AGMA.  A decision was expected later this year.  
 
Members were informed that the districts had nominated Councillors Neil Butterworth, 
Colin McLaren and Michael Young to the GMCA/AGMA for membership of the Audit 
Committee. The Scrutiny Pool also agreed to nominate Councillor Pam Stewart.  These 
nominations would need to be confirmed by the GMCA at its AGM on 30 June 2016. 
 
 
16/07 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 
 
16/08 MINUTES OF THE GMCA AND AGMA SCRUTINY POOL MEETING HELD ON 8 

APRIL 2016  
 

1. The Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 8 April 2016 were 
submitted for consideration. 

 
2. There were no matters arising from the Minutes. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To approve the Minutes of the GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool meeting held on 8 April 
2016. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



 

 

 4 

16/09 SCRUTINY POOL WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 
 
A report detailing the Scrutiny Pool’s work programme for the coming months was 
submitted.  Officers reminded Members that this was a working document and that items 
brought forward for scrutiny could be included in the work programme at Member’s 
request. 
 
A Member requested that a future meeting of Scrutiny Pool looks at energy issues and 
Members were happy for a future meeting to consider this topic.  A request was also made 
for a future meeting to look at developments with Graphene and its potential. The Chair felt 
that this would be a good topic for the Scrutiny Pool to consider and asked Members to 
consider in the lead up to the meeting what potential uses Graphene could be put to. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the contents of the work programme and items identified for future meetings in 

2016/17 be noted.  
 
2. That the future work programme for the Scrutiny Pool be amended to include topics 

concerning Energy and Graphene. 
 
 
16/10 2040 TRANSPORT STRATEGY 
  
Tony Lloyd, GM Interim Mayor & Portfolio Holder for Transport provided the Scrutiny Pool 
with a brief outline of the elements and issues which went into the preparation of the 
Greater Manchester draft 2040 Transport Strategy.  Simon Warburton and Nicola Kane 
from Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) then took the Scrutiny Pool through a 
presentation on the draft 2040 Transport Strategy which aimed to achieve a sustainable 
urban mobility plan for the future. The presentation looked at: 
 

• TfGM’s vision and context for the 2040 Transport Strategy 

• Strategic principles 

• Strategic priorities, and 

• Delivery of the strategy. 
 
Questions and comments on the presentation from the Scrutiny Pool included-  
 
Q. A Member referred to the number of major transport infrastructure schemes across 
GM including the Metrolink second city crossing and highlighted the fact that more needed 
to be done regarding orbital schemes across GM.  He added that areas such as Bolton 
had a sense that there was a two-tier transport system in GM.  The loss of all night bus 
services had affected people’s ability to travel across the edge of the conurbation and the 
local rail network was overcrowded.  He asked how TfGM intended to address these 
issues particularly as many employment opportunities created in GM were difficult for 
people to reach without public transport.  
 
A. Tony Lloyd responded that even with more Metrolink extensions this would still not 
be the most used mode of public transport in GM.  GM needed a high quality bus network.  
In terms of the local rail network the majority of rail stock and stations were not good 

Page 174



 

 

 5 

enough and rail should be providing a higher quality mode of transport.  Improvements to 
these transport systems would take time and the 2040 Transport Strategy had to serve all 
areas of GM in order to ensure the creation of a high quality transport network for people 
to use.  The re-introduction of night bus services needed to be looked at carefully. 
 
Simon Warburton reported that rail services across GM were under utilised and hence 
TfGM had set up the Rail North Partnership regarding aligning rail franchises. He added 
that recent agreements reached with Government would see a doubling of capacity on 
local rail corridors which was a critical step forward.  GM also needed powers to change 
the bus network as too often it had been set up to compete with rail.  This included the 
promotion of transport interchanges. 
 
Q. A Member asked what tools GM had to judge whether the right balance was being 
achieved across all transport modes.  Furthermore, there was a track record of the 
Government ‘changing its mind’ and how would GM prevent this?  
  
A. Simon Warburton responded that from the devolution agreements reached with 
Government GM hoped to achieve a long term single transport funding settlement.  This 
would allow GM to make strategic decisions on transport both in the short and long term.  
 
Tony Lloyd added that GM needed to challenge the current transport frameworks and the 
political element of this would always be challenging. 
 
Q. A Members asked that once full devolution was achieved would GM have the 
capacity to re-regulate the bus network into one company as this would simplify the 
introduction of smart ticketing. The Member also asked how the outcome of the up and 
coming referendum on Britain’s membership of the European Commission would impact 
on major transport projects in GM. 
 
A. Tony Lloyd responded that London operated its bus network via many operators but 
they all worked to Greater London Transport and the plan was to introduce a similar 
arrangement in GM.  As for smart ticketing the systems currently available were the issue 
and not the operators.  With regard to the referendum he added that any decision to leave 
the EC would have an impact but many other people would have there own views on this. 
 
Simon Warburton reported that a GM Bus Services Bill was before Parliament which would 
give GM powers to undertake new bus franchising arrangements in the GMCA area.  It 
was hoped that the Bill would become statute in 2017. 
 
Q. A Member referred to the number of major cities which were now looking to charge 
vehicles with diesel engines if they entered the centres.  He added that in the 1990s 
people were encouraged to buy diesel vehicles as they were thought to be a cleaner 
option.  He asked if GM intended to introduce a similar policy on the issue of charging 
based on the engine technology. 
 
A. Simon Warburton responded that TfGM as part of the GM Low Emissions Policy 
were to undertake a full feasibility study on options for low emission zones. TfGM had to 
look at this because of the challenging air quality standards set by GM and this work would 
be reported to the GMCA in due course. 
 

Page 175



 

 

 6 

Tony Lloyd added that bus operators had upgraded the engine technology (hybrid 
diesel/electric engines) in their vehicles but this policy would also look at GM’s freight 
transport strategy. 
 
Q. A Member asked how the new bus franchise arrangements would help those bus 
services in rural areas. 
 
A. Tony Lloyd responded that a number of rural areas in GM had not been well served 
by bus operators.  A fresh approach was needed for services in rural areas i.e. the use of 
smaller vehicles being run by a different type of bus operator. 
 
Q. A Member referred to the fact that although GM had developed global connections 
the smaller local essential services which were important to local people had not been as 
well developed.  Also would TfGM be doing more to encourage parents to walk children to 
school, develop car sharing schemes and run local buses to the areas where they were 
needed.  These elements seemed lost in the Strategy. 
 
A. Nicola Kane reported that the strategy had developed a number of spatial themes to 
identify the fact that walking and cycling etc were important but GM needed to provide the 
right infrastructure. These themes also had linkages to health benefits and work was 
needed to try and change attitudes. These areas could result in a huge benefit to peoples’ 
quality of life. 
 
Q. A Member referred to the Strategy’s network principles and whether a focus on 
inclusivity would lead to aspects of affordability being lost.  Realistic options were needed 
for people to be encouraged to use public transport.  The Member asked what TfGM were 
doing to help people, particularly younger people on benefits or on low incomes to afford 
the use public transport. 
 
A. In response Simon Warburton felt that the Members concern regarding encourage 
more young people to use public transport at an affordable cost was a challenging.  
Should GM be successful and achieve de-regulation then a better fare regime could be 
introduced as the budget would be managed by the GMCA.  The challenge facing GM was 
to find ways to support job seekers and then once people were in employment offer some 
residual support.  
 
Q. With regard to the local engagement of areas across GM regarding the strategy, a 
Member felt that communities at the extremities of the conurbation were not seen as 
commercial opportunities for bus operators and therefore an alternative way of delivering 
transport services to these areas was needed. The bus travel in these areas was 
expensive and did not always connect with the transport interchanges for onward travel.  
TfGM needed to engage with these communities. 
 
A. Nicola Kane responded that TfGM would need the help of Members to identify 
these communities as TfGM wanted to reach all communities about the strategy.   
 
Q. A Member asked what state of the art schemes TfGM were hoping to introduce to 
tackle congestion.   
 

Page 176



 

 

 7 

A. The Member was informed that new technology was now being used to control 
traffic flows at key junctions across GM via the use of signal timings.  Technology in this 
area was advancing and this would lead to better capacity on GM’s roads. 
 
Q. A Member asked if GM intended to once more take a look at congestion charging. 
 
A.  Tony Lloyd responded that it would not. 
 
Q. A Member asked if TfGM were intending to introduce more cycling stations in the 
pipeline.  And in terms of the overall strategy for cycling he referred to the recently 
introduced cycle scheme in Rusholme which had attracted both positive and negative 
comments. This scheme separated cyclists from motorists which involved the redesign of 
the highway.  Though the scheme was new and being evaluated he questioned whether 
people were ready for such schemes.  Though people wanted a cycle friendly environment 
with reduced CO2 emissions - businesses needed to be able to travel quickly and 
schemes such as the one in Rusholme needed further refining. 
 
A. Tony Lloyd reported that cycle lane segregation in London had made motorists 
much more aware of cyclists.  Greater London Transport also provide training to drivers of 
HGVs, PSVs etc to help change their attitudes towards cyclists. GM also hoped to create a 
safe environment for people to cycle to work or school but this would take time and GM 
would learn from best practice elsewhere. 
 
Simon Warburton added that via the Local Sustainable Transport Fund TfGM had 
undertaken a number of measures to define an evaluation programme.  TfGM was looking 
at what works best in different locations in terms of bike stations at rail stations. 
 
Q. A Member commented that he had read the Centre for Cities report which said that 
HS3 was not needed as the region actually needed better transport links in the city 
regions.  He added that to travel from Bury to Rochdale was now slower than it was in the 
1900s. He felt there was a need to improve and develop links between boroughs in GM 
and asked that any future planning policies protect as much of the existing used and 
unused rail routes across GM and had TfGM thought about this when developing the 
strategy. 
 
A. Tony Lloyd highlighted the fact that GM needed HS3 and also needed better 
interconnecting travel. Problems with the network were chiefly down to rolling stock issues.  
 
Simon Warburton reported that the recently introduced Guided Busway in Wigan had 
shown what could be introduced without resorting to costly fixed track infrastructure.  The 
GMCA wanted to understand the potential for future rapid transit schemes for orbital travel.  
Therefore TfGM was looking at new uses for the many redundant lines across the 
conurbation and once this work had been done they would be brought forward for 
consideration.  Simon agreed with the Member that there was a need to protect these 
potential alignments. 
 
Q. A Member asked if GM would be involved in plans by Government to develop more 
research into the use of driverless vehicles.  
 

Page 177



 

 

 8 

A. Simon Warburton responded that the Government was looking into this and TfGM 
would look on with interest.  TfGM was looking more towards car sharing in the immediate 
future. Car ownership was changing as more people now chose to live in city centres and 
vehicle sharing was a potential way forward to reduce carbon emissions and congestion.    
 
Q. A Member asked what was TfGM’s aspirations regarding the provision of real time 
information at bus stops.     
 
A. It was reported that new bus stations would have real time information and this 
would be rolled out.        
 
Q. Members raised the issue being faced by many people through cyclists riding their 
bikes on public footpaths and the fact that GMP seemed to do little about it.   
 
A. Tony Lloyd responded that this was a real issue and as the strategy would 
encourage more cycling and walking flashpoints would happen. He added that cyclists 
often complain that it is not safe to ride on the road and often had cars parked on cycle 
lanes.  Although behaviour was often down to enforcement it would be difficult for GMP to 
take action.   
 
Comments were made about developing active signage that could warn motorists and 
cyclists of potential flash points and more could be done regarding cycle awareness 
training. 
 
The Chair on behalf of the Scrutiny Pool thanked Tony Lloyd, Simon Warburton and Nicola 
Kane for their informative presentation on the 2040 Transport Strategy. 
  
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To note the contents of the report and the draft 2040 Transport Strategy. 
 
2. To note that the draft 2040 Transport Strategy was being finalised at present to 

reflect final comments received from GM districts, as requested by the GMCA and 
the provisions of the Bus Services Bill, which had recently been published by 
Government. 

 
3. To note that it was intended to undertake a public consultation on the draft 2040 

Transport Strategy this summer, prior to preparing a final strategy and delivery plan 
in the autumn. 

 
4. To request TfGM to provide an update on the 2040 Transport Strategy and Delivery 

Plan to the November meeting of the Scrutiny Pool. 
 
16/11 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2016/17 
 
8 July 2016   13 January 2017 
9 September 2016  10 February 2017   
14 October 2016  10 March 2017 
11 November 2016  7 April 2017 
9 December 2016   

Page 178



 

 

 9 

 
All meetings will be held 1:00pm - 3:00pm at Manchester Town Hall  
 

CHAIR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 179



 

 

 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 180


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme 2016/17
	HSCOSCtteWP201617

	4 NHS England pre consultation on the proposed new clinical model for Learning Disabilities in the North West
	Building the Right Support PDF

	5 Market Oversight Report
	Market Oversight Report enc. 1
	Market Oversight Report enc. 2

	6 School Admissions and Allocation of Places 2016
	Append. Four Schools Adjudicator report 2016
	Appendix Five School Admissions Arrangements 2017

	7 Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2015/16
	8 Healthwatch Rochdale Annual Report 2015/16
	9 GMCA and AGMA Scrutiny Pool



